
City Council Meeting Agenda 
October 25, 2016 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, October 25, 2016 - 5:30 p.m. 

Wright Room, Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by Mayor Pro 
Tem David K. Leigh. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Library Services, Kim Kroll. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Pat Munoz, Pastor of Dunamis Baptist 
Church. 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: 
(1)engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda.  

 
3. Proclamations and Recognitions: 
 

A. Recognize the Finance Department for receipt of the Certificate of Achievement 
for Excellence in Financial Reporting for Fiscal Year 2015. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
October 25, 2016 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

B. Recognize the Public Information Officer and the Finance Department for receipt 
of the Comptroller’s Transparency Star Award in the area of Traditional Finances. 

 
Consent Agenda 

 
Items 4-5 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 

 
4. Consider minutes of previous meetings: 

 
A. October 11, 2016, City Council Workshop Meeting 
B. October 11, 2016, City Council Regular Meeting 
 

5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an Interlocal Assistance 
Agreement with the Central Texas Council of Governments (CTCOG) to continue 
funding for the volunteer coordinator position for the Belton Police Department’s 
RUOK? Senior Adult Outreach Program. 
 

Regular Agenda 
 

6. Consider a resolution naming a new City of Belton park, located west of Ave. J and 
South of South Belton Middle School, as the Jeff Hamilton Neighborhood Park. 

 
7. Consider adoption of a resolution directing the publication of notice of intention to 

issue combination tax and limited revenue certificates of obligation, series 2016, in 
a maximum principal amount not to exceed $9,700,000, and other matters related 
thereto. 

 
Growth Management 
 
8. Conduct annexation public hearings and present Municipal Services Plans for 

seven areas: 
 

A. Area 1: Approximately 716.44 acres located on the east side of IH 35, along and 
south of Decker Road. The tract extends southward to the Lampasas River, and 
extends along the river to the south and southeast, connecting to existing city 
limits, east of Toll Bridge Road. 

 
B. Area 2: Approximately 198.69 acres located on the east side of IH 35, between 

the east/west portion of the Lampasas River and Elmer King Road. 
 

C. Area 3: Approximately 250.14 acres located south of the intersection of IH 35 
and the Lampasas River. The tract extends along the west side of IH 35, 
measuring approximately 1,000’ in width, and would add 1,000’ additional on the 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
October 25, 2016 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

west side of IH 35 to the current 1,000’ total city limit width centered on IH 35. 
The tract extends southward along IH 35 south of Amity Road, and adjoins the 
Salado ETJ line. 

 
D. Area 4: Approximately 297.20 acres located south of the intersection of IH 35 

and the Lampasas River. The tract extends along the east side of IH 35, 
measuring approximately 1,000’ in width, and would add 1,000 additional feet to 
the current 1,000’ total city limit width centered on IH 35. The tract extends 
southward along IH 35 south of Amity Road, and adjoins the Salado ETJ line. 

 
E. Area 5: Approximately 228.27 acres located along and north of Sparta Road and 

west of the existing city limits, extending west to FM 439, and east along Sparta 
Road to the city limits.  

 
F. Area 6: Approximately 24.10 acres located generally along the proposed 

north/south alignment of Lake-to-Lake Road, north of Sendero Estates 
Subdivision, and south of FM 93.  

 
G. Area 7: Approximately 2.713 acres located on the south side of Avenue O, 

between Avenue O and Old Golf Course Road. 
 
Planning and Zoning 
 
9. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural to Light 

Industrial Zoning District for a UPS parking lot on a 5.00 acre tract of land, located 
east of South Interstate 35 and south of Grove Road. 

 
10. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change request from Multiple Family to 

Neighborhood Services Zoning District at 508 North Wall Street, located on the west 
side of North Wall Street, between East 5th and East 6th Avenues. 

 
11. Consider a preliminary/final plat for Nolan Creek Industrial Park, an 84.958 acre tract 

of land beginning 855’ south of FM 93 and located east of Interstate 35, west of the 
Temple Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant, and north of Nolan Creek. 

 
 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time 
regarding any issue on this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
October 25, 2016 

Page 1 of 4 
 
 

 
OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, October 25, 2016 - 5:30 p.m. 

Wright Room, Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by Mayor Pro 
Tem David K. Leigh. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Library Services, Kim Kroll. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Pat Munoz, Pastor of Dunamis Baptist 
Church. 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: 
(1)engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda.  

 
3. Proclamations and Recognitions: 
 

A. Recognize the Finance Department for receipt of the Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for Fiscal Year 2015. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
October 25, 2016 

Page 2 of 4 
 
 

B. Recognize the Public Information Officer and the Finance Department for 
receipt of the Comptroller’s Transparency Star Award in the area of 
Traditional Finances. 

 
Consent Agenda 

 
Items 4-5 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and 
may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item 
may be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 

 
4. Consider minutes of previous meetings: 

 
A. October 11, 2016, City Council Workshop Meeting 
B. October 11, 2016, City Council Regular Meeting 
 
Copies of the minutes are attached. Recommend approval. 
 

5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an Interlocal Assistance 
Agreement with the Central Texas Council of Governments (CTCOG) to 
continue funding for the volunteer coordinator position for the Belton Police 
Department’s RUOK? Senior Adult Outreach Program. 
 
See enclosed staff report from Assistant City Manager/Chief of Police Gene Ellis.  
Recommend authorizing the City Manager to execute the agreement as presented. 
 

6. Consider a resolution naming a new City of Belton park, located west of Ave. 
J and South of South Belton Middle School, as the Jeff Hamilton Neighbor-
hood Park. 

 
See Staff Report from Matt Bates, Director of Parks and Recreation. Recommend 
approval of the proposal to name the new City of Belton park as the Jeff Hamilton 
Neighborhood Park. Ms. Genevieve Gregg will be in attendance at the meeting. 

 
7. Consider adoption of a resolution directing the publication of notice of 

intention to issue combination tax and limited revenue certificates of 
obligation, series 2016, in a maximum principal amount not to exceed 
$9,700,000, and other matters related thereto. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Finance Brandon Bozon. Recommend adoption of 
the resolution directing publication of the notice as required for issuance of debt for 
these important utility projects. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
October 25, 2016 

Page 3 of 4 
 
 

Growth Management 
 
8. Conduct annexation public hearings and present Municipal Services Plans for 

seven areas: 
 

A. Area 1: Approximately 716.44 acres located on the east side of IH 35, along 
and south of Decker Road. The tract extends southward to the Lampasas 
River, and extends along the river to the south and southeast, connecting 
to existing city limits, east of Toll Bridge Road. 

 
B. Area 2: Approximately 198.69 acres located on the east side of IH 35, 

between the east/west portion of the Lampasas River and Elmer King Road. 
 

C. Area 3: Approximately 250.14 acres located south of the intersection of IH 
35 and the Lampasas River. The tract extends along the west side of IH 35, 
measuring approximately 1,000’ in width, and would add 1,000’ additional 
on the west side of IH 35 to the current 1,000’ total city limit width centered 
on IH 35. The tract extends southward along IH 35 south of Amity Road, 
and adjoins the Salado ETJ line. 

 
D. Area 4: Approximately 297.20 acres located south of the intersection of IH 

35 and the Lampasas River. The tract extends along the east side of IH 35, 
measuring approximately 1,000’ in width, and would add 1,000 additional 
feet to the current 1,000’ total city limit width centered on IH 35. The tract 
extends southward along IH 35 south of Amity Road, and adjoins the 
Salado ETJ line. 

 
E. Area 5: Approximately 228.27 acres located along and north of Sparta Road 

and west of the existing city limits, extending west to FM 439, and east 
along Sparta Road to the city limits.  

 
F. Area 6: Approximately 24.10 acres located generally along the proposed 

north/south alignment of Lake-to-Lake Road, north of Sendero Estates 
Subdivision, and south of FM 93.  

 
G. Area 7: Approximately 2.713 acres located on the south side of Avenue O, 

between Avenue O and Old Golf Course Road. 
 

See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Recommend conducting the public 
hearing on each of the seven areas under consideration for annexation. No other 
Council action is required, except to advise the public about the second public 
hearing, scheduled for Tuesday, November 1, 2016, at 5:30 p.m. at Harris 
Community Center. 

 
 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
October 25, 2016 

Page 4 of 4 
 
 

Planning and Zoning 
 
9. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural to Light 

Industrial Zoning District for a UPS parking lot on a 5.00 acre tract of land, 
located east of South Interstate 35 and south of Grove Road. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. At their October 18, 2016, 
meeting the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval 
of this zone change, and we concur in their recommendation. 

 
10. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change request from Multiple 

Family to Neighborhood Services Zoning District at 508 North Wall Street, 
located on the west side of North Wall Street, between East 5th and East 6th 
Avenues. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. At their October 18, 2016, 
meeting the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval 
of this zone change, and we concur in their recommendation. 

 
11. Consider a preliminary/final plat for Nolan Creek Industrial Park, an 84.958 

acre tract of land beginning 855’ south of FM 93 and located east of Interstate 
35, west of the Temple Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant, and north of Nolan 
Creek. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. At their October 18, 2016, 
meeting the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval 
of this preliminary/final plat with conditions, and we concur in their recommendation. 

 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time 
regarding any issue on this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 





City of Belton Receives Recognition for Transparency 
Efforts from Texas Comptroller 

 
Texas Comptroller Glenn Hegar announced City of Belton is the latest local government 
entity to achieve specific transparency goals through the Comptroller’s Transparency 
Stars program. City of Belton received a star in the area of Traditional Finances, which 
recognizes entities for their outstanding efforts in making their spending and revenue 
information available.  
 
Transparency Stars recognizes local government entities that provide easy online 
access to important financial data. 
 
“By providing meaningful financial data in addition to visual tools and analysis of its 
revenues and expenditures, City of Belton has shown a true commitment to Texas 
taxpayers. This effort achieves the goals set by my office’s Transparency Stars 
program,” Hegar said. “I am pleased to award City of Belton a star for its 
accomplishments.”  
 
The Comptroller’s office launched the Transparency Stars program in March to 
recognize cities, counties and school districts making important strides to greater 
government transparency. Local government entities can apply for stars in the areas of: 
 

• Traditional Finances, 
• Contracts and Procurement, 
• Economic Development, 
• Public Pensions, and 
• Debt Obligations. 

 
After receiving an initial star for Traditional Finances, remaining stars may be awarded 
in any order. For more information on the program, including specific guidelines and 
information on how to apply, visit the Comptroller’s Transparency Stars website. 
 
 

http://www.texastransparency.org/Local_Government/stars/


Belton City Council Workshop Meeting 
October 11, 2016 – 4:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in workshop session in the Smith Room at the Harris 
Community Center with the following members present: Mayor Marion Grayson, Mayor 
Pro Tem David K. Leigh (via telephone) and Councilmembers Craig Pearson, Jerri 
Gauntt, Paul Sanderford and Dan Kirkley. Councilmember Guy O’Banion was absent. 
Staff present included Sam Listi, Gene Ellis, Amy Casey, Brandon Bozon, Charlotte 
Walker and Paul Romer. 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Marion Grayson called the workshop to order at 4:30 p.m.  
 
2. Receive a presentation on Community Loan Centers and discuss the City of 

Belton being a participating employer in the Community Loan Center of the 
Heart of Texas. 

 
Stephanie O’Banion, Executive Director of United Way Central Texas, introduced 
representatives from the Heart of Texas Goodwill and Helping Hands Ministry of 
Belton. She then turned the presentation over to Shannon Kendrick-Wittmer, Vice 
President, Mission and Workforce Advancement who provided information on the 
development of community loan centers (CLC) throughout Texas as a way to 
compete directly with payday and car title lenders (see Exhibit “A”).  

 
Councilmember Dan Kirkley said that at the Texas Municipal League annual 
conference, he sat in on a session regarding community loan centers. He said that 
during the session two City Managers spoke highly of the community loan center 
concept and said that it was working well in their cities. 

 
Councilmember Jerri Gauntt asked what the average income was for the people 
taking out the payday title loans. Ms. Kendrick-Wittmer said that she did not have 
an average since the program was currently being administered by the Texas 
Community Capital - Community Loan Center. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem David K. Leigh said that this type of program was definitely needed. 
He asked what fees were being recovered by the software company. He also 
wanted to know what is done to prevent someone who is about to be terminated 
from taking out the loan and then not making the payments. Ms. Kendrick-Wittmer 
said that all the fees received from the payback of the loan are cycled back into the 
program to allow for more loans to be made. She stated that maintaining a good 
relationship with the HR departments at participating organizations would be 
paramount to preventing an employee from taking out a loan when he or she is 
about to be terminated.  
 
Dan Nisley, President/CEO, of HOT Goodwill said that the CLC is a 501(c)3, and its 
purpose is not to make money. He added that the $20 fee paid by borrowers is split 
between the local CLC and the Rio Grande Valley CLC who originated the program 
and developed the software. Mr. Leigh asked if anyone was receiving an 
administration fee. Ms. Kendrick-Wittmer said that HOT Goodwill is administering 



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2016 – Page 2 
 

  

the program, and they are receiving $10 of the $20 origination fee. Mr. Nisley added 
that some of the interest pays the salary of the staff administering the program. He 
said that their margin is approximately 6.5%. Steve Wolfe, Chairman of the CLC 
HOT Board of Directors, said that they try to maintain the 6.5% margin to put back 
into the pool. 

 
Councilmember Kirkley left the meeting at 5:04 p.m. 
 
Mr. Leigh asked who was the governing body of the program. Mr. Nisley said that 
there was a local board of directors and then also the IRS. Mr. Leigh asked if this 
local Board of Directors was also the same group who makes the money off of the 
margin. Mr. Nisley said yes, but he clarified that in a 501(c)3 organization, board 
members do not receive any funds. He said the only place to put the money is back 
into the pool or to pay the staff that administers the program. Mr. Wolfe added that 
they would have audited financials. Mr. Nisley stated that they have also invited 
each participating employer to have a representative on the board. 
 
Councilmember Paul Sanderford said it sounds like this model is catering to people 
with stable employment. He asked about the program’s ability to reach those with 
less than stable employment who he considers to be more “at risk.” Ms. Kendrick-
Wittmer said that they are not targeting anyone, they are simply offering this as an 
alternative to payday lending. She added that once the program has built up 
enough with stable employers, the CLC hopes to be able to offer the program to 
those with higher turnover rates. 
 
City Manager Sam Listi asked if there was a process to determine an applicant’s 
need, and Councilmember Craig Pearson added, “… and their ability to repay the 
loan.” Mr. Nisley indicated that only the HR Department can decline the loan. Ms. 
Kendrick-Wittmer said that the HR Department is only checking the basic 
information that has been provided by the employee. Mr. Nisley said there is no risk 
to the employer. If the employee leaves the employer, then the CLC will try to 
recoup the money through other means. 
 
Councilmember Jerri Gauntt said that she is concerned for the City’s HR/Payroll 
employees. She said that it seems that the HR Department will be put in the role of 
approving or denying loans. Mr. Nisley said that the only time that HR would decline 
a loan would be if they knew some adverse employment action was about to be 
taken against the employee applying for the loan. Ms. Kendrick-Wittmer said since 
actually they are just verifying the information provided by the applicant, the HR 
Department would not be declining the loan. Director of Finance Brandon Bozon 
asked, “What would be the basis for declining the verification if all the information 
provided is correct?” Mr. Nisley said that is where the partnership comes into play; 
otherwise, there would be too many defaulted loans which could kill the program. 
He said that he would not want the City to submit the loan information if they knew 
that the employee may be terminated in the near future. City Clerk Amy Casey 
asked if there was a time limit on verifying the loan application once it has been 



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2016 – Page 3 
 

  

submitted. Ms. Kendrick-Wittmer responded that there is no time limit, and HR 
could just not act on the application, leaving it in the queue.  
 
Mayor Marion Grayson said that she was hearing a lot of the bad scenarios that 
could take place, but she also knows that there is good in the program. She likes 
the fact that these loans are reported to the credit bureaus which helps improve an 
applicant’s credit score. 
 
Mr. Nisley concluded his presentation by saying that HOT Goodwill only receives 
direct reimbursement for payroll costs and other expenses related to the program; 
Goodwill does not receive an administration fee for his salary. The charges include 
one employee’s salary and copies, and Goodwill is not charging for use of office 
space by the CLC.  
 
He added that there is also a financial literacy component to this program. Financial 
literacy will be offered by us and our partners; however, we cannot require 
applicants to take the course.  
 
City Manager Listi asked what the group was expecting from the City of Belton. Mr. 
Nisley said they would like the City of Belton to be a participating employer. Director 
of Finance Brandon Bozon asked what happens if an employee who originally 
elected to make payroll deductions tells the HR Department that he or she no 
longer desires to have payments payroll deducted. Mr. Nisley responded that the 
City just needs to inform the CLC. They will pursue payment through ACH or other 
means. 
 

3. Adjourn. The Mayor adjourned the workshop at 5:22 p.m. 
 

 
 

_____________________________  
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2016 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room at the Harris 
Community Center with the following members present: Mayor Marion Grayson, Mayor 
Pro Tem David K. Leigh (via videoconference) and Councilmembers Craig Pearson, 
Jerri Gauntt, Paul Sanderford and Dan Kirkley (arrived 6:03 p.m.). Councilmember Guy 
O’Banion was absent. Staff present included John Messer, Gene Ellis, Amy Casey, 
Brandon Bozon, Erin Smith, Chris Brown, Byron Sinclair, Angellia Points, Kim Kroll, 
Matt Bates, Paul Romer, Bruce Pritchard, Aaron Harris, Charlotte Walker and Doug 
Taylor. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Councilmember Jerri Gauntt and 
the Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag was led by Public Information Officer Paul 
Romer. The Invocation was given by Darren Walker, Pastor of First United Methodist 
Church. 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Marion Grayson called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m.  
 
2. Public Comments. Janis Holmes, 505 Red River Road, stated that she was 

concerned about the condition of the property located at 438 N. Wall known as the 
1874 Church. She said that she was a member of the Bell Fine Arts group that has 
a common property line with the church. The condition of the property has 
deteriorated and contains tall grass, raccoons, rats and fleas. The church removed 
the rock from the building in order to inspect the exterior, and there is no money to 
put the rock back on the church. The rock is stacked up on the property. She would 
like the City Staff to look into these code violations. Item was referred to 
management. 

 
3. Proclamations and Recognitions: 
 

A. Belton’s National Night Out Block Party Awards Presentation  
 
Assistant City Manager/Chief of Police Gene Ellis and National Night Out 
Coordinator, Sergeant Doug Taylor, presented the following awards to various 
hosts of National Night Out parties throughout Belton. There were 18 block 
parties throughout the community. 
 
Best Neighborhood Unity – Dunn’s Canyon Townhomes, Hosts: Wiley and 
Mary Shockley 
 
Rookie of the Year 2016 – Yettie Polk Park, Host: Brian Kinard 
 
Best Party Theme – Grand Avenue Theaters, Host: Grand Avenue 
Management 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2016 – Page 2 
 

  

Best Block Party 2016 – Belle Oaks/Miller Heights, Hosts: Harper-Talasek 
Funeral Home, Lena Armstrong Library, and Belton Parks and Recreation 
Department 
 

B. Proclamation – Complex Regional Pain Syndrome Awareness Month – 
November 2016 and Color the World Orange Day – November 7, 2016 

 
Mayor Grayson presented Kimberly Schwertfeger with this proclamation. 

 
C. Proclamation – National Colonial Heritage Month – October 2016 

 
Mayor Grayson presented this proclamation to Welba Dorsey of the Betty Martin 
Chapter of the Daughters of the American Revolution. 

 
D. Proclamation – International Credit Union Day – October 20, 2016 
 

Several employees of the Texas Partners Federal Credit Union were present to 
receive this proclamation from Mayor Grayson.   

 
E. Introduction of New City of Belton employees 
 

Department Heads introduced their new employees hired during the second and 
third quarters of 2016. Please see attached list (Exhibit A). 

 
Consent Agenda 
 
Items 4-6 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and 
may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item 
may be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
4. Consider minutes of the September 27, 2016, City Council Meeting 

 
5. Consider appointments/reappointments to the following: 

 
A. Electrical Board – Bill Barge and Jamie Sanderford were reappointed to another 

two term. 
 

B. Bell County Health District – Wayne Carpenter was appointed to a three year 
term and will replace JoAn Dillard as the City’s representative on this board. 

 
6. Consider authorizing the following purchases through the BuyBoard 

purchasing cooperative: 
 

A. Skid Steer Loader for the Parks Department; and 
B. Brush Truck for the Public Works Department. 

 



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2016 – Page 3 
 

  

Upon a motion by Councilmember Craig Pearson, and a second by Councilmember 
Jerri Gauntt, the Council unanimously approved the Consent Agenda upon a vote 
of 5-0. 

 
Councilmember Dan Kirkley arrived at 6:03 
 
Miscellaneous 

 
7. Consider authorizing a Park Sponsorship Program to allow civic clubs, 

businesses and other community partners to sponsor parks located in the 
City of Belton. 

 
Director of Parks and Recreation Matt Bates said that in 2015 the Lions Club 
President approached the City about allowing the Lions Club to sponsor Heritage 
Park. Staff realized there was no policy in place to effectively handle the scope of 
this request, and began researching other cities across the Country/State to find out 
how they handle such requests. 

 
As Staff began developing the proposed program, there were five areas that 
needed to be established. 

 
• Donation Amount: It was important that prior to any sponsorship of a park that 

the requesting entity had or has pledged to donate. This amount would vary 
depend on the classification/size of said park. This would signify that the sponsor 
is/has committed to the development and enhancement of its chosen park. 
 

• Annual Donation: With a sponsor having made a prior donation to the park, 
Staff felt it was important for a sponsor to continue its commitment on an annual 
basis to the park. 

 
• Park Classifications: As referenced above in the donation amount, classifying 

the parks was important so that each park had an achievable chance of being 
sponsored whether big or small. For classifications, Staff utilized the newly 
adopted Belton Parks and Recreation Strategic Master Plan. Park categories 
include Special Purpose, Community, and Neighborhood. 

 
• Park Cleanups: Similar to the Adopt-a-Park program currently in place, the 

sponsoring entity would commit to two cleanups per year, one of which would 
include participation in the annual ‘One Community One Day’ event. 

 
• What does the sponsor receive: It is proposed that the sponsoring entity 

receive a masonry stone sign that would be placed at the front of the park, near 
existing park name signage noting the sponsorship. Sponsor would also receive 
a waiver of entire park/pavilion rental at the sponsored park up to five times per 
year. This waiver would exclude the use of Athletic Facilities. 

 



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2016 – Page 4 
 

  

City Staff also discussed the procedures for the program which includes presenting 
the sponsorship proposal to both the Parks Board and City Council for approval.  

 
At its meeting on October 3, 2016, the Parks Board unanimously recommended the 
proposed Parks Sponsorship Program. 
 
Councilmember Paul Sanderford asked how the potential sponsors will be vetted 
since a denial of sponsorship could become a case of discrimination should the 
sponsor’s values not align with the City of Belton’s mission. Mr. Listi said that if a 
group came forward wanting to sponsor a park, and that the group’s mission didn’t 
align with the City’s mission, Staff and Council would address it at that time. 
 
Mr. James Harris said that the Belton Lion’s Club is honored to be the first group to 
commit to sponsoring a park. 
 
Councilmember Jerri Gauntt said she was surprised that this was not already 
addressed through one of the City’s other parks programs. Mr. Bates said that the 
Adopt-a-Park Program and the Legacy Program remain valuable and are utilized, 
but they don’t really address the vision and scope of the park sponsorship program. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Dan Kirkley and a second by Councilmember 
Paul Sanderford, item 7 was unanimously approved upon a vote of 6-0. 

 
8. Consider an ordinance establishing a Historic Tax Exemption Program for the 

City of Belton.  
 
Director of Planning Erin Smith said that many cities in Texas incentivize historic 
preservation through local property tax exemptions. The City of Belton currently 
offers no incentives for historic residential properties. She said that there are over 
300 residential properties in local historic districts that would benefit from an historic 
preservation tax exemption. A tax exemption program for historic properties would 
promote investment in historic neighborhoods.     
 
Mrs. Smith explained that the proposed Historic Tax Exemption Program will be 
available to designated local landmark properties, or properties containing a 
historically significant main structure within a local historic overlay district that 
undergo a substantial rehabilitation, except the Downtown Belton Commercial 
Historic District (DBCHD). The properties within the DBCHD are eligible for the 
current tax abatement program the City has in place, so extending this program to 
that area is not needed. The threshold for substantial improvements would be 25% 
of the pre-improvement assessed value of the structure. An ad valorem tax 
exemption will create an abatement for up to five years on increases in City of 
Belton property taxes resulting from an approved major renovation to a historic 
building. The exemption would only apply to City ad valorem property taxes, it will 
not apply to Bell County, Clearwater U.W.C.D., or BISD school taxes.  
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2016 – Page 5 
 

  

Mrs. Smith added that the overall goal is to encourage investment in historic 
properties through a tax exemption program without creating a large tax burden on 
the City.  City taxes will still be received on the pre-improvement assessed value, 
and the property owner will benefit by not paying taxes on the increase in their 
property value for five years.  

 
Mayor Grayson asked if a business would be eligible for the abatement if they had 
completed a rehabilitation project in the last year. Mrs. Smith said no, the program 
requires that work not be started until the application has been approved. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Leigh said that this sounds like a great program, but he added that 
it would also be good to work with applicants in a cost share for infrastructure such 
as sidewalks that need to be replaced. City Manager Listi said he thought that was 
a good idea, and Staff could look into addressing that as requests emerge. 
 
Councilmember Jerri Gauntt clarified that the City will continue to collect taxes on 
the property at the pre-improvement value. Mrs. Smith said that the abatement 
would only be on the increased value, and only the City’s property tax is abated. 
Mrs. Gauntt asked if it was possible to separate out the possible increase in the 
land value from the residential value for abatement. Director of Finance Brandon 
Bozon said that he felt it was Staff’s intention to abate the entire property, but he 
could research that possibility with the Tax Appraisal District. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Craig Pearson and a second by Councilmember 
Paul Sanderford, the following captioned ordinance was unanimously approved 
upon a vote of 6-0. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016-45 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
ESTABLISHING A HISTORIC TAX EXEMPTION PROGRAM FOR THE CITY OF 
BELTON; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

 
9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into an agreement for 

professional services related to the design of the North Belton Water Tank 
and Waterline. 

 
Director of Internal Services/City Engineer Angellia Points said that the City of 
Belton has reached the TCEQ threshold for total water storage capacity that 
triggers the requirement for a third water storage tank. She said that the City 
currently has approximately 6,350 water connections and two elevated storage 
tanks. The Loop 121 tank capacity is 500,000 gallons (or 0.5 MG), and the Miller 
Heights tank capacity is 0.75 MG, totaling 1.25 MG of elevated storage available.  

 



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2016 – Page 6 
 

  

Mrs. Points explained that additional water storage is required to meet the TCEQ 
regulations for total available water storage, and a 1 MG elevated storage tank is 
proposed to be constructed in northwest Belton. She said that on January 27, 2015, 
Council approved the acquisition of a 5.043 acre tract of land north of the future 
Chisholm Trail Parkway and between Canyon Heights and Spring Canyon Roads. 
She added that 16-inch waterlines will be needed to connect the 21-inch 
transmission line to the tank and to feed water from the elevated storage tank to the 
8-inch waterline along Chisholm Trail Parkway to pressurize Belton’s water system.  

 
Mrs. Points said that Staff has worked with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates to 
evaluate the tank site and the line sizes needed to supply and feed water from the 
tank. The potential for a single contractor having the ability to bid both the waterline 
and tank is highly unlikely. The estimated construction costs will be determined 
during the design phase; however, KPA and Staff estimate the construction costs 
for the elevated water tank to be $2,500,000 and the waterlines $950,000.  

 
Staff recommends authorization of a professional services agreement with Kasberg, 
Patrick & Associates in the amount of $172,600 for professional services to design 
and bid the North Belton Water Tank and Waterlines. 
 
Mayor Grayson asked if this project was part of the bond that will be issued. City 
Manager Listi said that this project is included as a part of the bond issue along with 
the South Belton Sewer System. 
 
Councilmember Pearson asked if an irrigation meter is counted the same as a 
water service meter connection when calculating the water storage requirements. 
Mrs. Points said that it was. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Craig Pearson and a second by Councilmember 
Paul Sanderford, item 9 was unanimously approved upon a vote of 6-0. 

 
10. Consider a recommendation to designate a mascot and brand for Belton’s 

water systems. 
 
Director of Internal Services/City Engineer Angellia Points explained that in an effort 
to create a positive and memorable image for Belton’s water systems, a mascot is 
proposed to be used for public education and engagement.  

 
Objectives for the mascot included: 
 
• Being easily recognizable; 
• Being used for potable (domestic) water, sewer and stormwater applications; 
• Being unique, friendly, relatable; 
• Being named, easy to say and spell; and 
• Being related to a brand to be used in educational materials. 

 



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2016 – Page 7 
 

  

Mrs. Points added that the mascot will be used to educate the public and bring 
awareness to Belton’s water systems at various events, functions, and locations 
within Belton. The goal of the mascot is to bring awareness to Belton’s Water and 
the importance of the City’s water, wastewater, and stormwater systems. The 
mascot will promote water conservation, drinking water quality, the importance of 
wastewater (sewer) systems, and stormwater protection, to name a few. 
Mrs. Points introduced Hydroman to the Council and Staff. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Craig Pearson and a second by Councilmember 
Dan Kirkley, item 10 was unanimously approved upon a vote of 6-0. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem David K. Leigh left the meeting at 6:51 p.m. 
 

11. Conduct a work session on pending annexation study. 
 
City Manager Listi provided an update on the annexation proceedings and 
discussed some minor adjustment to the boundaries of the areas. He said that 
three properties were missed during the property owner notification, and that 
decreases the area under consideration for annexation by 40 acres.  

 
Mr. Listi said that the public hearings will be held on October 25 and November 1, 
2016. He added that he and Erin Smith met with the Tax Appraisal District to 
determine which properties are eligible for a non-annexation Development 
Agreement for one of the three exemptions of timber, agricultural and wildlife. He 
said that the Development Agreements will be mailed to the property owners this 
week. Several of the properties under consideration are eligible for Development 
Agreements. Listi said that not everybody who is eligible for a Development 
Agreement will opt to execute one; however, it is our responsibility to notify them of 
their eligibility. He discussed the length of time the properties will be eligible to 
remain outside the City limits. He recommended Areas 1, 3, 4 and 6 have a term of 
five years, and Areas 2 and 5 have a ten year term. He added that the City may 
agree to extend these Development Agreements depending upon development in 
the area at the time. 
 
Councilmember Pearson asked if the City would be required to provide services to 
the areas that are under a Development Agreement. Mr. Listi responded that the 
City has no obligation to provide services while the properties remain outside the 
city limits. Mr. Pearson asked if the County would continue provide services, and 
Mr. Listi responded that the County would continue to provide services that are 
currently provided to the property by the County.  
 
Councilmember Gauntt said that almost all the properties in Area 5 are exempt with 
the exception of one in the middle and one on the far end. Mr. Listi said that the 
process does lend itself to creating “donut-holes,” but the City needs to go through 
the process. The Council may decide that it is not appropriate to annex that area at 
this time due to these or other reasons. 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2016 – Page 8 
 

  

Mr. Listi spoke on the development of the municipal services plans for each area, 
and he went through the draft service plan for Area 1. He also reviewed future 
water service along the southern part of IH 35, which would cost an estimated 
$3.5M. Funding for water service is not included in the proposed bond issue. 
 
Finally, Listi reviewed the schedule for the remaining portions of the annexation 
process. No Council action was required on this work session item. 
 

Mayor Grayson thanked the Public Works Department for the great job they did on the 
street maintenance projects recently completed.  
 
There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:16 p.m. 
 

 
 

_____________________________  
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



Belton City Council Meeting 
October 11, 2016 – Page 9 
 

  

Exhibit “A” 
 

New Employee Introductions   
Department Presentation to Council   
10/11/16    
DEPT EMPLOYEE POSITION DATE OF HIRE 

    
Finance Christina Sparks Staff Accountant 06/20/16 

 Taylor Marburger Accounting Technician 07/18/16 
    

Police Joshua Gammill Police Officer 05/11/16 
 David Morrill Police Officer 05/11/16 
 Jacob Schmille Police Officer 05/11/16 
    

Library Berta Venegas Library Clerk 06/06/16 
    

Parks Kendall Brice Maintenance Worker 05/31/16 
    

Streets Melissa Saunders Maintenance Worker 05/31/16 
 Rickie Burchett Maintenance Worker 08/08/16 
    

Sewer Austin Collins Maintenance Worker 06/06/16 
    

Water Chad Campbell Maintenance Worker 06/13/16 
 Ryan Deeters Maintenance Worker 07/05/16 
    
    

 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #5 
     
Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an Interlocal Assistance Agreement with 
the Central Texas Council of Governments (CTCOG) to continue funding for the volunteer 
coordinator position for the Belton Police Department’s RUOK? senior adult outreach 
program.  
 
Originating Department 
 
Police Department – Gene Ellis, Assistant City Manager/Chief of Police 
 
Summary Information 
 
In May of 2014, the City entered into a partnership with the Area Agency on Aging of 
Central Texas, a subdivision of CTCOG, to enhance the Belton Police Department’s RUOK? 
program. The RUOK? Program is currently serving over 130 senior adults living alone. The 
part time volunteer coordinator position funded by the Area Agency on Aging has been a 
key component to the success of this lifesaving program. In the past three years, the 
RUOK? Program has been credited with saving four lives.  
 
Our most recent interlocal agreement ended on September 30, 2016. We are seeking to 
renew our interlocal agreement with CTCOG to continue this program and retain the 
volunteer coordinator for senior adult outreach through the RUOK? program. This extension 
will provide funding for the program through the end of this fiscal year. The Area Agency on 
Aging has indicated they will continue funding this program for another fiscal year in the 
amount of $21,000. The funding is used for reimbursement of costs related directly to the 
program to include: wages and benefits; communication and computer equipment; and 
other program expenses. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Amount: $21,000  
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No 
 
If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed     Capital Project Funds 
 
Funding Source(s): Grant funds from CTCOG will cover all expenses related to the volunteer 
coordinator. 
 
 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the Interlocal Assistance Agreement with CTCOG and authorizing 
the City Manager to sign.  
 
Attachment 
Interlocal Assistance Agreement between the City of Belton and CTCOG 
 



1 

 

INTERLOCAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 
For A Partnership Between the Central Texas Council Of  
Governments and the City of Belton Police Department  

to Enhance Services to Senior Adults in Belton 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF BELL 

 This agreement is made and entered into by and between, the Central Texas 

Council of Governments and the City of Belton, pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, 

Texas Government Code Chapter 791. 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF BELTON (hereinafter “CITY”) has an outreach program to 

check on the welfare of senior citizens that is administered by the CITY OF BELTON 

POLICE DEPARTMENT (hereinafter “BPD”) and known as the RUOK? Program, and 

 WHEREAS, the CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS (hereinafter 

“CTCOG”) desires to partner with BPD through the Area Agency on Aging of Central 

Texas to provide funding for a volunteer coordinator for the RUOK? telephone reassurance 

program to senior adults in Belton by directing grant funds from the Department of Aging 

and Disability Services (DADS) to enhance the services to senior adults, the Parties hereto 

enter into this Interlocal Assistance Agreement, and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 791.001 of the Texas Government Code, political 

subdivisions are authorized to enter into Interlocal Cooperation Agreements for 

governmental purposes. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
PARTIES  

1.01 The following local governmental entities are Parties to this Agreement and the 
signatures of their authorized representatives below indicate acceptance of its terms: 



2 

 

A. The CITY OF BELTON, Texas (“CITY”) acting by and through its authorized 
representative; and  

B. CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS, Texas (“CTCOG”) acting by 
and through its authorized representative.  
 

ARTICLE II 
PURPOSE 

2.01 It is the intent of the Parties to enter into this Agreement directing CTCOG 
Area Agency on Aging of Central Texas DADS grant funds in the amount of $21,000 to the 
CITY to fund a part time volunteer coordinator position to enhance BPD’s RUOK? program 
and establishing protocols, procedures, and guidelines for enhancing the outreach to 
senior adults in Belton through this program.  

ARTICLE III 
TERM OF MOU 

3.01 Notwithstanding the signing date, this Agreement shall be in effect for the 
period beginning October 1, 2016 and ending September 30, 2017, unless terminated by 
CITY or CTCOG.  It is the intention of both parties to renew this agreement annually if 
funding is available.  

ARTICLE IV 
BPD’s RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.01 BPD will ensure that graduates of the Belton Citizens Police Academy are 
trained with providing telephone reassurance.  

4.02 BPD shall provide CTCOG a monthly report of the number of calls made to 
seniors 60 years and over, including their names. Monthly calls will be made and 
documented with the help of the RUOK? program. 

4.03 BPD shall provide DADS required forms: DADS intake and signed Client’s 
Rights and Responsibilities (PRR) annually for each client 60 years and older that 
participates in the RUOK? telephone reassurance program. 

4.04 BPD shall ensure that it reports on the welfare checks patrol officers conduct 
on senior adults in the program as a result of threat to health, safety, welfare, or a crime. 

 
ARTICLE V 

CTCOG’s RESPONSIBILITIES 



3 

 

5.01 CTCOG agrees to direct $21,000 in DADS grant funds for calls made during 
fiscal year 2016 to the CITY for BPD to fund a volunteer coordinator for the RUOK? 
program and reimburse the CITY for approved costs associated with this position. 

5.02 CTCOG shall provide the CITY immediate notice if funding becomes 
unavailable. 

5.03 CTCOG will refer older residents of Belton that may be in need of telephone 
reassurance or welfare checks to the Belton Police Department. 

5.04 CTCOG agrees to direct additional funding for the continuance of this program 
in fiscal year 2015 if grant funding is available for the program. 

ARTICLE VI 

COSTS 

6.01 The CITY will hire a part time volunteer coordinator and CTCOG will reimburse 
the CITY at least $21,000 for the costs of wages, benefits, equipment, and other 
authorized expenses related to this position. 

ARTICLE VII 

TERMINATION OF MOU 

7.01 CITY or CTCOG may terminate this MOU by giving thirty (30) days’ written 
notice of such termination.   

ARTICLE VIII 

AMENDMENTS 

 8.01 This Agreement may be amended by the mutual agreement of the Parties 
hereto, in a writing to be attached to and incorporated into this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX 

LEGAL CONSTRUCTION 

 9.01 In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be 
held invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision, hereof and the Agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained 
herein.  



4 

 

ARTICLE X 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 10.01 This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreement, either oral or in 
writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject hereof, and no other 
agreement, statement or promise relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, which is 
not contained herein, shall be valid or binding. 

ARTICLE XI 

NOTICE 

 11.01 Any notice given hereunder by any Party shall be made in writing, and may 
be affected by personal delivery or by certified mail, return receipt requested, to all Parties 
listed in this paragraph: 

 City of Belton 

 Central Texas Council of Governments 

  

ARTICLE XII 

ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL 

12.01 This Agreement and all obligations hereunder shall not be binding upon the 
Parties until approved by the respective authorized representatives of each Party.  

 

AGREED TO AND EXECUTED by the below authorized representatives of the City 
of Belton, Texas, on the _____ day of _____, 2016. 

 

CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS  

 

_________________________    
Sam Listi, City Manager      
 
 



5 

 

AGREED TO AND EXECUTED by the below authorized representatives of the 
Central Texas Council of Governments of Belton, Texas, on the _____ day of ______, 
2016. 

 

CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

 

__________________________      
Jim Reed, Executive Director    
 
 
 
__________________________ 
H. Richard McGhee 
CTCOG Director of Area Agency on Aging   

 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #6 
 
Consider a resolution naming a new City of Belton park, located west of Ave J and South 
Belton Middle School, as the Jeff Hamilton Neighborhood Park. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Parks - Matt Bates, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
Summary Information 
 
On September 28, 2016, the Parks Naming Committee unanimously voted to recommend 
the naming of a new City of Belton park located west of Ave J and South Belton Middle 
School as Jeff Hamilton Neighborhood Park. 
 
Those selected to be on the Committee included: 
 
• Director of Planning - Erin Smith 
• Director of Finance - Brandon Bozon 
• Director of Internal Services/City Engineer - Angellia Points 
• Parks Superintendent - James Grant 
• Grants and Special Projects Coordinator - Aaron Harris 
• Public Information Officer - Paul Romer 
• Director of Parks and Recreation - Matt Bates 
 
Ms. Genevieve Gregg, a descendent of Jeff Hamilton, had spoken previously at City Council 
and Civic Club meetings in the area, with a goal of keeping his legacy alive. City staff has 
wanted for some time to honor Jeff Hamilton at a facility, and committee members agreed 
that the park’s proximity to SBMS, coupled with Hamilton’s passion for education, made the 
location a prime area to honor his legacy. This proposed park naming was presented to the 
BISD school board on October 17, 2016, at its regular Board meeting, and Board members 
expressed strong support for the proposed name honoring this important person and his 
strong Belton connection. 
 
The 3.55 acres of park land, donated by BISD, will include a playground and swing set, 
along with two picnic tables, two benches, a BBQ Grill, trash cans, and a ¼ mile concrete 
trail.  
 
 
 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 2 of 2   
 

 
Internet Posting of Proposed Names 
 
We have complied with the Facility Naming Policy requirement, in VI.(g), requiring internet 
posting of proposed park names a minimum of ten (10) days prior to scheduled Council 
action. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Fiscal impact will be nominal, involving signage and storyboard for Park. 
 
Recommendation 
 
At its meeting on October 3, 2016, the Parks Board unanimously recommended this park 
name, and we concur. Recommend Council approve the proposed park name Jeff Hamilton 
Neighborhood Park. 
 
Attachments 
PowerPoint Presentation showing proposed Park 
History of Jeff Hamilton - Texas Historical Association 
Street Renaming and Facility Naming Policy 
Resolution 



CITY OF BELTON 
PARK NAMING 

Jeff Hamilton Neighborhood Park 
1230 W. Ave J 
Belton, Texas 



History of the Park 

■ BISD granted parkland to the City of Belton through a Special Warranty Gift Deed on 
January 23rd, 2012. 

■ CIP Bond was issued in 2013- Included $70,000 for playground and park 
development. 

■ Spring 2015- City applied for a matching grant from Texas Parks and Wildlife that 
would have doubled available funds.  

■ Spring 2016- We were notified we were not awarded funds.  

■ Summer/ Fall 2016- Identified plan and playground structure. Scheduled Mid 
November install. 



Location of Parkland 



Park Layout 

■ ¼ Mile Concrete Trail. 

■ Playground Structure. 

■ 2 Benches 

■ 2 Picnic Tables 

■ BBQ Grill 

■ Trash Cans 

■ Entrance Sign 

■ Storyboard 

 



Timeline for Completion 
■ September, 2016- Review and select 

playground equipment. 
■ October- Site prep. Includes: 

– Shredding/ Mowing. 
– Capping off onsite well. 
– Tree trimming. 
– Light grading where needed. 
– Trail path prep. 

■ November 14th- Playground delivered 
and installed. 

■ Early December- Pouring of concrete 
trail.  

■ January 1- Department deadline for 
opening. 



Origins of Proposal and 
Facility Street  Naming Policy 

■ Ms. Genevieve Gregg, a descendent 
of Jeff Hamilton spoke at City 
Council and Civic Clubs to raise 
awareness of Hamilton's legacy. 

■ City Staff wanted to find a suitable 
location that would honor Jeff 
Hamilton and signify his importance 
to the City of Belton. 

 



History of Jeff Hamilton 
■ Born a slave on the Singleton Gibson 

Plantation in Kentucky April 16, 1840. 

■ Taken from his mother in October 1853 
to sell at an auction in Huntsville. 
Senator Sam Houston was in town that 
day and noticed Hamilton crying and 
purchased him. 

■ Houston took Hamilton to his home, 
where he was a playmate of the Houston 
children, a personal bodyguard and valet 
of Sam Houston, and had a close, loving 
relationship with the family. 



History of Jeff Hamilton- Cont. 

■ While with the Houston family he learned not 
only reading, writing, and arithmetic but also 
had lessons on religion and responsibility with 
the Houston family. 

■ When Houston was elected governor of Texas 
in 1859, he appointed Hamilton as his office 
boy. 

■ When Houston freed his slaves in October 
1862, Hamilton remained with the family. He 
was Houston's personal body servant and was 
with him at the time of his death. 



History of Jeff Hamilton- Cont. 

■ Afterward, Hamilton moved with the 
Houston family to Independence, Texas, 
and remained with them until Mrs. 
Houston died. In Independence Hamilton 
helped the Houstons and worked as a 
janitor at Baylor College from 1889 to 
1903. When the female college (now 
Mary Hardin-Baylor University) moved to 
Belton, Hamilton moved there too. 



History of Jeff Hamilton- Cont. 
■ Throughout his life, Hamilton 

remained an honorary member of 
the Houston family and attended all 
their reunions and special family 
events. 

■ Hamilton revered the Houston 
family until his death on April 3, 
1941, in Belton and was buried in 
the East Belton Cemetery. Two 
Texas historical markers honor him, 
one at his gravesite and one on the 
University of Mary Hardin-Baylor 
campus. 

 



Recommendation 

■ At its meeting on October 3rd, 2016, the Parks 
Board unanimously recommended approval of 
this name, and we concur. Recommend 
Council approve the proposed Park naming as 
Jeff Hamilton Neighborhood Park. 

































RESOLUTION NO. 2016-30-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
NAMING A CITY OF BELTON PARK, AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETING 
CLAUSE. 
 
 
 WHEREAS, a Parks Naming Committee comprised of City Staff was established 
to recommend the name for a new City of Belton Park;  
 
 WHEREAS, on October 3, 2016, the Parks Naming Committee made the 
recommendation of a name to the Parks Board, and the Parks Board concurred in 
recommending a name to the City Council as: 

 
New Park located west of Avenue J and South of  

South Belton Middle School – Jeff Hamilton Neighborhood Park 
 

WHEREAS, in compliance with the City of Belton’s Street Renaming/Facilities 
Naming Policy, the proposed name has been published on the City’s website; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the 
public interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council declares that the name for the Park contained in the 
preamble of this Resolution is hereby adopted, such that Belton’s newest park is hereby 
named Jeff Hamilton Neighborhood Park. 
 
 Part 2:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 25th day of October, 2016. 
 

THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
 
 

____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST:                                                       
 
 
____________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk  



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 1 of 1   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #7 
     
Consider adoption of a resolution directing the publication of notice of intention to issue 
combination tax and limited revenue certificates of obligation, series 2016, in a maximum 
principal amount not to exceed $9,700,000, and other matters related thereto.   
  
Originating Department 
 
Finance Department – Brandon Bozon, Director of Finance 
 
Summary Information 
 
Over the past six months, Council has, at various meetings and workshops, received 
briefings on the infrastructure needs of the City. During those briefings the North Belton 
Water Tower and South IH 35 Sewer projects were determined to be candidates for funding 
in a potential 2016 debt offering. The maximum amount of the debt offering is set at 
$9,700,000 to maintain bank qualified status.  
 
 Fiscal Impact 
 
De minimis impact at this time for the publication of notices.  
 
A $9.7M, 20 year note at 3.25%, with debt service structured to complement our existing 
water and sewer debt service, would result in a total repayment of approximately $13.76M. 
The FY 2017 Water and Sewer Fund budget contains $345,081 for the FY 2017 service of 
this potential utility debt issue. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the  attached resolution.  
 
Attachments 
1. Resolution directing the publication of notice of intention to issue combination tax and 

limited revenue certificates of obligation, series 2016 
2. Model of potential debt service schedule 
3. North Belton Water Tower exhibits 
4. South IH 35 Sewer exhibit 

 



 
Belton CO2016: Notice Resolution 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-31-R 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF INTENTION TO 
ISSUE COMBINATION TAX AND LIMITED REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF 
OBLIGATION, SERIES 2016 AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

  
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF BELL 
CITY OF BELTON 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council (the "Council") of the City of Belton, Texas (the "City") 

finds that the payment in whole or in part of contractual obligations incurred or to be incurred for 
the purposes set forth in Exhibit "A" attached hereto (the "Contractual Obligations") would be 
beneficial to the inhabitants of the City and are needed to perform essential City functions; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Council has deemed it advisable to give notice of intention to issue 
certificates of obligation in a maximum principal amount not to exceed $9,700,000 (the 
"Certificates") pursuant to the provisions of the Certificate of Obligation Act of 1971, Section 
271.041 et seq., Local Government Code (the "Act") for the purpose of financing the Contractual 
Obligations; and 
 

WHEREAS, prior to the issuance of the Certificates, the City is required under the Act to 
publish notice of its intention to issue the Certificates once a week for two consecutive weeks in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the City with the first publication to be at least 31 days before 
the date tentatively set for passage of the ordinance authorizing the Certificates, the notice stating: 
(i) the time and place tentatively set for the passage of the ordinance authorizing the issuance of the 
Certificates, (ii) the maximum amount and purpose of the Certificates to be authorized, and (iii) the 
manner in which the Certificates will be paid; and 
 

WHEREAS, prior to the issuance of the Certificates, the City is additionally required by 
Section 8.15 of its Charter to hold a public hearing and to publish notice of such public hearing 
summarizing the statutory provisions for petition and election with respect to the Certificates at 
least once a week for three consecutive weeks; and 
 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and 
public notice of the time, place and purpose of the meeting was given, all as required by Chapter 
551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, 
TEXAS: 

 
Section 1. Attached hereto is a form of the Notice of Intention to issue the Certificates, the 

form and substance of which is hereby adopted and approved. 
 



 
 

Section 2. The City Clerk or other authorized representatives of the City, shall cause the 
notice to be published in substantially the form attached hereto, in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City, once a week for three consecutive weeks, the date of the first publication to 
be at least 31 days prior to the time set for the ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Certificates 
as shown in the notice. In addition to the foregoing publications, the City Clerk or other authorized 
representatives of the City, may also cause such notice to additionally be published in any other 
publication within the City deemed to be appropriate for providing additional notice to the public; 
provided that such additional publication is not required to satisfy the foregoing requirements with 
respect to the timing of publication. 
 

Section 3. The City Council hereby authorizes the disbursement of a fee equal to the lesser 
of (i) one-tenth of one percent of the principal amount of each series of obligations being issued or 
(ii) $9,500 for each series, provided that such fee shall not be less than $750, to the Attorney 
General of Texas Public Finance Division for payment of the examination fee charged by the State 
of Texas for the Attorney General's review and approval of public securities and credit agreements, 
as required by Section 1202.004 of the Texas Government Code. The appropriate member of the 
City's staff is hereby instructed to take the necessary measures to make this payment. The City is 
also authorized to reimburse the appropriate City funds for such payment from proceeds of the 
Certificates. 
 

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. The Mayor 
and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the certificate to which this 
Resolution is attached on behalf of the City and to do any and all things proper and necessary to 
carry out the intent of this Resolution. 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 25th day of October, 2016. 

 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 

Marion Grayson, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 

 
 

  



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 NOTICE OF INTENTION TO ISSUE 
 CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that it is the intention of the City Council of the City of 
Belton, Texas, to issue interest bearing certificates of obligation of the City entitled "City of 
Belton, Texas Combination Tax and Limited Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2016" for 
the purpose of paying contractual obligations incurred or to be incurred by the City for (1) 
constructing, improving and/or extending the City's waterworks and sewer system, including 
construction of a North Belton water tank and the South Belton sewer extension, including the 
acquisition of any necessary easements or land and (2) the payment of professional services in 
connection therewith including legal, fiscal and engineering fees and the costs of issuance in 
connection with the certificates. The City Council tentatively proposes to authorize the issuance of 
such Certificates of Obligation at its regular meeting place at the Harris Community Center in the 
Wright Room located at 401 North Alexander in Belton, Texas 76513, at a regular meeting to 
commence at 5:30 p.m. on the 13th day of December, 2016. The maximum amount of Certificates 
of Obligation that may be authorized for such purpose is $9,700,000. The City Council presently 
proposes to provide for the payment of such Certificates of Obligation from the levy of ad valorem 
taxes and from a limited pledge of the surplus revenues derived from the operation of the City's 
combined waterworks and sewer system, after payment of all operation and maintenance expenses 
and all debt service, reserve and other requirements in connection with all of the City's revenue 
bonds or other obligations (now or hereafter outstanding) which are payable from all or any part of 
the revenues of the City's combined waterworks and sewer system, which amount shall not exceed 
$1,000. 
 

In accordance with the City's home rule charter, the City also intends to hold a public 
hearing with respect to the proposed issuance of the Certificates of Obligation at its regular 
meeting place at the Harris Community Center in the Wright Room located at 401 North 
Alexander in Belton, Texas 76513 at a meeting on the 22nd day of November, 2016, to commence 
at 5:30 p.m. Pursuant to state law, if before the City takes action to authorize the issuance of the 
Certificates of Obligation the City Clerk receives a petition signed by at least five percent of the 
qualified voters of the City protesting the issuance of the Certificates of Obligation, the City may 
not authorize the issuance of the Certificates of Obligation unless such issuance is approved at an 
election held within the City. 
 

CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 



Issue 9,700,000$          

Rate 3.25%

Payment Interest Principal Balance

9,700,000$       

2017 345,182$              315,250$            29,932$             9,670,068$       

2018 392,127$              314,277$            77,849$             9,592,219$       

2019 445,064$              311,747$            133,317$           9,458,902$       

2020 445,064$              307,414$            137,649$           9,321,253$       

2021 445,064$              302,941$            142,123$           9,179,130$       

2022 445,064$              298,322$            146,742$           9,032,388$       

2023 890,127$              293,553$            596,575$           8,435,813$       

2024 890,127$              274,164$            615,964$           7,819,849$       

2025 890,127$              254,145$            635,982$           7,183,867$       

2026 890,127$              233,476$            656,652$           6,527,215$       

2027 890,127$              212,134$            677,993$           5,849,222$       

2028 1,068,153$           190,100$            878,053$           4,971,168$       

2029 715,663$              161,563$            554,100$           4,417,069$       

2030 715,663$              143,555$            572,108$           3,844,961$       

2031 715,663$              124,961$            590,701$           3,254,260$       

2032 715,663$              105,763$            609,899$           2,644,361$       

2033 715,663$              85,942$              629,721$           2,014,640$       

2034 715,663$              65,476$              650,187$           1,364,453$       

2035 715,663$              44,345$              671,318$           693,136$           

2036 715,663$              22,527$              693,136$           (0)$                       

Total 13,761,654$         4,061,654$        9,700,000$       

Schedule to be used for modeling purposes. Final rates and payments will be negotiated when securities are 

sold.



Proposed Elevated Water Storage Tank 



Composite-type 
elevated storage 
tank is proposed 





City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 1 of 3   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #8 
 
Conduct annexation public hearings and present Municipal Services Plans for seven 
areas: 
 

A. Area 1: Approximately 716.44 acres located on the east side of IH 35, along and 
south of Decker Road. The tract extends southward to the Lampasas River, and 
extends along the river to the south and southeast, connecting to existing city 
limits, east of Toll Bridge Road. 

 
B. Area 2: Approximately 198.69 acres located on the east side of IH 35, between 

the east/west portion of the Lampasas River and Elmer King Road. 
 

C. Area 3: Approximately 250.14 acres located south of the intersection of IH 35 
and the Lampasas River. The tract extends along the west side of IH 35, 
measuring approximately 1,000’ in width, and would add 1,000’ additional on the 
west side of IH 35 to the current 1,000’ total city limit width centered on IH 35. 
The tract extends southward along IH 35 south of Amity Road, and adjoins the 
Salado ETJ line. 

 
D. Area 4: Approximately 297.20 acres located south of the intersection of IH 35 

and the Lampasas River. The tract extends along the east side of IH 35, 
measuring approximately 1,000’ in width, and would add 1,000 additional feet to 
the current 1,000’ total city limit width centered on IH 35. The tract extends 
southward along IH 35 south of Amity Road, and adjoins the Salado ETJ line. 

 
E. Area 5: Approximately 228.27 acres located along and north of Sparta Road and 

west of the existing city limits, extending west to FM 439, and east along Sparta 
Road to the city limits.  

 
F. Area 6: Approximately 24.10 acres located generally along the proposed 

north/south alignment of Lake-to-Lake Road, north of Sendero Estates 
Subdivision, and south of FM 93.  

 
G. Area 7: Approximately 2.713 acres located on the south side of Avenue O, 

between Avenue O and Old Golf Course Road. 
 
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 2 of 3   
 

Summary Information 
 
The development of a Growth Management Strategy, evaluating annexation priorities, is 
a goal in Belton’s Strategic Plan. This evaluation process began earlier this year with a 
Growth Management Framework, which was adopted by the Council on June 28, 2016. 
The Framework identified strategies to guide the study of annexation, including: 
 

• Promoting economic development; 
• Planning for existing and future development; 
• Facilitating long range planning; 
• Addressing municipal service delivery needs; and 
• Evaluating fiscal considerations. 

 
On August 23rd, the Council directed preparation of a Growth Management Study, a 
detailed analysis of existing conditions and significant development and planning issues 
in each of the seven (7) identified areas, to help the Council evaluate if annexation may 
be appropriate. In response, City staff prepared a tract by tract analysis which was 
presented to Council on September 13th. In Resolution No. 2016-27-R, approved on 
September 13, 2016, the City Council called for annexation public hearings, and 
directed staff to develop required Municipal Services Plans for each of the seven study 
areas. 
 
This is the first of two required public hearings involving consideration of the involuntary 
annexation of the seven areas described above.  
 
Texas Local Government Code, Section 43.056, Provision of Services to Annexed Area, 
requires preparation of a Municipal Services Plan that provides for the extension of 
municipal services to an area to be annexed. We have prepared a Municipal Service 
Plan for each area that includes services such as Police, Fire and EMS Services, 
Planning and Development Services, Code Enforcement, Refuse and Brush Collection, 
Recycling, and others. Areas annexed into the City will have access to City parks and 
facilities, as well as the City’s Library, and City maintenance of streets and drainage. 
Water and sewer services vary, and are discussed in each Municipal Services Plan. 
These Plans are attached, and copies will be available at the public hearings. 
 
Commitment to three (3) capital improvement projects, which are identified in one or 
more of the Plans, include: 
 

a) A trunk Sewer Line planned for placement along the east side of IH 35, adjacent 
to Study Area 1; 

b) A one million gallon elevated water storage tank planned on City property in 
Northwest Belton to enhance water service throughout the City, including 
enhanced fire protection and additional capacity during water line maintenance; 
and 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 3 of 3   
 

c) A planned 0.8 mile expansion of the City’s Hike and Bike Trail Network, 
extending from University Drive/Crusader Way to the proposed Sparta Road 
roundabout. 

 
These capital improvements will be completed within 2½ years, by June 30, 2019. 
 
As previously discussed, a number of properties are eligible for Non-Annexation 
Development Agreements, which may defer annexation for a specified term, if the 
owners agree not to develop. Those documents have been sent to owners, and we are 
meeting with them to discuss their interests. Property owner decisions have been 
requested by October 28, 2016, in order for the Council to be prepared to make a 
determination of appropriate annexation boundaries by the scheduled first reading of 
annexation ordinances on November 22, 2016. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The fiscal impacts associated with the annexation of each tract were discussed when 
the Growth Management Study was presented to Council on August 23, 2016. There 
are no fiscal impacts with this step of conducting a public hearing concerning 
annexation. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Conduct annexation public hearings and present Municipal Services Plans for seven 
areas. 
  
No other City Council action is required following presentation of Municipal Services 
Plans and conducting public hearing. The attached Annexation Schedule outlines the 
next steps in the process, including a special Council meeting on November 1, 2016 for 
the second public hearing and presentation of the Municipal Services Plans, with the 
second reading of the ordinance and final Council action anticipated on December 13, 
2016. 
 
Attachments 
Municipal Services Plan Overview 
Individual Municipal Services Plans/Maps for Areas 1-7 
Development Agreement Sample (Area 1) 
2016 Annexation Schedule 



City Of Belton 
2016 Growth Management Study 
Municipal Services Plan Overview 

Provision of Services to Annexed Areas is required ( 4 3. 0 56 LGC) in three parts. City must develop, 
and make available, a Municipal Services Plan that provides services that are equal or superior to 
services provided in the area prior to annexation: 

A. Basic Services - Police, Fire, EMS, Street Maintenance, Public Park Maintenance, if any, 
and extension of currently provided services. 

B. Full Municipal Services - Extension of all city services, but a uniform level of services is not 
required based on existing topography, land use, and population density. 

C. Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) project listing based on known commitments, as well as 
inclusion in CIP planning for future capital needs. 

The City of Belton will provide the following services immediately upon the effective date of 
annexation. All services will be provided at a service level equal or superior to the level of service 
provided prior to annexation. 

• POLICE PROTECTION, SERVICES 

• ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES 

• FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES (EMS) 

• FIRE PREVENTION SERVICES 

• PLANNING, ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 

• CODE ENFORCEMENT SERVICES 

• LIBRARY SERVICES 

• PARKS &RECREATION SERVICES, FACILITIES, PROGRAMMING 

• STREETS & STORM DRAINAGE MAINTENANCE 

• SANITATION 

• BRUSH COLLECTION 

• RECYCLING COLLECTION 

• UTILITIES (WATER DISTRIBUTION/WASTEWATER COLLECTION) 

• ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 

• SERVICES, FUNDING AND CITY POLICIES 



CITY OF BELTON 
MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 

AREAl 

The area proposed for annexation consists of approximately 716.44 acres, and is located on the east side of 
IH 35, along and south of Decker Road. The tract extends southward to the Lampasas River, and extends 
along the river to the south and southeast, connecting to existing city limits, east of Toll Bridge Road. 

Municipal Services to be Provided: The City will provide the following services, beginning immediately 
upon the effective date of the annexation. All the services will be provided at a service level that is equal or 
superior to the level of services in the area prior to the annexation. 

Police Protection. Police protection personnel and equipment from the Belton Police Department shall be 
provided to the areas immediately upon the effective date of the annexation of the areas. Response to calls for 
police services, crime prevention programs and all other police services will be provided at the same level as 
provided to other areas of the City. Police enforcement and protection services shall be provided at the 
request of residents/property owners in the area. 

Animal Control. The City shall provide animal control services immediately upon the effective date of the 
annexation of the area. These services encompass regular patrol by the animal control officer and response to 
animal nuisance problems from residents in the area. 

Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Protection. Upon annexation, the City will provide fire and EMS 
response at the level provided inside the Belton city limits. The service level will be equal to or better than 
the current level, with the limitations of water available. 

Code Enforcement. The City shall provide code enforcement services immediately upon annexation to 
include response to complaints of weedy lot violations, junked vehicles, sign violations, and other similar 
general city code violations. 

Fire Prevention. All of the services performed by the City' s Fire Marshal shall be provided immediately upon 
the effective date of the annexation of the areas. 

Planning, Zoning and Development Review. The area will automatically be zoned Agricultural on the 
effective date of annexation. In conjunction with review of Comprehensive Plan, a land use plan will be 
developed and permanent zoning established under the process specified by the City' s Zoning Ordinance. In 
the interim, the Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider zoning and rezoning 
tracts of the property in response to landowner requests. Subdivision plat review will occur in the City and in 
Belton' s extraterritorial jurisdiction in order to ensure orderly development of land, reduce flood potential, 
achieve efficient operation of public facilities and services, and provide accurate description and addressing of 
property. 

Code Compliance. Immediately upon the annexation becoming effective, building inspection activities will 
be available. The Building Official shall provide consultation with the project developers, independent 
contractors and homeowners for building code requirements, plan review for structures in the area, and on-site 
inspection services as needed, to include evaluation of hazardous and dilapidated buildings. 

1 



Library. Residents within the newly annexed areas shall be provided all services available at Belton' s Lena 
Armstrong Public Library. 

Parks and Recreation. All City of Belton public parks, facilities, and resources shall be available to residents 
of the annexed area. 

Streets and Drainage. Existing dedicated public streets and drainage structures and courses maintained by 
Bell County will be maintained by the City of Belton at their current or better level of improvement with like 
topography, land use, and density as those found within the City. Private streets are not maintained by the 
City. Roadways maintained by the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) will continue to be 
maintained by TxDOT. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way shall be as follows: 

(1) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures necessary for traffic 
flow, etc. 

(2) Routine maintenance and right-of-way mowing as presently performed within City. 
(3) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, construction of curbs, 

gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is determined by the governing 
body under City policies. 

( 4) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and other traffic 
control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and traffic standards. 

(5) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established policies of the City. 
( 6) The City will enforce drainage requirements in the Subdivision Ordinance and related standards. 
(7) Private streets will remain the responsibility of record owners or the homeowners association and 

as such be maintained by the responsible party. 

Sanitation and Recycling. Sanitation and recycling service will be immediately available to residential 
customers in accordance with existing City ordinances. Residents in the newly annexed area may select to 
continue service with their current service provider for up to two years, or switch to the City' s service, 
currently provided by contract with Waste Management, Inc. After the second anniversary of the annexation 
date, the City will provide the service at City rates. Residents will be contacted with information regarding 
how to obtain sanitation and recycling service, and efforts will be made to coordinate any transition of service. 

Sanitation service will be immediately available to non-residential customers through any of the commercial 
services franchised by the City. Non-residential customers are responsible for obtaining commercial service. 

Brush Collection Services. Brush collection services shall be provided to residents in the same manner and at 
the same rate as provided for other residents within the City of Belton. 

Water Service/Distribution. The area proposed for annexation is located within the certificated area of two 
water districts: The City of Belton and Armstrong Water Supply Corporation. The City of Belton is 
responsible for water service in the western portion of the Area, subject to the City' s water extension policies. 
Decker Road and the area east of Capital Way are within the Armstrong CCN. Water service, whether 

provided by Armstrong Water Supply Corporation or the City of Belton, will be subject to regulation by the 
City of Belton as it relates to development standards and design requirements, including the City' s 
subdivision regulations. 

2 



Wastewater Service/Collection. (NOTE: Pending Sewer CCN Service Area, subject to Public Utility 
Commission approval.) Wastewater services are available for extension to the area proposed for annexation in 
the same manner as they are available in the other locations within the City of Belton, in accordance with the 
City' s wastewater extension policies, subject to pending sewer CCN proposal before the Public Utilities 
Commission. The developer or property owner is responsible for funding extension and connection to the 
municipal system in accordance with the City's subdivision regulations and extension policies. 

Environmental Health. Immediately upon the effective date of the annexation, the City' s environmental 
health ordinances and regulations shall be applicable to the annexed areas. All health related matters are 
handled for the City by the Bell County Health District. 

Maintenance of Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools. The City is not aware of the existence of any 
publicly owned parks, playgrounds or swimming pools now located in the proposed areas of annexation. 
In the event any such parks, playgrounds, or swimming pools do exist and are public facilities, the City will 
maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and degree and to the same or similar level of service now 
being provided to other such areas and facilities within the corporate limits of the City with like 
topography, land use and density as those found within the newly annexed areas. Private facilities will 
remain under the ownership of the homeowners association and as such maintained by the association. 

Maintenance of any Publicly owned Facility, Building or Municipal Service. The City is not aware of the 
existence of any other publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal service now located in the 
proposed areas of annexation. In the event any other publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal 
service does exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and 
degree and to the same or similar level of service now being provided to other such areas and facilities 
within the corporate limits of the City with like topography, land use and density as those found within the 
newly annexed areas. 

Services, Funding and City Policies. All services which require expenditure of public funds are subject to 
annual appropriations by the City Council. Copies of City policies are available in the City Clerk's office 
upon request. 
Construction of Capital Improvements To Be Completed Within 2 Y2 Years. 

1. Trunk Sewer Line. A trunk sewer line is currently in design and is planned for placement along the 
east side of IH-35, adjacent to Area 1. This trunk line will be available for extension to the south, 
east, and northeast for service to developing properties in the same manner as they are available in 
other locations within the City in accordance with City extension policies. Line construction is 
scheduled to begin in 2017 and service will be available by June 30, 2019. 

2. Police and Fire Protection and Solid Waste Collection. The City finds and determines it is not 
necessary to acquire or construct any capital improvements within 2 Y2 years of the effective date of 
the annexation of the particular annexed areas for the purpose of providing police protection, fire 
protection, emergency medical services or solid waste collection. The City finds and determines 
that it has at the present time adequate facilities and other resources to provide the same type, 
kind and level of service and protection which is presently being administered to other areas 
already incorporated in the City with like topography, land use and population density as those 
found within the newly annexed areas. 

3 



3. Water/Wastewater Facilities Other than the Trunk Sewer Line Identified above in No.I. A one 
million gallon elevated water storage tank is planned on existing City property in Northwest 
Belton. Belton's third water storage tank will enhance water service throughout the City including 
water flow and pressures, storage for fire protection, and additional capacity during maintenance. 
This tank will be available by June 30, 2019. For the next 2 Y2 years, the City finds and determines 
that there is sufficient capacity to provide water services to the annexed areas pursuant to the City's 
extension policies in compliance with current CCN for the City of Belton. The now existing water 
mains at existing locations shall be available for the point of use extension based upon the standard 
extension policy now existing or as may be amended. 

On-site sewerage systems may be maintained in accordance with the City's Code of Ordinances 
and subject to approval by the Public Works Director/Bell County Health District. 

4. Roads and Streets. The City finds and determines it is not necessary to acquire or construct any 
capital improvements within 2 Y2 years of the effective date of the annexation of the particular 
annexed areas. 

5. Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools and Any Other Publicly Owned Facility, Building, or 
Service. An expansion of the City's hike and bike trail network totaling approximately 0.8 mile, 
and extending from University Blvd to the proposed Sparta Road roundabout, will connect with the 
City's existing trail system for a total projected length of2.8 miles. This trail will be available by 
June 30, 2019. 

Specific Findings. Belton, Texas, finds and determines that this proposed service plan will not provide any 
fewer services and will not provide a lower level of service in the areas being considered for annexation 
than were in existence in the proposed areas at the time immediately preceding the annexation process. 
Given the proposed annexation areas' topography, land utilization and population density, the service 
levels to be provided in the newly annexed areas will be equivalent to those provided to other areas of the 
City with similar characteristics. 

Terms. This plan shall be valid for a term of I 0 years. Renewal of the Service Plan is at the discretion of the 
City of Belton. 

Level of Service. Nothing in this plan shall require the City to provide a uniform level of full municipal 
services to each area of the City, including the annexed areas, if different characteristics of topography, land 
use, and population density are considered a sufficient basis for providing different levels of service. 

Amendments. The plan shall not be amended unless public hearings are held in accordance with Chapter 4 3 
of the Texas Local Government Code. 

The area will be immediately included in the planning and development of the City's Capital Improvements 
Plan (CIP). 

4 



• Area 1, In Annexation Boundary (1 6) 

c::JArea 1 - 716.44 Acres 

ET J Boundaries 

c::J Belton ET J 



ANNEXATION STUDY 2016 - AREA I 
116.44 ACRES OF LAND 

FOR TIE GITY OF 6EL TON, 6ELL co.MY, TEXAS. 

I. OAV106. DeGK.ER 

"°""""""""°""' ~~651, 
Vol. ,I~. Pq. ~ 

2. OAVIO DEGKER 
205 e>eGKe«"""' 
~~~ 
Vol. ~l&.P<J IH 

' · 6AIL.fHG...AAKROYB..Uald 
&Nt'f'9.~ 
20-4 TAYLOR5 DRN!: 

~=;:= 
vol. '166,Pg. ne 

~ 6il5,LI..G 

[~~ifRO>D 
' · ~·~16Ct 

~-~ 
6~~~~ 

£1ELTOH,~.,6'4' 

~~~I 
1, ~~~LID 

~~~ 
Orix. No.~ 

& llCSK~~. LTO 

~~R.~ 

~~~ 
Vo• <4651. Pg. ?93t 

111. L-At.RA~ 
!521lTot...LfiRU;JrM:R0f'ID 

~~~ 
Vol. 5065.P9. ll 

IO. L.XRA NJ<JQC 
5271 Tot..!.BRID:Se ROAD 

~~~5 
(R.eman:t.rof l<4.Ml><.rfnJ 
Vo . ~. Pg. I•! 

11.~AL.J'OlilD 
5211 TOLl..BRI06EJ1t)AD 

~=~ l'R#l'll'lindrot 3056 Aa-•al 
Vo . ~Pci-6"' 

l2 ...w-eM.KJHC..l\IOcw:I~•. 
~0. K._i,c;.Jtr,I() 
5355TOl.l..M;.~R0,.tO 

~~ 
'' · ~=~~..R.ord"lf•. 

~~s~ 
Vol.~. Pg.4-n 

I~. ~=~~.R~.dfe, 

~~~ 
Vol. Z?M,Pg.4"11 

15. RJV!!ft. FARM LTD. 

~2~~~ 
~~~'461.b5<1AGP5 
Vot. 2"13!io. f-'g. 1Zl 

~ 
~ 

--------

I 
lj 

l 
/ ; 

// 
/ I ,. I 

--.... . 
................... / 

! 
/ 

'T"'lt~-~~Zl ""J!iG'65.2.oo..ivt,..,i.etO..~bofO'lcrtl1w~ 

~:!t:~.:~~~::=::-::=,;=!.,~O::::~tor 
""*"•-prwpcr.c:i. 

TNWonroUorlc.ont.c*Wd~--~~~T"ow~DIMl1ctof!MllGo.O'ltlj.f--. 

n.~•to~o~(JJh~~'M>..44~tnxt. 

~~~ 
ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC. 

1303 5oir.h 21•l Stnoeo 
T •""P'-· T exaa '16504 

254-716-2212 Ktti-n 254-634-4b36 
Fax 2~T1+~60b 

Tx. FW"m LLG. No. 1002%00 

I 
/·-...._ 

I / 

/:::~:'.l 

-----

116 .44 AGRES 
OF LAND 

I 

/ 
I 

/ 

@ 

I 

/ 

~ 

--... ___ -'----~ 

-------------

~,,..b»>Oll5 
.JQ(~Cl"ld ......,.....,..... 

Clloc..No.~ 

/ 
I --"' r---~-

~-----l__ I 
I -.J 

I 

----------.......... / 
I ------------ / /"-

{---J.... --
----- - ,.1 --- ·----

---......; '--,___ 
! I ---.........._ 
C._,' 

--..... __ _ 

--------

ANNEXATION STUDY 2016 - AREA I 
/16.44 ACRES OF LAND 
FOR THE GITY OF ElEL TON, ElELL c.ouNTY, TEXAS. 

OI GAU.f!0'0.541 /l01IE. 
l!ft5GH!til~TRIST 
Drilc..ND.~~ .... 

-~.!N:l6ACA! 
C..Nta.."n«L.f<G..lel 
Vol ,,,....11'9. 62t 

'~0.4'441<1/e. 
l'f.N't7t'l''''"'T'11if~nt 
~No-~ 

d GMJ..!02.Dl'Gfll!S 
91U.l"ltAY~Tonc:t 
....~dee~T 
Vo6. Zle.f09. 416 

• GAL.LJ:I)~-~ 
elU.'f"AAT~-ono 

..... OOl'ICl!ie'e~T 
\/oL~.Pg.20 

, L.Orl,el..Oat l 

"""""""""'""" GGb.G..51. 2'6-9 

g=~ 
flGAl.J.D'..D6~ 

.JONHEAfaN 
Vol. !0!19i.l"'g.6'Jlll 

I GH..UDO.el<Sll/:. 
~""'(.l)IQ;fR"'° 
..... .U..ll!ti:..c.or.KBl 
Vol. 4!'114,~g.!IO"I 

J~~ .. ~ 
Vol.5'10. pt.e"M 

ti: GAU.J:E)O.~~ 
.JlolrriH ,."4.0 HHt4.U 
Doc.. lfD. XID-<>OOM5M 

I GJIU.l!P20'8N;flei, 
~K.W""'11:; 
"'°""'-lito. X.1-<l0040900 

• GM.J..eP ... ., AQl2! 

_,.._,,""""'""" GH:tM.""""' Doc..~~ 

~kt· ~ 

..bbNo. ~

""9""·~ 
Or"G:H'lbJ----I.U:L...._ 

............. ~ 
~-,,.~ .......... "'·' 



CITY OF BELTON 
MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 

AREA2 

The area proposed for annexation consists of approximately 198.69 acres, and is located on the east side of 
IH-35, between the east/west portion of the Lampasas River and Elmer King Road. 

Municipal Services to be Provided: The City will provide the following services, beginning immediately 
upon the effective date of the annexation. All the services will be provided at a service level that is equal or 
superior to the level of services in the area prior to the annexation. 

Police Protection. Police protection personnel and equipment from the Belton Police Department shall be 
provided to the areas immediately upon the effective date of the annexation of the areas. Response to calls for 
police services, crime prevention programs and all other police services will be provided at the same level as 
provided to other areas of the City. Police enforcement and protection services shall be provided at the 
request of residents/property owners in the area. 

Animal Control. The City shall provide animal control services immediately upon the effective date of the 
annexation of the area. These services encompass regular patrol by the animal control officer and response to 
animal nuisance problems from residents in the area. 

Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Protection. Upon annexation, the City will provide fire and EMS 
response at the level provided inside the Belton city limits. The service level will be equal to or better than 
the current level, with the limitations of water available. 

Code Enforcement. The City shall provide code enforcement services immediately upon annexation to 
include response to complaints of weedy lot violations, junked vehicles, sign violations, and other similar 
general city code violations. 

Fire Prevention. All of the services performed by the City's Fire Marshal shall be provided immediately upon 
the effective date of the annexation of the areas. 

Planning, Zoning and Development Review. The area will automatically be zoned Agricultural on the 
effective date of annexation. In conjunction with review of Comprehensive Plan, a land use plan will be 
developed and permanent zoning established under the process specified by the City's Zoning Ordinance. In 
the interim, the Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider zoning and rezoning 
tracts of the property in response to landowner requests. Subdivision plat review will occur in the City and in 
Belton's extraterritorial jurisdiction in order to ensure orderly development of land, reduce flood potential, 
achieve efficient operation of public facilities and services, and provide accurate description and addressing of 
property. 

Code Compliance. Immediately upon the annexation becoming effective, building inspection activities will 
be available. The Building Official shall provide consultation with the project developers, independent 
contractors and homeowners for building code requirements, plan review for structures in the area, and on-site 
inspection services as needed, to include evaluation of hazardous and dilapidated buildings. 

1 



Library. Residents within the newly annexed areas shall be provided all services available at Belton's Lena 
Armstrong Public Library. 

Parks and Recreation. All City of Belton public parks, facilities, and resources shall be available to residents 
of the annexed area. 

Streets and Drainage. Existing dedicated public streets and drainage structures and courses maintained by 
Bell County will be maintained by the City of Belton at their current or better level of improvement with like 
topography, land use, and density as those found within the City. Private streets are not maintained by the 
City. Roadways maintained by the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) will continue to be 
maintained by TxDOT. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way shall be as follows: 

(1) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures necessary for traffic 
flow, etc. 

(2) Routine maintenance and right-of-way mowing as presently performed within City. 
(3) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, construction of curbs, 

gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is determined by the governing 
body under City policies. 

( 4) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and other traffic 
control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and traffic standards. 

(5) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established policies of the City. 
( 6) The City will enforce drainage requirements in the Subdivision Ordinance and related standards. 
(7) Private streets will remain the responsibility of record owners or the homeowners association and 

as such be maintained by the responsible party. 

Sanitation and Recycling. Sanitation and recycling service will be immediately available to residential 
customers in accordance with existing City ordinances. Residents in the newly annexed area may select to 
continue service with their current service provider for up to two years, or switch to the City' s service, 
currently provided by contract with Waste Management, Inc. After the second anniversary of the annexation 
date, the City will provide the service at City rates. Residents will be contacted with information regarding 
how to obtain sanitation and recycling service, and efforts will be made to coordinate any transition of service. 

Sanitation service will be immediately available to non-residential customers through any of the commercial 
services franchised by the City. Non-residential customers are responsible for obtaining commercial service. 

Brush Collection Services. Brush collection services shall be provided to residents in the same manner and at 
the same rate as provided for other residents within the City of Belton. 

Water Service/Distribution. The area proposed for annexation is located within the Certificate of 
Convenience and Necessity ( CCN) area of the City of Belton, subject to the City' s water extension policies. 
Such water service will be subject to regulation by the City of Belton as it relates to development standards 
and design requirements in accordance with the ordinances, rules and regulations in effect at the time of 
installation. 

Wastewater Service/Collection. (NOTE: Pending Sewer CCN Service Area, subject to Public Utility 
Commission approval.) Wastewater services are available for extension to the area proposed for annexation in 
the same manner as they are available in the other locations within the City of Belton, in accordance with the 

2 



City's wastewater extension policies, subject to pending sewer CCN proposal before the Public Utilities 
Commission. The developer or property owner is responsible for funding extension and connection to the 
municipal system in accordance with the City's subdivision regulations and extension policies. 

Environmental Health. Immediately upon the effective date of the annexation, the City's environmental 
health ordinances and regulations shall be applicable to the annexed areas. All health related matters are 
handled for the City by the Bell County Health District. 

Maintenance of Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools. The City is not aware of the existence of any 
publicly owned parks, playgrounds or swimming pools now located in the proposed areas of annexation. 
In the event any such parks, playgrounds, or swimming pools do exist and are public facilities, the City will 
maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and degree and to the same or similar level of service now 
being provided to other such areas and facilities within the corporate limits of the City with like 
topography, land use and density as those found within the newly annexed areas. Private facilities will 
remain under the ownership of the homeowners association and as such maintained by the association. 

Maintenance of any Publicly owned Facility, Building or Municipal Service. The City is not aware of the 
existence of any other publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal service now located in the 
proposed areas of annexation. In the event any other publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal 
service does exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and 
degree and to the same or similar level of service now being provided to other such areas and facilities 
within the corporate limits of the City with like topography, land use and density as those found within the 
newly annexed areas. 

Services, Funding and Citv Policies. All services which require expenditure of public funds are subject to 
annual appropriations by the City Council. Copies of City policies are available in the City Clerk's office 
upon request. 
Construction of Capital Improvements To Be Completed Within 2Y2 Years. 

1. Trunk Sewer Line. A trunk sewer line is currently in design and is planned for placement along the 
east side of IH-35, north of this Study Area. This trunk line will be available for extension to 
developing properties in the same manner as they are available in other locations within the City in 
accordance with City extension policies. Line construction is scheduled to begin in 2017 and service 
will be available by June 30, 2019. 

2. Police and Fire Protection and Solid Waste Collection. The City finds and determines it is not 
necessary to acquire or construct any capital improvements within 2 Y2 years of the effective date of 
the annexation of the particular annexed areas for the purpose of providing police protection, fire 
protection, emergency medical services or solid waste collection. The City finds and determines 
that it has at the present time adequate facilities and other resources to provide the same type, 
kind and level of service and protection which is presently being administered to other areas 
already incorporated in the City with like topography, land use and population density as those 
found within the newly annexed areas. 

3. Water/Wastewater Facilities Other than the Trunk Sewer Line Identified above in No.1. A one 
million gallon elevated water storage tank is planned on existing City property in Northwest 
Belton. Belton' s third water storage tank will enhance water service throughout the City including 

3 



water flow and pressures, storage for fire protection, and additional capacity during maintenance. 
This tank will be available by June 30, 2019. For the next 2 'l2 years, the City finds and determines 
that there is sufficient capacity to provi~e water services to the annexed areas pursuant to the City's 
extension policies in compliance with current CCN for the City of Belton. The now existing water 
mains at existing locations shall be available for the point of use extension based upon the standard 
extension policy now existing or as may be amended. 

On-site sewerage systems may be maintained in accordance with the City's Code of Ordinances 
and subject to approval by the Public Works Director/Bell County Health District. 

4. Roads and Streets. The City finds and determines it is not necessary to acquire or construct any 
capital improvements within 2 'l2 years of the effective date of the annexation of the particular 
annexed areas. 

5. Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools and Any Other Publicly Owned Facility, Building, or 
Service. An expansion of the City's hike and bike trail network totaling approximately 0.8 mile, 
and extending from University Blvd to the proposed Sparta Road roundabout, will connect with the 
City's existing trail system for a total projected length of 2.8 miles. This trail will be available by 
June 30, 2019. 

Specific Findings. Belton, Texas, finds and determines that this proposed service plan will not provide any 
fewer services and will not provide a lower level of service in the areas being considered for annexation 
than were in existence in the proposed areas at the time immediately preceding the annexation process. 
Given the proposed annexation areas' topography, land utilization and population density, the service 
levels to be provided in the newly annexed areas will be equivalent to those provided to other areas of the 
City with similar characteristics. 

Terms. This plan shall be valid for a term of 10 years. Renewal of the Service Plan is at the discretion of the 
City of Belton. 

Level of Service. Nothing in this plan shall require the City to provide a uniform level of full municipal 
services to each area of the City, including the annexed areas, if different characteristics of topography, land 
use, and population density are considered a sufficient basis for providing different levels of service. 

Amendments. The plan shall not be amended unless public hearings are held in accordance with Chapter 43 
of the Texas Local Government Code. 

The area will be immediately included in the planning and development of the City's Capital Improvements 
Plan (CIP). 

4 



• Area 2, In Annexation Boundary (5) 

c::J Area 2 - 198.69 Acres 

ET J Boundaries 

c::J Belton ET J 



5. LODENE 6ERSTEN6ER6 MOORE 
lbb EL/<1ER K IN6 ROAD, UNIT 100 
BEL TON. TEXAS 16513 
Ra-tAINDER OF 
CALLED "'1.b ACRES 
Vol. ~o. Pg. 6<13 

6 . ROBERT HAYNE 6ERSTENBER6 
11402 COSTAKES DRIVE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 1b "150 
CALLED ;,q.1 ACRES 
Vol. 3102, Pg. 14b 

1 . C:.ILBERT AU6UST 6ERSTEN6ER6, ..R 
PO. BOX '40'1 
cem:R POINT, TEXAS 100!0 
CALLED ;,q,1 ACRES 
Vol. 3102. Pg. 145 

8 . KENNETH C. 6ERSTENEIER6 
bb8 ELMER KIN5 ROAD, UNIT 130 
BEL TOH, TEXAS 16513 
CALLED !Ob.TI ACRES 
Vol. 2013, Pg. 382 

'!. KENNETH C. 6ERSTEN6ERG 
bb8 ELMER KIN5 ROAD, UNIT 130 
BEL TOH, TEXAS 16513 
CAL.LED 50 ACRES 
Vol. '143, Pg. 514 

~~o 
ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC. 

1303 5ovtll 2 1•t Str .... t 

25+-TI~~i'" '6: ~34-46'36 
Fax 254-1'14-'160& 

Th:. Firm LIG. No. !0023600 

1Cf8M Ac.RES 
OF LAND 

CALLED '36.1 ACRES 
flEU. BOX-I:: PROPERTIES, LTD. 

Vol. ;,qo2. Pg. 141 

LlNf' BEARIN6 
u 53-4""'6'02 E 
l2 5 42 "1b '""4" E 
L3 5 51°2l'tq• E 
L4 516'01'41 ' H 
L.5 N T:> 0 "'1 '41 " H 
Lq N 10""'1 '5l H 
uo N'36 ""4'01' H 
UI N 56'26'10" E 

Ra-tAINDER OF 
CALLED 36.1 ACRES 

MARY LOUISE BRAlm.E'( 
Vol. 3'102, Pg. 145 

ANNEXATION STUDY 2016 - AREA 2 
IC18.6c::t ACRES OF LAND 

FOR THE CITY OF BEL TON, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS. 

DIST~• 
q1.02· 

23b.4b' 
1q1.oo· 
46.W 

'1617.>' 
:nq.i3• 

110.12' 
212.50' 

\ 

CALLED 110.0 ACRES 
ELEANOR TllTTI.E 

V o l. 521, Pg . 161 

!>«Ii.. ~ 
.JcbNo.~ 

""'9""-~ 
Dr..-. by _!!b!:!__ 

Strvoyor~ 



CITY OF BELTON 
MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 

AREA3 

The area proposed for annexation consists of approximately 250.14 acres, south of the intersection ofIH-35 
and the Lampasas River, extending southward along the west side IH-35 south of Amity Road, and 
adjoining the Salado ETJ line. 

Municipal Services to be Provided: The City will provide the following services, beginning immediately 
upon the effective date of the annexation. All the services will be provided at a service level that is equal or 
superior to the level of services in the area prior to the annexation. 

Police Protection. Police protection personnel and equipment from the Belton Police Department shall be 
provided to the areas immediately upon the effective date of the annexation of the areas. Response to calls for 
police services, crime prevention programs and all other police services will be provided at the same level as 
provided to other areas of the City. Police enforcement and protection services shall be provided at the 
request of residents/property owners in the area. 

Animal Control. The City shall provide animal control services immediately upon the effective date of the 
annexation of the area. These services encompass regular patrol by the animal control officer and response to 
animal nuisance problems from residents in the area. 

Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Protection. Upon annexation, the City will provide fire and EMS 
response at the level provided inside the Belton city limits. The service level will be equal to or better than 
the current level, with the limitations of water available. 

Code Enforcement. The City shall provide code enforcement services immediately upon annexation to 
include response to complaints of weedy lot violations, junked vehicles, sign violations, and other similar 
general city code violations. 

Fire Prevention. All of the services performed by the City' s Fire Marshal shall be provided immediately upon 
the effective date of the annexation of the areas. 

Planning, Zoning and Development Review. The area will automatically be zoned Agricultural on the 
effective date of annexation. In conjunction with review of Comprehensive Plan, a land use plan will be 
developed and permanent zoning established under the process specified by the City' s Zoning Ordinance. In 
the interim, the Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider zoning and rezoning 
tracts of the property in response to landowner requests. Subdivision plat review will occur in the City and in 
Belton's extraterritorial jurisdiction in order to ensure orderly development of land, reduce flood potential, 
achieve efficient operation of public facilities and services, and provide accurate description and addressing of 
property. 

Code Compliance. Immediately upon the annexation becoming effective, building inspection activities will 
be available. The Building Official shall provide consultation with the project developers, independent 
contractors and homeowners for building code requirements, plan review for structures in the area, and on-site 
inspection services as needed, to include evaluation of hazardous and dilapidated buildings. 

1 



Library. Residents within the newly annexed areas shall be provided all services available at Belton's Lena 
Armstrong Public Library. 

Parks and Recreation. All City of Belton public parks, facilities, and resources shall be available to residents 
of the annexed area. 

Streets and Drainage. Existing dedicated public streets and drainage structures and courses maintained by 
Bell County will be maintained by the City of Belton at their current or better level of improvement with like 
topography, land use, and density as those found within the City. Private streets are not maintained by the 
City. Roadways maintained by the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) will continue to be 
maintained by TxDOT. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way shall be as follows: 

(1) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures necessary for traffic 
flow, etc. 

(2) Routine maintenance and right-of·way mowing as presently performed within City. 
(3) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, construction of curbs, 

gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is determined by the governing 
body under City policies. 

( 4) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and other traffic 
control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and traffic standards. 

(5) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established policies of the City. 
( 6) The City will enforce drainage requirements in the Subdivision Ordinance and related standards. 
(7) Private streets will remain the responsibility of record owners or the homeowners association and 

as such be maintained by the responsible party. 

Sanitation and Recycling. Sanitation and recycling service will be immediately available to residential 
customers in accordance with existing City ordinances. Residents in the newly annexed area may select to 
continue service with their current service provider for up to two years, or switch to the City's service, 
currently provided by contract with Waste Management, Inc. After the second anniversary of the annexation 
date, the City will provide the service at City rates. Residents will be contacted with information regarding 
how to obtain sanitation and recycling service, and efforts will be made to coordinate any transition of service. 

Sanitation service will be immediately available to non-residential customers through any of the commercial 
services :franchised by the City. Non-residential customers are responsible for obtaining commercial service. 

Brush Collection Services. Brush collection services shall be provided to residents in the same manner and at 
the same rate as provided for other residents within the City of Belton. 

Water Service/Distribution. The area proposed for annexation is located within the certificated area of two 
water districts: the City of Belton is responsible for water service on the north side of Amity Road, and the 
Salado Water Supply Corporation is responsible for water service on the south side of Amity Road, subject 
to the City's water extension policies. Water service, by the Salado Water Supply Corporation or the City of 
Belton, will be subject to regulation by the City of Belton as it relates to development standards and design 
requirements. 

Wastewater Service/Collection. (NOTE: Pending Sewer CCN Service Area, subject to Public Utility 
Commission approval.) Wastewater services are available for extension to the area proposed for annexation in 

2 



the same manner as they are available in the other locations within the City of Belton, in accordance with the 
City' s wastewater extension policies, subject to pending sewer CCN proposal before the Public Utilities 
Commission. The developer or property owner is responsible for funding extension and connection to the 
municipal system in accordance with the City's subdivision regulations and extension policies. 

Environmental Health. Immediately upon the effective date of the annexation, the City' s environmental 
health ordinances and regulations shall be applicable to the annexed areas. All health related matters are 
handled for the City by the Bell County Health District. 

Maintenance of Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools. The City is not aware of the existence of any 
publicly owned parks, playgrounds or swimming pools now located in the proposed areas of annexation. 
In the event any such parks, playgrounds, or swimming pools do exist and are public facilities, the City will 
maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and degree and to the same or similar level of service now 
being provided to other such areas and facilities within the corporate limits of the City with like 
topography, land use and density as those found within the newly annexed areas. Private facilities will 
remain under the ownership of the homeowners association and as such maintained by the association. 

Maintenance of any Publicly owned Facility, Building or Municipal Service. The City is not aware of the 
existence of any other publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal service now located in the 
proposed areas of annexation. In the event any other publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal 
service does exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and 
degree and to the same or similar level of service now being provided to other such areas and facilities 
within the corporate limits of the City with like topography, land use and density as those found within the 
newly annexed areas. 

Services, Funding and City Policies. All services which require expenditure of public funds are subject to 
annual appropriations by the City Council. Copies of City policies are available in the City Clerk' s office 
upon request. 

Construction of Capital Improvements To Be Completed Within 2 Yz Years. 

1. Trunk Sewer Line. A trunk sewer line is currently in design and is planned for placement along the 
east side of IH-35, north of this Study Area. This trunk line will be available for to developing 
properties in the same manner as they are available in other locations within the City in accordance 
with City extension policies. Line construction is scheduled to begin in 2017 and service will be 
available by June 30, 2019. 

2. Police and Fire Protection and Solid Waste Collection. The City finds and determines it is not 
necessary to acquire or construct any capital improvements within 2 Yz years of the effective date of 
the annexation of the particular annexed areas for the purpose of providing police protection, fire 
protection, emergency medical services or solid waste collection. The City finds and determines 
that it has at the present time adequate facilities and other resources to provide the same type, 
kind and level of service and protection which is presently being administered to other areas 
already incorporated in the City with like topography, land use and population density as those 
found within the newly annexed areas. 

3 



3. Water/Wastewater Facilities Other than the Trunk Sewer Line Identified above in No.l. A one 
million gallon elevated water storage tank is planned on existing City property in Northwest 
Belton. Belton's third water storage tank will enhance water service throughout the City including 
water flow and pressures, storage for fire protection, and additional capacity during maintenance. 
This tank will be available by June 30, 2019. For the next 2 Yi years, the City finds and determines 
that there is sufficient capacity to provide water services to the annexed areas pursuant to the City's 
extension policies in compliance with current CCN for the City of Belton. The now existing water 
mains at existing locations shall be available for the point of use extension based upon the standard 
extension policy now existing or as may be amended. 

On-site sewerage systems may be maintained in accordance with the City's Code of Ordinances 
and subject to approval by the Public Works Director/Bell County Health District. 

4. Roads and Streets. The City finds and determines it is not necessary to acquire or construct any 
capital improvements within 2 Yi years of the effective date of the annexation of the particular 
annexed areas. 

5. Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools and Any Other Publicly Owned Facility, Building, or 
Service. An expansion of the City's hike and bike trail network totaling approximately 0.8 mile, 
and extending from University Blvd to the proposed Sparta Road roundabout, will connect with the 
City's existing trail system for a total projected length of2.8 miles. This trail will be available by 
June 30, 2019. 

Specific Findings. Belton, Texas, finds and determines that this proposed service plan will not provide any 
fewer services and will not provide a lower level of service in the areas being considered for annexation 
than were in existence in the proposed areas at the time immediately preceding the annexation process. 
Given the proposed annexation areas' topography, land utilization and population density, the service 
levels to be provided in the newly annexed areas will be equivalent to those provided to other areas of the 
City with similar characteristics. 

Terms. This plan shall be valid for a term of 10 years. Renewal of the Service Plan is at the discretion of the 
City of Belton. 

Level of Service. Nothing in this plan shall require the City to provide a uniform level of full municipal 
services to each area of the City, including the annexed areas, if different characteristics of topography, land 
use, and population density are considered a sufficient basis for providing different levels of service. 

Amendments. The plan shall not be amended unless public hearings are held in accordance with Chapter 4 3 
of the Texas Local Government Code. 

The area will be immediately included in the planning and development of the City's Capital Improvements 
Plan (CIP). 

4 



ANNEXATION STUDY 2016 - AREA 3 
250.14 ACRES OF LAND 

FOR THE GllY OF BELTON, BELL GOIMrf, TCXAS. 

l . l'.Ol!eltT L.~ 
11965. NT91:9TAft,, 
M!..T""~...,., 
GllU..l!Db"'2~ 
Vol. l4f20, "'£t.2't 

.2. OU>~A.l"'EMIU..LG 
4'Ni0"12&4' 
t.Al.>DO, T'!.AAS"'Mell 
GALU!l>I>...,.... 
VOL~. Jll9. 191 

3. ..w45fa.6N-ROD ord ICDt"" ....,,. 
PO.BOX~ 
~..!,~16508 
GAU..eD5.666~ 
Vot.'6~flig.Mo& 

<4 , GAARl.eO.~ 
~""'""'-E~Ofal.'e 
F'P'lJ.t5tRVILl..e TEXii6'1IJi660 
~20.54~ 
Vol361,,Pg.21'1 

5. eoee.,.M. ... l.90Na'ld 
l"'AnrJGl ... J..111UIOH 
"TeeT~YAltOAP 

e~~&M 
• · G.J fNN6 l"'A"1l.Y L"11Tf0 •AA

l~flto(l4'1ta, l.HT9 
V...u..rT'~l'l!XM166bll 
GAl...l.e)-44 ....... ACJll!!!! 
Vol~. l'lg. eat 

1. ~~TERO"Ct.,.:•, 
~D. l!RIHtTet 
,.o.eoxne 
.eeo, ~"'f6&.lA 
GAU...e:;>5.&e~ 
°"'-Mcl. :JOIO..CI00.4"'°"9 

&. HIGWB...er:u!.Tel~..U.. 
6Bf41f"l!R D. e'RtereR 
PD. l!IOXf"le 
lllH), Tf.IVI&~ .. 
G.A.l..U!Pl l.ee,.rr.ae. 
VoL 5'6<f1Pg.~ 

'111 . ~rt.PILLJ«Dmd~. ,._.,. G "'1LJoRD 
3Dll..J...AftDROloD 
llB..T()t.,,"reMS~ 
~ .. 2006A(;.llllefi 
Vol.~. Pg. 11 

IO. J11u.,tr.llOEeff!TQl'ldwt•, __, ... ...., 
l'O. !!OXtlfl.4 
l!IB..TOtt,TEx.td"l65B 
~1<2.26~ 
Vol. 2Ctl2.Pg.4e0 

U. ~&. GMU 
OOTHL..T~c.ltCL.e 
tM...AOO, TDCAS'l65'11 
GAW!D ..,...,.... 
Doc..~-~ 

12.~ L. ~Y 
&40IH41lY!iGfotOCll..RON) 
!!15..TGit'4, r~~ 
GAU"":U>~ 
Voll:e&,Pg.1 

"ftllt'I'~~ 
"'°'!'MTHONln'L.NI!' 
Bl!LTOH.TEIVdie.513 
GAU..!Ol.a.1AGAE 
Vol. '4"M, Pg. qH 

14-.ARTK.IR.l:eM9Hl:IUl'tHO"' ..... ~""~ 
b5-f.5N4TY'9GHOOL.ROAD 
l!l!LTOtl leXA5165B 
c><LE>"1"°""' 
°"· "°· 20I~ 

" · !IRYANtQ..l'P 
"'°'48MITMC>.a.llll'fltD1'D 

~-~ 
I& . .-.Rnui.JOeK'6fe.Alard ,. .. ~~ 

ece2 N4Tf SGHOOL. W»D 
ea.TOH.~,.,., 
GM.U!D<6.5'.lrGN9 
l)Q(.. f'b.~1' 

11. AU.TB.. GOHH.HCATIOt6 
tc\le~ IMG. 
do~HAe...1!!!16 
,..0. l!IOXz.t"! 

"""'"""""""'"""' ""'-'=""'""""" ~Na. :JOll~ 

16.~f'ROPHm!S.IHG.. 
PD. DO.X<f1M 
M.&nt\~"Tel66 
vot.2'TIO. Pg.~ 

M. NmUl.a!~Ql'ld .... ~~ 
~a~ 

::ao.tetl"'...,..TYUtH> 

~~OflOAO 
~-~ 

ll."-L.NC>~. u.c 
IO!.Kt~~lllOHJ -711 _,.........,,..,. 
~~~ 

Zl.Gi0..>KJ~. !..L£. 
IOUO !lo~ N~te ROAD -711 
er£~2 

2'-~~~ 

~2:: 
l/ol. 2::1"1, P~. "'f&ll 

>t~~:f!JNtTOlll 
PO. BO.x8t:2 
~. ~,..-,i 
G.A&J.EPIOl.5q(;)~ 
~Mc. Xll2-oooe.4:&:» 

~~~ 
1303 Srout.h 2l&t Street 
T""l"i<O. T""°' 16504 

254-11~:Z:ZT2 Killeen :Z5o4-63'4-4b3b 
Fox 254-114-1601> 

Tx. Firm LIG . No. 10023b00 
ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC. 

,..._ 
/ -------

--------- / --------...) 

0 

""' 

ANNEXATION STUDY 2016 - AREA 3 
250.14 ACRES OF LAND 

FOR THE GllY OF BEL TON, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS. 

~.~ 

.Jor>Mo.~ 

""9'""~ 

"'-~ -----...._.~ 

~l!Olt ""'~ ........ N. 



CITY OF BELTON 
MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 

AREA4 

The area proposed for annexation consists of approximately 297 .20 acres, south of the intersection ofIH-35 
and the Lampasas River, extending southward along the east side IH-35 south of Amity Road, and 
adjoining the Salado ET J line. 

Municipal Services to be Provided: The City will provide the following services, beginning immediately 
upon the effective date of the annexation. All the services will be provided at a service level that is equal or 
superior to the level of services in the area prior to the annexation. 

Police Protection. Police protection personnel and equipment from the Belton Police Department shall be 
provided to the areas immediately upon the effective date of the annexation of the areas. Response to calls for 
police services, crime prevention programs and all other police services will be provided at the same level as 
provided to other areas of the City. Police enforcement and protection services shall be provided at the 
request of residents/property owners in the area. 

Animal Control. The City shall provide animal control services immediately upon the effective date of the 
annexation of the area. These services encompass regular patrol by the animal control officer and response to 
animal nuisance problems from residents in the area. 

Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Protection. Upon annexation, the City will provide fire and EMS 
response at the level provided inside the Belton city limits. The service level will be equal to or better than 
the current level, with the limitations of water available. 

Code Enforcement. The City shall provide code enforcement services immediately upon annexation to 
include response to complaints of weedy lot violations, junked vehicles, sign violations, and other similar 
general city code violations. 

Fire Prevention. All of the services performed by the City' s Fire Marshal shall be provided immediately upon 
the effective date of the annexation of the areas. 

Planning, Zoning and Development Review. The area will automatically be zoned Agricultural on the 
effective date of annexation. In conjunction with review of Comprehensive Plan, a land use plan will be 
developed and permanent zoning established under the process specified by the City' s Zoning Ordinance. In 
the interim, the Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider zoning and rezoning 
tracts of the property in response to landowner requests. Subdivision plat review will occur in the City and in 
Belton' s extraterritorial jurisdiction in order to ensure orderly development of land, reduce flood potential, 
achieve efficient operation of public facilities and services, and provide accurate description and addressing of 
property. 

Code Compliance. Immediately upon the annexation becoming effective, building inspection activities will 
be available. The Building Official shall provide consultation with the project developers, independent 
contractors and homeowners for building code requirements, plan review for structures in the area, and on-site 
inspection services as needed, to include evaluation of hazardous and dilapidated buildings. 

1 



Library. Residents within the newly annexed areas shall be provided all services available at Belton' s Lena 
Armstrong Public Library. 

Parks and Recreation. All City of Belton public parks, facilities, and resources shall be available to residents 
of the annexed area. 

Streets and Drainage. Existing dedicated public streets and drainage structures and courses maintained by 
Bell County will be maintained by the City of Belton at their current or better level of improvement with like 
topography, land use, and density as those found within the City. Private streets are not maintained by the 
City. Roadways maintained by the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) will continue to be 
maintained by TxDOT. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way shall be as follows: 

(1) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures necessary for traffic 
flow, etc. 

(2) Routine maintenance and right-of-way mowing as presently performed within City. 
(3) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, construction of curbs, 

gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is determined by the governing 
body under City policies. 

( 4) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and other traffic 
control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and traffic standards. 

(5) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established policies of the City. 
( 6) The City will enforce drainage requirements in the Subdivision Ordinance and related standards. 
(7) Private streets will remain the responsibility of record owners or the homeowners association and 

as such be maintained by the responsible party. 

Sanitation and Recycling. Sanitation and recycling service will be immediately available to residential 
customers in accordance with existing City ordinances. Residents in the newly annexed area may select to 
continue service with their current service provider for up to two years, or switch to the City' s service, 
currently provided by contract with Waste Management, Inc. After the second anniversary of the annexation 
date, the City will provide the service at City rates. Residents will be contacted with information regarding 
how to obtain sanitation and recycling service, and efforts will be made to coordinate any transition of service. 

Sanitation service will be immediately available to non-residential customers through any of the commercial 
services franchised by the City. Non-residential customers are responsible for obtaining commercial service. 

Brush Collection Services. Brush collection services shall be provided to residents in the same manner and at 
the same rate as provided for other residents within the City of Belton. 

Water Service/Distribution. The area proposed for annexation is located within the certificated area of two 
water districts: the City of Belton is responsible for water service on the north side of Amity Road, and the 
Salado Water Supply Corporation is responsible for water service on the south side of Amity Road, subject 
to the City' s water extension policies. Water service, by the Salado Water Supply Corporation or the City of 
Belton, will be subject to regulation by the City of Belton as it relates to development standards and design 
requirements. 

Wastewater Service/Collection. (NOTE: Pending Sewer CCN Service Area, subject to Public Utility 
Commission approval.) Wastewater services are available for extension to the area proposed for annexation in 

2 



the same manner as they are available in the other locations within the City of Belton, in accordance with the 
City's wastewater extension policies, subject to pending sewer CCN proposal before the Public Utilities 
Commission. The developer or property owner is responsible for funding extension and connection to the 
municipal system in accordance with the City's subdivision regulations and extension policies. 

Environmental Health. Immediately upon the effective date of the annexation, the City's environmental 
health ordinances and regulations shall be applicable to the annexed areas. All health related matters are 
handled for the City by the Bell County Health District. 

Maintenance of Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools. The City is not aware of the existence of any 
publicly owned parks, playgrounds or swimming pools now located in the proposed areas of annexation. 
In the event any such parks, playgrounds, or swimming pools do exist and are public facilities, the City will 
maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and degree and to the same or similar level of service now 
being provided to other such areas and facilities within the corporate limits of the City with like 
topography, land use and density as those found within the newly annexed areas. Private facilities will 
remain under the ownership of the homeowners association and as such maintained by the association. 

Maintenance of any Publicly owned Facility, Building or Municipal Service. The City is not aware of the 
existence of any other publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal service now located in the 
proposed areas of annexation. In the event any other publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal 
service does exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and 
degree and to the same or similar level of service now being provided to other such areas and facilities 
within the corporate limits of the City with like topography, land use and density as those found within the 
newly annexed areas. 

Services, Funding and City Policies. All services which require expenditure of public funds are subject to 
annual appropriations by the City Council. Copies of City policies are available in the City Clerk's office 
upon request. 

Construction of Capital Improvements To Be Completed Within 2Yz Years. 

1. Trunk Sewer Line. A trunk sewer line is currently in design and is planned for placement along the 
east side of IH-35, north of this Study Area. This trunk line will be available for extension to 
developing properties in the same manner as they are available in other locations within the City in 
accordance with City extension policies. Line construction is scheduled to begin in 2017 and service 
will be available by June 30, 2019. 

2. Police and Fire Protection and Solid Waste Collection. The City finds and determines it is not 
necessary to acquire or construct any capital improvements within 2 Yz years of the effective date of 
the annexation of the particular annexed areas for the purpose of providing police protection, fire 
protection, emergency medical services or solid waste collection. The City finds and determines 
that it has at the present time adequate facilities and other resources to provide the same type, 
kind and level of service and protection which is presently being administered to other areas 
already incorporated in the City with like topography, land use and population density as those 
found within the newly annexed areas. 

3 



3. Water/Wastewater Facilities Other than the Trunk Sewer Line Identified above in No.I. A one 
million gallon elevated water storage tank is planned on existing City property in Northwest 
Belton. Belton' s third water storage tank will enhance water service throughout the City including 
water flow and pressures, storage for fire protection, and additional capacity during maintenance. 
This tank will be available by June 30, 2019. For the next 2 Yi years, the City finds and determines 
that there is sufficient capacity to provide water services to the annexed areas pursuant to the City' s 
extension policies in compliance with current CCN for the City of Belton. The now existing water 
mains at existing locations shall be available for the point of use extension based upon the standard 
extension policy now existing or as may be amended. 

On-site sewerage systems may be maintained in accordance with the City' s Code of Ordinances 
and subject to approval by the Public Works Director/Bell County Health District. 

4. Roads and Streets. The City finds and determines it is not necessary to acquire or construct any 
capital improvements within 2 Yi years of the effective date of the annexation of the particular 
annexed areas. 

5. Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools and Any Other Publicly Owned Facility, Building, or 
Service. An expansion of the City' s hike and bike trail network totaling approximately 0.8 mile, 
and extending from University Blvd to the proposed Sparta Road roundabout, will connect with the 
City' s existing trail system for a total projected length of 2.8 miles. This trail will be available by 
June 30, 2019. 

Specific Findings. Belton, Texas, finds and determines that this proposed service plan will not provide any 
fewer services and will not provide a lower level of service in the areas being considered for annexation 
than were in existence in the proposed areas at the time immediately preceding the annexation process. 
Given the proposed annexation areas ' topography, land utilization and population density, the service 
,levels to be provided in the newly annexed areas will be equivalent to those provided to other areas of the 
City with similar characteristics. 

Terms. This plan shall be valid for a term of 10 years. Renewal of the Service Plan is at the discretion of the 
City of Belton. 

Level of Service. Nothing in this plan shall require the City to provide a uniform level of full municipal 
services to each area of the City, including the annexed areas, if different characteristics of topography, land 
use, and population density are considered a sufficient basis for providing different levels of service. 

Amendments. The plan shall not be amended unless public hearings are held in accordance with Chapter 4 3 
of the Texas Local Government Code. 

The area will be immediately included in the planning and development of the City's Capital Improvements 
Plan (CIP). 

4 



LJ Property Boundaries 

# of Resident Addresses 

• Area 3, In Annexation Boundary (13) 

Area 3, Outside Annexation Boundary (1) 

• Area 4, In Annexation Boundary (15) 

o Area 4, Outside Annexation Boundary (1) 

c::J Area 3 - 250.14 Acres 

c::J Area 4 -297 .20 Acres 

CJ Property Boundary 

ET J Boundaries 

c::J Belton ET J 

Killeen ETJ 



ANNEXATION STUDY 2016 - AREA 4 
2'f1.20 ACRES OF LAND 

FOR THE <:;ITY Of' ElEl.. TON, BELL CCUITY, TCXA5. 

I f'......,......,...~60et.J! 

~c.RAl6~,,,........ 
61U..H?l!ITER 
1031TOU.!IRID6EPO.l\O 
aa..TON.TEflr6i&51!5 
c.AU.EO• ..... ~ 

"°'· "°·~ l..OT"l, ~l 
Ta.Lt!IRIPK'6T"Te5 

""""'"""' Gcb. 0.51. ~::i.....-. 

2. JN'!IEL!>TM.L~lwbald. 
Al..Rl5)6. STNJ. 
12-41 TOU.!RtDISeRCMQ 
Ba.TON,~~ 
~~JeJ.JOllS 
Doc.No • .lO~ 
1..0T" 2,l!l..GIQC:I 

~2:"re 
9. DARRBtMNUIHSQfl.J...ER 

'61!5.J'f!!RtOH6POAO 

~~~ 
4. 6Nl:f'OEN-l~.JR. 

965aJ-BtKJM;!;AOAO 

~~~~· 
5. AAY L~R!N"ROcndf'jl'-. .,.,,,.,..__ 

1511 row.. eRJDee RO....O 
e!!.roti.~"16!5e 
"""'"'6lOI' 
~14.00~ 
Vol.5'401. Plg. <fl 

&. ll!!H"'fll.o UTIUTie,IHG. 
~I TCll.L.~11c.trC 
BB..TON.rexi'd1651!t 
GAU...e>210~ 
Vot. 5004, Pg. q1 

i . REH'MO U'TlUTlES,IHG. 
'MllrOU..~ROl'ID 

~~~ 
Vol. ~. l"'g. *2 

&. reRH LGU5f: vtc.KER5 
AeVOGJra.ELM t6TR.IST 
1102N.l!l.IRH:SA~ 
GN'EROM.TEX.1'6,6S30 
GALJ...!1).500~ 
Vol. 5'41, Pq.~ 

'ii. Rel'ft011T1U1'i1!!$, IHG. 
1'411 TGll.Leia06eR()oltO 
eB...Tat-1,~165e 
Gl\U...l:DIOJJ10~ 
Vot. 40!5. Pg..256 

.0 . ..IOl+HrD. SlllAnt:Jt.,o'ld ollf .. 
.Jt+t'e'Al!IRAT'T'QI 
P.0. 80X T14 
SAt.>00. ~"165'11 
~I0.00~ 
Vol.5.104. Pg. ~ 

I '. aJ6BE 1UC«Efl and .. we, ......,,.""""" 
eo!ll"'DX~ 
!!B.TOM,1V:olr6'l6'15 
GH..l.m2&.M'4~ 
Poc.. Mo. 20t2~ 

12 . ~ROefftT~ 
PD. 80K8C I 
~. TEIC.l'6,6'51l 
GM.U!OIO.t04>oc.AfS 
Ooc.. Mo.20!2-000!0&26 

~. O"VIDA&OOPl!'ald T....,......,. 

""""" 5l0" 5. FORT~ 5l'REET 
KIL.L.!BlTEXAS"Je&42 

u.ua>""'""""" Vot "'9, Ag.<fl' 

~. AA'T'MOM:) C.. ~a'OCI 
..... ~ ... e.~ 
"'5-B..H6A0'-.1!'ft.OAO 
rl!.TON.T1!X>6ifl51, 
Gl'Ul!O I~~ 
Vot. '4;;!11J, f'9 . .e6 

"· ~RAMtl.T' 
~,,.,., 

~fi.Mcw.ov!P.DN> 
!!l!l.TON.Tl!XA.9lb!I' 
GM.LED!S."T06.AGR!5 
VQl.<t.:J0.Ptj.~ 

te . e.168EG.1l.fGl(fRana...., 
El;reC>.Ai5. TUC.KfR 
Kl00 $.. Gl..eAA~~ 

~"""'-UrU..8) IOODO~ 

Vo'. "°'°. ~~ 

l".o eo,.: 26 
Hl!:~TeXA9' 1~ 
"""-1.EDl6.l6~ 
DoG. Moo. 2001-GIOCM611& 

le. ~ Dl!:Nt ,..<eKA °""' 
et-ILYHI~ 
"'111.AVOHL.>iie 
T!M'U!,T!!ICA5'116150l 
~660IAC.li!!e 
VQl. 1644..-g.<40'! 

~~~a.., 

'20~~aod .....,,...,,.__,.,., 
5M f . J\Ml'TYROl.P 
Sl'll..ADO,fe)tA6165TI 
G>i..UDP'J.40'!1'GR!S 
Vol. 405!, Pc. 6156 

~~~~~ 
21. ~\!Bt6 

506E. AMITYROAD 
s.-......A00.~ 16511 
c;..AU.fDl"t."IO'I~ 

~~r 
'4HOHIU..HIU.~O"t 
'41. G, ~' . "ll..f!I 

:22. Tl+EtH~l"RGlf'ERT'e. INc.. 
'4k'~Y S""f'REr'T 
i'IU5TlN,lEXA51&'l0!5 
GloU..B>9.641 N:,R£ 
Do<:.No. JOl+ooc:JCJY-)01: 

2'.nr+eRMAl+l~IHG. 
•.o. eo,.:.n&4 
~f1M,T!!XJtie~1f6 
.E'HIJHOf!R:Dr 
GM.l..E!D2'.30K.Re5 
Vo. . 7T'O, Pg....., 

:2 .... ~R.HM:.NUS5, nAL 

~""'IMT~~ 
~. 'l'VVd~ 
~-40~...ate 
Vol . 2221, P"g~ 

2'.T)QJa..e:;TIIUGD!!UvetT' 

~ll!JK1Ut5TRf2T, 5TE.125 
P'CR'fttORTH.rexAS16t0:2 
~l.4'f~ 
~. Ho. 2006-«J0!60l ... 

26. 'DUB...!GTitlC~ 
GOH"*" 
P.O. BaX2M011 
O,A,1..1..AS.TE.ICAS15Z21 
~11.Zl<IGRe; 

~::: :=: :::1! 
7TT>t.laJSC.TlillG Ol!U~ 

ccrpl>H( 
l60IER'l'~ 5TREET 
l).AU.A5,TfX,Ai6~ 
Clrtl.LEPCl,,.llGA!3 
Doc..No. ~+432: 

:2.e.~TI~ 
l".0. eCJX-tltM 
.olll.&TlM. Tex.i61&'1fle 
GA!J.B:) ..... .2'12Al'.AES 
Vol . 2'1'0. f"9. ~2' 

:.M.l'&T AMITYLN«> 
~r.u.c:. 
9"1KGOVl!!"V.,.,~ 
tf"RIM&.~~ 
GALi.m5..00AGRe 
O.X...No.~ 

90.GlO LNVDEVEl..OPl-t:HT. U.C:. 
,.. l't.GOV£VIB'ITR.lt.I!. 
~. ~nJ&CI 
C.Al..LZC>9.00~ 
~. HO. XNQ.00022619 

,. .~~~, U..C. 

e.~ ... 
52.l"t!STH'llTT'L.Jt,K) 
~r. u..c. 
"'"-~V1'HTlllAIL 
~. 1b(M.TI!!l&ll 
GAl...U!0.4.l:JACAE!. 
OoG. No .~40 

j 

/ 
/ 

'1l*~-pr~LfWMlr>::t:lTl>G665.2!, "°'"Mlrwf''9c:tttw~ofQ'!onh~ 

~~~~~~~::=~~~=::r,or 
"'ldl!t-~. 

The~~~-pr~bojhTl))(~Ol9b°ld.ollWl~T•-

ll'll9tUt~•to~o~otttwhr9n~:zqi.20~inxt. 

1303 South 2 1!tt street 

/) 

~~o Terrple-. Toxa!t 16504 
254-Tie-2212 Kiiieen 254-b:M-4636 

Fax 254-TI-4-"1606 
Tx. Firm Lie.. No. 1002'600 

ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC. 

\,· 
.._/ 

...._...-' ./ 

}"' //
/ /~ 
7~~

/ / (), 

/ L 
/ I -..... 

..___,/ // 
/ ! 

---/ / 
/ I 

~/' /I 
-/ / 

--/ /'? 
/ / i 

/ / I 

/ /~~/ 
/• ... ) 

"'~,~~ ""'· a..:..._~ 

~ 

~ 

ANNEXATION STUDY 2016 - AREA 4 
2Cfl .20 ACRES OF LAND 

FOR n£ GITY OF eEL TON, SELL COJNTT', TCXA5. 

~. ~ 

Joblio'. ~ 

DP..gHo .~ 

~~ .-M.. ... 
...._~ 

~2*HC.-.,~~ 



CITY OF BELTON 
MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 

AREAS 

The area proposed for annexation consists of approximately 228.27 acres, along and north of Sparta Road, 
extending west to FM 439, and east along Sparta Road. 

Municipal Services to be Provided: The City will provide the following services, beginning immediately 
upon the effective date of the annexation. All the services will be provided at a service level that is equal or 
superior to the level of services in the area prior to the annexation. 

Police Protection. Police protection personnel and equipment from the Belton Police Department shall be 
provided to the areas immediately upon the effective date of the annexation of the areas. Response to calls for 
police services, crime prevention programs and all other police services will be provided at the same level as 
provided to other areas of the City. Police enforcement and protection services shall be provided at the 
request of residents/property owners in the area. 

Animal Control. The City shall provide animal control services immediately upon the effective date of the 
annexation of the area. These services encompass regular patrol by the animal control officer and response to 
animal nuisance problems from residents in the area. 

Fire and Emergency Medical Service CEMS) Protection. Upon annexation, the City will provide fire and EMS 
response at the level provided inside the Belton city limits. The service level will be equal to or better than 
the current level, with the limitations of water available. 

Code Enforcement. The City shall provide code enforcement services immediately upon annexation to 
include response to complaints of weedy lot violations, junked vehicles, sign violations, and other similar 
general city code violations. 

Fire Prevention. All of the services performed by the City' s Fire Marshal shall be provided immediately upon 
the effective date of the annexation of the areas. 

Planning, Zoning and Development Review. The area will automatically be zoned Agricultural on the 
effective date of annexation. In conjunction with review of Comprehensive Plan, a land use plan will be 
developed and permanent zoning established under the process specified by the City's Zoning Ordinance. In 
the interim, the Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider zoning and rezoning 
tracts of the property in response to landowner requests. Subdivision plat review will occur in the City and in 
Belton's extraterritorial jurisdiction in order to ensure orderly development of land, reduce flood potential, 
achieve efficient operation of public facilities and services, and provide accurate description and addressing of 
property. 

Code Compliance. Immediately upon the annexation becoming effective, building inspection activities will 
be available. The Building Official shall provide consultation with the project developers, independent 
contractors and homeowners for building code requirements, plan review for structures in the area, and on-site 
inspection services as needed, to include evaluation of hazardous and dilapidated buildings. 

1 



Library. Residents within the newly annexed areas shall be provided all services available at Belton's Lena 
Armstrong Public Library. 

Parks and Recreation. All City of Belton public parks, facilities, and resources shall be available to residents 
of the· annexed area. 

Streets and Drainage. Existing dedicated public streets and drainage structures and courses maintained by 
Bell County will be maintained by the City of Belton at their current or better level of improvement with like 
topography, land use, and density as those found within the City. Private streets are not maintained by the 
City. Roadways maintained by the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) will continue to be 
maintained by TxDOT. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way shall be as follows: 

(1) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures necessary for traffic 
flow, etc. 

(2) Routine maintenance and right-of-way mowing as presently performed within City. 
(3) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, construction of curbs, 

gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is determined by the governing 
body under City policies. 

( 4) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and other traffic 
control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and traffic standards. 

(5) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established policies of the City. 
( 6) The City will enforce drainage requirements in the Subdivision Ordinance and related standards. 
(7) Private streets will remain the responsibility of record owners or the homeowners association and 

as such be maintained by the responsible party. 

Sanitation and Recycling. Sanitation and recycling service will be immediately available to residential 
customers in accordance with existing City ordinances. Residents in the newly annexed area may select to 
continue service with their current service provider for up to two years, or switch to the City's service, 
currently provided by contract with Waste Management, Inc. After the second anniversary of the annexation 
date, the City will provide the service at City rates. Residents will be contacted with information regarding 
how to obtain sanitation and recycling service, and efforts will be made to coordinate any transition of service. 

Sanitation service will be immediately available to non-residential customers through any of the commercial 
services franchised by the City. Non-residential customers are responsible for obtaining commercial service. 

Brush Collection Services. Brush collection services shall be provided to residents in the same manner and at 
the same rate as provided for other residents within the City of Belton. 

Water Service/Distribution. The area proposed for annexation is located within the Certificate of 
Convenience and Necessity ( CCN) area of the 439 Water Supply Corporation. Water service to this area is 
the responsibility of the 439 Water Supply Corporation. Such water service will be subject to regulation by 
the City of Belton as it relates to development standards and design requirements in accordance with the 
ordinances, rules and regulations in effect at the time of installation. 

Wastewater Service/Collection. (NOTE: Pending Sewer CCN Service Area, subject to Public Utility 
Commission approval.) Wastewater services are available for extension to the area proposed for annexation in 
the same manner as they are available in the other locations within the City of Belton, in accordance with the 

2 



City's wastewater extension policies, subject to pending sewer CCN proposal before the Public Utilities 
Commission. The developer or property owner is responsible for funding extension and connection to the 
municipal system in accordance with the City's subdivision regulations and extension policies. 

Environmental Health. Immediately upon the effective date of the annexation, the City's environmental 
health ordinances and regulations shall be applicable to the annexed areas. All health related matters are 
handled for the City by the Bell County Health District. 

Maintenance of Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools. The City is not aware of the existence of any 
publicly owned parks, playgrounds or swimming pools now located in the proposed areas of annexation. 
In the event any such parks, playgrounds, or swimming pools do exist and are public facilities, the City will 
maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and degree and to the same or similar level of service now 
being provided to other such areas and facilities within the corporate limits of the City with like 
topography, land use and density as those found within the newly annexed areas. Private facilities will 
remain under the ownership of the homeowners association and as such maintained by the association. 

Maintenance of any Publicly owned Facility, Building or Municipal Service. The City is not aware of the 
existence of any other publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal service now located in the 
proposed areas of annexation. In the event any other publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal 
service does exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and 
degree and to the same or similar level of service now being provided to other such areas and facilities 
within the corporate limits of the City with like topography, land use and density as those found within the 
newly annexed areas. 

Services, Funding and City Policies. All services which require expenditure of public funds are subject to 
annual appropriations by the City Council. Copies of City policies are available in the City Clerk's office 
upon request. 

Construction of Capital Improvements To Be Completed Within 2Yz Years. 

1. Police and Fire Protection and Solid Waste Collection. The City finds and determines it is not 
necessary to acquire or construct any capital improvements within 2 Yz years of the effective date of 
the annexation of the particular annexed areas for the purpose of providing police protection, fire 
protection, emergency medical services or solid waste collection. The City finds and determines 
that it has at the present time adequate facilities and other resources to provide the same type, 
kind and level of service and protection which is presently being administered to other areas 
already incorporated in the City with like topography, land use and population density as those 
found within the newly annexed areas. 

2. Water/Wastewater Facilities. A one million gallon elevated water storage tank is planned on 
existing City property in Northwest Belton. Belton's third water storage tank will enhance water 
service throughout the City including water flow and pressures, storage for fire protection, and 
additional capacity during maintenance. This tank will be available by June 30, 2019. For the next 
2 Yz years, the City finds and determines that there is sufficient capacity to provide water services to 
the annexed areas pursuant to the City's extension policies in compliance with current CCN for the 
City of Belton. The now existing water mains at existing locations shall be available for the point 
of use extension based upon the standard extension policy now existing or as may be amended. 

3 



On-site sewerage systems may be maintained in accordance with the City's Code of Ordinances 
and subject to approval by the Public Works Director/Bell County Health District. 

3. Roads and Streets. The City finds and determines it is not necessary to acquire or construct any 
capital improvements within 2 Yz years of the effective date of the annexation of the particular 
annexed areas. 

4. Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools and Any Other Publicly Owned Facility, Building, or 
Service. An expansion of the City's hike and bike trail network totaling approximately 0.8 mile 
and extending from University Blvd to the proposed Sparta Road roundabout, will connect with the 
City's existing trail system for a total projected length of2.8 miles. This trail will be available by 
June 30, 2019. 

Specific Findings. Belton, Texas, finds and determines that this proposed service plan will not provide any 
fewer services and will not provide a lower level of service in the areas being considered for annexation 
than were in existence in the proposed areas at the time immediately preceding the annexation process. 
Given the proposed annexation areas' topography, land utilization and population density, the service 
levels to be provided in the newly annexed areas will be equivalent to those provided to other areas of the 
City with similar characteristics. 

Terms. This plan shall be valid for a term of 10 years. Renewal of the Service Plan is at the discretion of the 
City of Belton. 

Level of Service. Nothing in this plan shall require the City to provide a uniform level of full municipal 
services to each area of the City, including the annexed areas, if different characteristics of topography, land 
use, and population density are considered a sufficient basis for providing different levels of service. 

Amendments. The plan shall not be amended unless public hearings are held in accordance with Chapter 4 3 
of the Texas Local Government Code. 

The area will be immediately included in the planning and development of the City's Capital Improvements 
Plan (CIP). 

4 



/~ l i \- I t~--1 I - - / ~ ',,, \ '-! f--// I /
- -.I I / I "'""- I I I, I/ I I '/ 

\\ I;' i ; / ·,IX 'L>1 , ,c ___ /1.'' 
\ \ , , - .,._ I I I' "F ~I 11 , , , '7! II ' 

_;;',j I 
1 

~, 1 ---!' ;,, 1,,~f::i .1 !.f I r----1r- -- · - - ! I . __ ;:::-;::;-r ..... 1. i ~~us1- --1 ' - -- -:r: ----,',,__!, 1 m .: 1 1, 1 

1 

/ 
<- ''·" I "'°' ..,.../;/ .. ,,,, / ·{. /-- -1 l . I s~ /, 

1

·; 1 / 

- ·,·. ' /1 , • , , § ·- -- /' ' --- ' 

'' ·- · r · i....,,.i. , 
1

- -- -- --1 11: - -"---
1 
·,,0c--- -=-"C-n --· . · · ::\::;. "---~,,,,,,~-- ' ' ,, I -~ 1 -,-- . ,, • 1 

' - - ' • """'- ' ,- ! I r:--; • ,-.~.;.::. '-·•,_ i e$ 1 ··~I' , 
... . ,, , , ...,., ,,s~.,, ,·t-.;,. , ,, ' ./ ---~-...:::.,-- ' I "°'· •""<~,..,J~o·"' ! ~~ii 1 ,,, ,.. •.,-i);' 1;,, , // • I ,,, , i: ,. , I.' '5 -.. _! 

, . > ; / I 1 
a:'v ' _... ! I I 

~ ... "',...,~ 
~=-~~-

'.; ------: , / , I • I : 
!'-1 \· . , · • : , • • I , \ " , I , -,, - ' ' I """"'";::" < . i ' I 

/ 

1 

r •--, =~---~/ / , ; i 
\ I I , -· ' ' " ' A ' ''' • '' ""--=~ - · 1. --. I '/ I 

"/ 

f) 

I 

22~~ 

I 
/ 

I 
I 
I 

ANNEXATION STUDY 2016 - AREA 5 
228.21 ACRES OF LAND 

FOR T1£ CITY OF BELTON, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS. 

"~ .. ,.,~ "°"· 11o. ,.,.~ 

1<~;~1'.r/i~;C:_·>" 1 ~ -___ _____ _) · ~ ·! _ / _ , I 
I I 

I 

I 

~ 

@) 

' " -- - -I; --~-:::-:.~ ---- !I ~... ' ' "" ~ ' ~ .... "".~ b- -
• ' 

1 

• - --- ' ---- • "'~- I · 
1 

• • ,..,.. ~dD 
'/ "-,'-- -1 /, • ==-: -- ~ "" ./ 'l' f I f, f , I/' ", ,/,''!/ I /

0

"' ce;~, ~ 
- - L._ i' f"M";:r - I F , ~'~.' fl~" / sfJ.Z.. /l/J' M? ·' ~ -, i 'Id ,_ , 7 . .,, ~ . "' , 

· · "1'!* L9i -,,,,= 1 fft. : , : §,;, /l,r fp ·fi, !f~ J!ll· - • ' -·'""'· · - · · ~ ~ -- - _ - _ L . '"'('.~ . - ---, "S"""= ti{• , /£: , !/'' q·, 'i'J ~1/ i'flj •,iftl!/Jjg ~ ~· ' I "' . ,.~ L.:11. I L2o l Uij ,: Lli -· / f/69/7 

· ~.,;:;:- Ii/ I f.t • /"'- f - ' " 
1

' i/~< Q. t::=/'5!2'51.. f/q I t,Z 
1
! //, .. l!J.1fr / ll,

1 

·' /J % fl/EJ 
--• 

1

/,' , ' ' h - ·- 1 Rilj ' ~t "il' z, <ii 

1 

Z· l.M 
, =-,,,..,,,;:.,._ ti ~ i !f1, 

1
1 1:,'lf /l;l1·'!t: f·' / Pi ,~}l' 

/ 
I 
I 

/ 
CZ 

/ <D 

I 
I r -1 

1 ~ i 

I. M.QllUAM.HOU..e~ .......,D ""-1.E 
2910!1¥Rf/\~ 
efl.TUN,TVC,lid~ 
........... """8 
Vol. ""'5"f, P'tj.622 

lo. 6LOR!AM.MC.UEt:r.a 
e.lllOe.P. HOU.J! 
~l0511"""1r"'lllOl'rtl' 
ee.TCJH,TVCA!iie6 
c.,.tr.jJ,J!t)l ,*I~ 
V"'. ~, Pg.642 

1 'w"""60NH HICAC!i 
~SPM'TA"°"'° 
l!!llB..TOH,TVCA5~ 
GAU..ea»MAGRe 
Poc. . ~.lOll~ 

,,~RATIQ!.l'f 
6IO ... M.teet 
~. ~1f6Jlol 
CAl.l~0-«5"1AOlE. 
VcL..,,.., AJ.?.:t 

'- ~·-~~ _._,..._,; 
ITl6HO.NT ..... Rltl6!'DRN'r 
el!L.f~TVCJ61&!M 
c...AUZP~~~ 
Vot. '°"6, "CJ tl6f 

'-l'flllol\.HH.,.t;IAfYT~. 
o'ld .... , !LtVroeVW'T'.Ail..1.eT 
41"t)9PNCrlt."°"" 
i:iel..n:::itoi.~~'ll.6!!9 
t"....u..E:i1:5eO"T~ 
Vot. 21c:1!l5, Pg.:ic.e 

• eeGiRM~c:rid ... 
~TJtGP- Cl940H 
Po. eox2961 
~Ht?!M4r!,~ ....... 
GMJJ!OM_,.Air..RE5 
Vol 5~. f'l9'22 

, MQJt~c::teST09'. tc.. ,.o eox92' 
ee!TCH.~"16St!I 

"""""""""' <AW!l>IO.>'.....,. 
veo1. ~. 9f3. 2'tl' 

0 . A>Fll)lf4/\.l"filSGoMT0"'611ff•, 
TlAAG./tM:YA..Jl>L. 
~lO~AAT"A"°"° 
el!l.tOH.T!'~~ 
c:.Alt.JD l.2&2~ 
O.X.. No.~ 

"'· JAG.ii::e.l!Ll..IOTTcwd .. f'• 
teLDAl!!LLIOrT 
~Sfi¥ATA"°NJ 
Bfl..TOoi.~-.,.,, 
GM.UOI~~ 
Vot.~"10.~~ 

"'- ~~N.J«.ER 
»o&~~STR:lff 
S'"'!.~ 
MLTOM. lVVo5 "Mee 
G>iLL.eo'6~Jr<Me 
Y'ol.2062.f"9.2'46 

1. c.M..Vlterre 
~ 
~!IPAAT"'-AO,llD 
91!L.TOM.T!M5'le0l!!I 
~24,1"10~ 

"°' · '~"9-""' ,,,..,... ...,... 
!Ml'JO~l..1!"'4""°""° 
l"lt'.XO'r. ~"Meel ,,...,,,., . ...,.... 
Veol . et5, Pg.."'61 

"-~!J~T 
fl'.O, !IOX649 
Lfnt.f'JIN9tl~. ,._....,.. 
G.N.UD'!IDO~ 
Vot51'J11'1. ~419 

""G.,,,,,...,.~ 
Seo95PNUAFIOMJ 
ea.TQ(,~~ 
GALl.J!0,.000~ 
Or&.c.l<b.200'J-coro!i062<4 

&. ~T. ,..tla.rt 
''?.IO'!iPARTAfl.OAD 
ea.TC»l.~'16'1-' 
GALL.m6,-«~ 
Doe. Ho. 2()14-000,..,..2 

.. PCll.eC..f: 0 !:!OAT f. 
~N-5T°""""6E. Lf0. 
94.......,.HCl>M: 
!11.Ml.MrON,~"Jeetoll 
GAllZP'O~ 
Vot~2. "'39111 

/;1; o !r1 /f!, 1 'i.:'; i/_!1. lff; 1 if!1 i!fjH 
• f t . ' f I •1 I .- ! ! 'fl (f, ~ -, 

~ 
n.~...:.~~2l tJric:.~~.a...td.rwtliw.thr•.Sbofanonh~ 
~ordi.rlCltt.ot.....ctlo~or-..d::llWl..._.-U,htwoi~•~IMow~ 
ond~"'f'li.d'Of',..tmtW.d~hc.r..atforlor~oll:MpOl*'td~ror 
...... .h't-pr.,x:r.o. 

n.""'Of'Tlll:ll1CW1~_._-~Dv••tox~~-~'~'-· 

.,..~ .. lo~Cl~~.Q'loftt.""""'~22&.l"l,..,,,.Lrod.. 

T---·-...,. 
I 

I I 

I 
I 

~ 
' ·, 
I 
I 

i '· 
I 
I 

D 
U) 

< 
~~ · 
~ < ~ 
~_J ~ 
~~ ;j 
>-\,{) ~ 
D~ ~ 
~~ ill 
\,{), ~ 

:zr- ~ 
() <'i 0 

i=~ ~ 

~~ ~ 

~ 

~ 

- l ~ 
!~~h 
~h~~ 
:§~~!Q~ 
Jl~~x~ 
~!~1?~ 
- ~ ~ 

~ 

~~ 
~~ 
A~ 
·~ 
S<.alo.~ 
..k:lbNo. ~ 

"'"9""·~ ,,.._ .... ~ ...._. 



CITY OF BELTON 
MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 

AREA6 

The area proposed for annexation consists of approximately 24.10 acres, located generally along the 
proposed north/south alignment of Lake-to-Lake Road, and south of FM 93. 

Municipal Services to be Provided: The City will provide the following services, beginning immediately 
upon the effective date of the annexation. All the services will be provided at a service level that is equal or 
superior to the level of services in the area prior to the annexation. 

Police Protection. Police protection personnel and equipment from the Belton Police Department shall be 
provided to the areas immediately upon the effective date of the annexation of the areas. Response to calls for 
police services, crime prevention programs and all other police services will be provided at the same level as 
provided to other areas of the City. Police enforcement and protection services shall be provided at the 
request of residents/property owners in the area. 

Animal Control. The City shall provide animal control services immediately upon the effective date of the 
annexation of the area. These services encompass regular patrol by the animal control officer and response to 
animal nuisance problems from residents in the area. 

Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Protection. Upon annexation, the City will provide fire and EMS 
response at the level provided inside the Belton city limits. The service level will be equal to or better than 
the current level, with the limitations of water available. 

Code Enforcement. The City shall provide code enforcement services immediately upon annexation to 
include response to complaints of weedy lot violations, junked vehicles, sign violations, and other similar 
general city code violations. 

Fire Prevention. All of the services performed by the City's Fire Marshal shall be provided immediately upon 
the effective date of the annexation of the areas. 

Planning, Zoning and Development Review. The area will automatically be zoned Agricultural on the 
effective date of annexation. In conjunction with review of Comprehensive Plan, a land use plan will be 
developed and permanent zoning established under the process specified by the City's Zoning Ordinance. In 
the interim, the Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider zoning and rezoning 
tracts of the property in response to landowner requests. Subdivision plat review will occur in the City and in 
Belton's extraterritorial jurisdiction in order to ensure orderly development ofland, reduce flood potential, 
achieve efficient operation of public facilities and services, and provide accurate description and addressing of 
property. 

Code Compliance. Immediately upon the annexation becoming effective, building inspection activities will 
be available. The Building Official shall provide consultation with the project developers, independent 
contractors and homeowners for building code requirements, plan review for structures in the area, and on-site 
inspection services as needed, to include evaluation of hazardous and dilapidated buildings. 

1 



Library. Residents within the newly annexed areas shall be provided all services available at Belton's Lena 
Armstrong Public Library. 

Parks and Recreation. All City of Belton public parks, facilities, and resources shall be available to residents 
of the annexed area. 

Streets and Drainage. Existing dedicated public streets and drainage structures and courses maintained by 
Bell County will be maintained by the City of Belton at their current or better level of improvement with like 
topography, land use, and density as those found within the City. Private streets are not maintained by the 
City. Roadways maintained by the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) will continue to be 
maintained by TxDOT. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way shall be as follows: 

(1) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures necessary for traffic 
flow, etc. 

(2) Routine maintenance and right-of-way mowing as presently performed within City. 
(3) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, construction of curbs, 

gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is determined by the governing 
body under City policies. 

( 4) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and other traffic 
control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and traffic standards. 

( 5) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established policies of the City. 
(6) The City will enforce drainage requirements in the Subdivision Ordinance and related standards. 
(7) Private streets will remain the responsibility of record owners or the homeowners association and 

as such be maintained by the responsible party. 

Sanitation and Recycling. Sanitation and recycling service will be immediately available to residential 
customers in accordance with existing City ordinances. Residents in the newly annexed area may select to 
continue service with their current service provider for up to two years, or switch to the City's service, 
currently provided by contract with Waste Management, Inc. After the second anniversary of the annexation 
date, the City will provide the service at City rates. Residents will be contacted with inf onnation regarding 
how to obtain sanitation and recycling service, and efforts will be made to coordinate any transition of service. 

Sanitation service will be immediately available to non-residential customers through any of the commercial 
services franchised by the City. Non-residential customers are responsible for obtaining commercial service. 

Brush Collection Services. Brush collection services shall be provided to residents in the same manner and at 
the same rate as provided for other residents within the City of Belton. 

Water Service/Distribution. The area proposed for annexation is located within the Certificate of 
Convenience and Necessity ( CCN) area of the Dog Ridge Water Supply Corporation. Water service to this 
area is the responsibility of the Dog Ridge Water Supply Corporation. Such water service will be subject to 
regulation by the City of Belton as it relates to development standards and design requirements in accordance 
with the ordinances, rules and regulations in effect at the time of installation. 

Wastewater Service/Collection. (NOTE: Pending Sewer CCN Service Area, subject to Public Utility 
Commission approval.) Wastewater services are available for extension to the area proposed for annexation in 
the same manner as they are available in the other locations within the City of Belton, in accordance with the 

2 



City' s wastewater extension policies, subject to pending sewer CCN proposal before the Public Utilities 
Commission. The developer or property owner is responsible for funding extension and connection to the 
municipal system in accordance with the City' s subdivision regulations and extension policies. 

Environmental Health. Immediately upon the effective date of the annexation, the City' s environmental 
health ordinances and regulations shall be applicable to the annexed areas. All health related matters are 
handled for the City by the Bell County Health District. 

Maintenance of Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools. The City is not aware of the existence of any 
publicly owned parks, playgrounds or swimming pools now located in the proposed areas of annexation. 
In the event any such parks, playgrounds, or swimming pools do exist and are public facilities, the City will 
maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and degree and to the same or similar level of service now 
being provided to other such areas and facilities within the corporate limits of the City with like 
topography, land use and density as those found within the newly annexed areas. Private facilities will 
remain under the ownership of the homeowners association and as such maintained by the association. 

Maintenance of any Publicly owned Facility, Building or Municipal Service. The City is not aware of the 
existence of any other publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal service now located in the 
proposed areas of annexation. In the event any other publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal 
service does exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and 
degree and to the same or similar level of service now being provided to other such areas and facilities 
within the corporate limits of the City with like topography, land use and density as those found within the 
newly annexed areas. 

Services, Funding and City Policies. All services which require expenditure of public funds are subject to 
annual appropriations by the City Council. Copies of City policies are available in the City Clerk' s office 
upon request. 

Construction of Capital Improvements To Be Completed Within 2 'l2 Years. 

1. Police and Fire Protection and Solid Waste Collection. The City finds and determines it is not 
necessary to acquire or construct any capital improvements within 2 'l2 years of the effective date of 
the annexation of the particular annexed areas for the purpose of providing police protection, fire 
protection, emergency medical services or solid waste collection. The City finds and determines 
that it has at the present time adequate facilities and other resources to provide the same type, 
kind and level of service and protection which is presently being administered to other areas 
already incorporated in the City with like topography, land use and population density as those 
found within the newly annexed areas. 

2. Water/Wastewater Facilities. A one million gallon elevated water storage tank is planned on 
existing City property in Northwest Belton. Belton' s third water storage tank will enhance water 
service throughout the City including water flow and pressures, storage for fire protection, and 
additional capacity during maintenance. This tank will be available by June 30, 2019. For the next 
2 Yz years, the City finds and determines that there is sufficient capacity to provide water services to 
the annexed areas pursuant to the City's extension policies in compliance with current CCN for the 
City of Belton. The now existing water mains at existing locations shall be available for the point 
of use extension based upon the standard extension policy now existing or as may be amended. 

3 



On-site sewerage systems may be maintained in accordance with the City's Code of Ordinances 
and subject to approval by the Public Works Director/Bell County Health District. 

3. Roads and Streets. The City finds and determines it is not necessary to acquire or construct any 
capital improvements within 2 Y2 years of the effective date of the annexation of the particular 
annexed areas. 

4. Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools and Any Other Publicly Owned Facility, Building, or 
Service. An expansion of the City's hike and bike trail network totaling approximately 0.8 mile 
and extending from University Blvd to the proposed Sparta Road roundabout, will connect with the 
City's existing trail system for a total projected length of 2.8 miles. This trail will be available by 
June 30, 2019. 

Specific Findings. Belton, Texas, finds and determines that this proposed service plan will not provide any 
fewer services and will not provide a lower level of service in the areas being considered for annexation 
than were in existence in the proposed areas at the time immediately preceding the annexation process. 
Given the proposed annexation areas' topography, land utilization and population density, the service 
levels to be provided in the newly annexed areas will be equivalent to those provided to other areas of the 
City with similar characteristics. 

Terms. This plan shall be valid for a term of 10 years. Renewal of the Service Plan is at the discretion of the 
City of Belton. 

Level of Service. Nothing in this plan shall require the City to provide a uniform level of full municipal 
services to each area of the City, including the annexed areas, if different characteristics of topography, land 
use, and population density are considered a sufficient basis for providing different levels of service. 

Amendments. The plan shall not be amended unless public hearings are held in accordance with Chapter 43 
of the Texas Local Government Code. 

The area will be immediately included in the planning and development of the City's Capital Improvements 
Plan (CIP). 

4 



ANNEXATION STUDY 2016 - AREA 6 
24.10 ACRES OF LAND 

FOR THE GITY OF BEL TON, BELL GOUNTY, TEXAS. 
/_ -------
! 

---7 I 

............... 

I I 
L ·-··-·-· -----/ 

/ 
I 
I 
I 

=r~-ff"l'------; __ -- i 
___ R - 5200.00' - ------ -- ·---------~ 

----r .... _ c, - 14'=134' 
/ -----------6~J~l.._ e5°21'55M E I D - e 0oeirew-----· ----------ELl.CJIY . .OE n:MPLE 

i 

I 

e - C.Olc.ulated Point 

GALLED l<=!.l<l AC.RES 
BRIAN K . CARROLL and Hlfe, 

LAURA E. CARROLL 
Doc.. No. 2011-0000E>4E>5 

r- ..... 
I r-

''

/ I II 
l I 

I I ! I 
---.___) I / I 

···- ---.. c ___ J / .......... 
"'l'lj"ltiJ-~KES ADDlTIOl"I--. ...._ ......... 

1 C.aE7- A,51. l<l7-A -.. 
I J I I 

I 

/--- .... l ..... _j 
I 
I 

/L_·--
1 
L 

i 
I 

/.. .......... 
....... """' 

/ 

24.10 ACRES 
OF LAND 

GALLED 25.0 AC.RES 
THE DELEON FAMILY TRUST 

C./0 FERNANDO DELEON 
3001 RIVER PLACE DR 
BEL TON, TEXAS 16513 

Doc.. No. 2008-00015150 

ORDINANCE NO. 
2015-12 

GALLED 5<l 56<l AC.RES 
Mc.LEAN COMMERCIAL, LTD. 

Doc.. No. 2013-00040111 

........ __ 

·---

This doc.ument HOS prepared vnder 22 TAC. 663.21, It does not reflec.t the resv lts of an on the grovnd 
svrvey, and Is not to be vsed to c.onvey or establish Interests In real propertlj exc.ept those rights and 
Interests Implied or established btj the c.reatlon or rec.onflgvratlon of the poliflc.al svbdlvlslon for Hhlc.h 
It ~as prepared. This sketc.h Is to ac.c.ompany a desc.rlptlon of the herein sho~n 24.<l<l ac.re trac.t . 

••• ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC. 
1303 Sovth 21st Street 
Temple, Texas 16504 

254-TTE>-2212 Kiiieen 254-634-4636 
Fax 254-114-l60E> 

Tx_ Firm Lie._ No. 10023600 

I 

' 
I 

A~~~~~ ~ .. ~~~d! I __ ---
JESSICA L. PACK '-- ----

Doc. . No. 2014-00040245 

REMAINDER OF 
GALLED 12.61 AC.RES 
ROY L. STEGER and 
LAIJRIE T. STEGER 

Doc. . No_ 2012-0004536/ 

LOT II, BLOCK 2 --- .. 
RUSTIC. OAKS 

Gab. A, SI. 214-D 

--- ----~·-- -- .... .... __ 

LOT 10, BLOCK 2 
RUSTIC. OAKS 

Gab. A, SI. 214-D 

.... ~·~--

LOT <l, BLOCK 2 
RUSTIC OAKS 

Gab. A , SI. 214-D 

·-----. 

.... _ .. _ 

Scale: I" = 200' 

Job No.: 1606<l3 

-----

Dv-19 No.: 1606<l3-AREA 6 

Drai"ln by: SLW 

Surve~or : C.C.L #4636 

C<lf¥"1g>t 2016 A ll c.omty 5"-v"'Jl'>g, Inc;. 

-ti 
0 
N 

t 
t 
Ii) 
0 
D 

0 
0::: 



CITY OF BELTON 
MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 

AREA7 

The area proposed for annexation consists of approximately 2.7 acres, on the south side of Avenue 0 , 
between Avenue 0 and Old Golf Course Road. 

Municipal Services to be Provided: The City will provide the following services, beginning immediately 
upon the effective date of the annexation. All the services will be provided at a service level that is equal or 
superior to the level of services in the area prior to the annexation. 

Police Protection. Police protection personnel and equipment from the Belton Police Department shall be 
provided to the areas immediately upon the effective date of the annexation of the areas. Response to calls for 
police services, crime prevention programs and all other police services will be provided at the same level as 
provided to other areas of the City. Police enforcement and protection services shall be provided at the 
request of residents/property owners in the area. 

Animal Control. The City shall provide animal control services immediately upon the effective date of the 
annexation of the area. These services encompass regular patrol by the animal control officer and response to 
animal nuisance problems from residents in the area. 

Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Protection. Upon annexation, the City will provide fire and EMS 
response at the level provided inside the Belton city limits. The service level will be equal to or better than 
the current level, with the limitations of water available. 

Code Enforcement. The City shall provide code enforcement services immediately upon annexation to 
include response to complaints of weedy lot violations, junked vehicles, sign violations, and other similar 
general city code violations. 

Fire Prevention. All of the services performed by the City' s Fire Marshal shall be provided immediately upon 
the effective date of the annexation of the areas. 

Planning, Zoning and Development Review. The area will automatically be zoned Agricultural on the 
effective date of annexation. In conjunction with review of Comprehensive Plan, a land use plan will be 
developed and permanent zoning established under the process specified by the City' s Zoning Ordinance. In 
the interim, the Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider zoning and rezoning 
tracts of the property in response to landowner requests. Subdivision plat review will occur in the City and in 
Belton' s extraterritorial jurisdiction in order to ensure orderly development of land, reduce flood potential, 
achieve efficient operation of public facilities and services, and provide accurate description and addressing of 
property. 

Code Compliance. Immediately upon the annexation becoming effective, building inspection activities will 
be available. The Building Official shall provide consultation with the project developers, independent 
contractors and homeowners for building code requirements, plan review for structures in the area, and on-site 
inspection services as needed, to include evaluation of hazardous and dilapidated buildings. 

1 



Library. Residents within the newly annexed areas shall be provided all services available at Belton' s Lena 
Armstrong Public Library. 

Parks and Recreation. All City of Belton public parks, facilities, and resources shall be available to residents 
of the annexed area. 

Streets and Drainage. Existing dedicated public streets and drainage structures and courses maintained by 
Bell County will be maintained by the City of Belton at their current or better level ofimprovement with like 
topography, land use, and density as those found within tl!e City. Private streets are not maintained by the 
City. Roadways maintained by the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) will continue to be 
maintained by TxDOT. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way shall be as follows: 

(1) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures necessary for traffic 
flow, etc. 

(2) Routine maintenance and right-of-way mowing as presently performed within City. 
(3) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, construction of curbs, 

gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is determined by the governing 
body under City policies. 

( 4) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and other traffic 
control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and traffic standards. 

( 5) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established policies of the City. 
( 6) The City will enforce drainage requirements in the Subdivision Ordinance and related standards. 
(7) Private streets will remain the responsibility of record owners or the homeowners association and 

as such be maintained by the responsible party. 

Sanitation and Recycling. Sanitation and recycling service will be immediately available to residential 
customers in accordance with existing City ordinances. Residents in the newly annexed area may select to 
continue service with their current service provider for up to two years, or switch to the City' s service, 
currently provided by contract with Waste Management, Inc. After the second anniversary of the annexation 
date, the City will provide the service at City rates. Residents will be contacted with information regarding 
how to obtain sanitation and recycling service, and efforts will be made to coordinate any transition of service. 

Sanitation service will be immediately available to non-residential customers through any of the commercial 
services franchised by the City. Non-residential customers are responsible for obtaining commercial service. 

Brush Collection Services. Brush collection services shall be provided to residents in the same manner and at 
the same rate as provided for other residents within the City of Belton. 

Water Service/Distribution. The area proposed for annexation is located within the Certificate of 
Convenience and Necessity ( CCN) area of the City of Belton, subject to the City' s water extension policies. 
Such water service will be subject to regulation by the City of Belton as it relates to development standards 
and design requirements in accordance with the ordinances, rules and regulations in effect at the time of 
installation. 

Wastewater Service/Collection. Wastewater services are available for extension to the area proposed for 
annexation in the same manner as they are available in the other locations within the City of Belton, in 
accordance with the City' s wastewater extension policies, subject to pending sewer CCN proposal before the 

2 



Public Utilities Commission. The developer or property owner is responsible for funding extension and 
connection to the municipal system in accordance with the City' s subdivision regulations and extension 
policies. 

Environmental Health. Immediately upon the effective date of the annexation, the City' s environmental 
health ordinances and regulations shall be applicable to the annexed areas. All health related matters are 
handled for the City by the Bell County Health District. 

Maintenance of Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools. The City is not aware of the existence of any 
publicly owned parks, playgrounds or swimming pools now located in the proposed areas of annexation. 
In the event any such parks, playgrounds, or swimming pools do exist and are public facilities, the City will 
maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and degree and to the same or similar level of service now 
being provided to other such areas and facilities within the corporate limits of the City with like 
topography, land use and density as those found within the newly annexed areas. Private facilities will 
remain under the ownership of the homeowners association and as such maintained by the association. 

Maintenance of any Publicly owned Facility, Building or Municipal Service. The City is not aware of the 
existence of any other publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal service now located in the 
proposed areas of annexation. In the event any o1herpublicly owned facility, building, or other municipal 
service does exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and 
degree and to the same or similar level of service now being provided to other such areas and facilities 
within the corporate limits of the City with like topography, land use and density as those found within the 
newly annexed areas. 

Services, Funding and City Policies. All services which require expenditure of public funds are subject to 
annual appropriations by the City Council. Copies of City policies are available in the City Clerk's office 
upon request. 

Construction of Capital Improvements To Be Completed Within 2 Yi Years. 

1. Police and Fire Protection and Solid Waste Collection. The City finds and determines it is not 
necessary to acquire or construct any capital improvements within 2 Yi years of the effective date of 
the annexation of the particular annexed areas for the purpose of providing police protection, fire 
protection, emergency medical services or solid waste collection. The City finds and determines 
that it has at the present time adequate facilities and other resources to provide the same type, 
kind and level of service and protection which is presently being administered to other areas 
already incorporated in the City with like topography, land use and population density as those 
found within the newly annexed areas. 

2. Water/Wastewater Facilities. A one million gallon elevated water storage tank is planned on 
existing City property in Northwest Belton. Belton' s third water storage tank will enhance water 
service throughout the City including water flow and pressures, storage for fire protection, and 
additional capacity during maintenance. This tank will be available by June 30, 2019. For the next 
2 Yi years, the City finds and determines that there is sufficient capacity to provide water services to 
the annexed areas pursuant to the City's extension policies in compliance with current CCN for the 
City of Belton. The now existing water mains at existing locations shall be available for the point 
of use extension based upon the standard extension policy now existing or as may be amended. 

3 



On-site sewerage systems may be maintained in accordance with the City's Code of Ordinances 
and subject to approval by the Public Works Director/Bell County Health District. 

3. Roads and Streets. The City finds and determines it is not necessary to acquire or construct any 
capital improvements within 2 Y2 years of the effective date of the annexation of the particular 
annexed areas. 

4. Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools and Any Other Publicly Owned Facility, Building, or 
Service. An expansion of the City's hike and bike trail network totaling approximately 0.8 mile 
and extending from University Blvd to the proposed Sparta Road roundabout, will connect with the 
City's existing trail system for a total projected length of 2.8 miles. This trail will be available by 
June 30, 2019. 

Specific Findings. Belton, Texas, finds and determines that this proposed service plan will not provide any 
fewer services and will not provide a lower level of service in the areas being considered for annexation 
than were in existence in the proposed areas at the time immediately preceding the annexation process. 
Given the proposed annexation areas' topography, land utilization and population density, the service 
levels to be provided in the newly annexed areas will be equivalent to those provided to other areas of the 
City with similar characteristics. 

Terms. This plan shall be valid for a term of I 0 years. Renewal of the Service Plan is at the discretion of the 
City of Belton. 

Level of Service. Nothing in this plan shall require the City to provide a uniform level of full municipal 
services to each area of the City, including the annexed areas, if different characteristics of topography, land 
use, and population density are considered a sufficient basis for providing different levels of service. 

Amendments. The plan shall not be amended unless public hearings are held in accordance with Chapter 4 3 
of the Texas Local Government Code. 

The area will be immediately included in the planning and development of the City's Capital Improvements 
Plan (CIP). 

4 



cl 
, © 

!9 
/ Q 

0 100 200 

e - C.Olculated Point 

ANNEXATION STUDY 2016 AREA 1 
2.113 ACRES OF LAND 

U.5. Hl6H~Y 1qo FOR THE CITY OF BEL TON, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS. 
ORDINANC.E NO. 

122363 POINT OF 
BE61NNIN6 LI L2 ,/, ____ ----------------------------------- - ----------------------------------------------- ---- __ .. ______ , ______ .-------+-+-----..-------- .JOE RICHARDS 

P.O. BOX 334 

LINE BEARINcS 
LI S 13°16'15" E 
L2 S 12°3'!'32" E 
L3 N 13°25'32" 1-'4 
L4 S 13°5'! '41" E 
L5 N 13°23'11 " E 

Exl~tlng Glty Limits 

CALLED 1.260 ACRES 
BEL TON HILL TOP 

VILLAGE, LLC 
Doc . No. 2015-0002'!511 

DISTANCE 
138.15' 
42.16 ' 
4'l23' 
48.'l'l ' 
ll'l .'l'l ' 

s 13°2ss2• E 144.41' 

N 13°25'32" W 141.S'f' 

CALLED 1.260 ACRES 
BEL TON HILL TOP 

VILLA.SE, LLG 
Doc . No. 2015-0002'!511 

2.113 ACRES 
OF LAND 

Existing Glbj Limits ___ __...---

-------

_____ .... .-

GALLED 485 ACRES 
"FIRST TRACT" 

N 13°2ss2· w 
165.54' 

GALLED 5.5 ACRES 
J:JE RICHARDS 

VOL. 4820, PcS. 26 

I 
ORDl~ENO. 

.JOE JEFF RICHARDS crid 
Hlfe, MELINDA RICHARDS 

Vol. 1026,Pg. 588 
ORDINANcE NO. 

2002-44 

GALLED 1.5 ACRES 
MARTIN SERVIN and 

DORA SERVIN 
Doc. No. 2013-00002806 

300 
I 

20'f-53 

I 
I 

i 
This dowment Has prepared under 22 TAG 663.2 1, does not ref lect the results of an on the ground 
survey, and Is not to be used to convey or establish Interests In real property except those r ights 
and Interests Implied or established by the creation or reconf iguration of the polltlca l subdlVlslon for 
Hhlch It Has prepared. 

The Information contained hereon HOS prov ided by the Tax Appraisal District of Bell County, Texas . 

This sketch Is to accompany a description of the herein shoHn 2 .1 13 acre tract. 

BEL TON, TEXAS 16513 
CALLED 054 ACRE 
Vol. 3'=138, Pg. 458 

2 . .JOE RICHARDS 
P.O. BOX 3 34 
BEL TON, TEXAS 16513 
CALLED 0.488 ACRE 
Vol . 3112, Pg. 123 

3 . .JOE RICHARDS 
P.O. BOX 334 
BEL TON, TEXAS 16513 
REMAINDER OF 
GALLED 'l .18 ACRES 
"Second Tract" 
Vo l. 1026, Pg. 588 

4 . .JOE RICHARDS 
P.O. BOX 334 
BEL TON, TEXAS 16513 
CALLED 48.5 ACRES 
"First Tract" 
Vo l. 1026, Pg. 588 

5. BEL TON HILL TOP V ILLAcSE, LLG 
10412 J.'4ELLER DRIVE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 18150 
CALLED 1260 AC.RES 
Doc. No. 2015-0002'!511 

Scale: I" = 100° 

Job No.: 1606'!3 

Dl"lg No.: 1606'13-AREA 1 

Drawn btj: -=-SL=:.:W--'----

Surveyor : -=c=G=L-#_46:..::..::3~6 __ 

•• L COUNTY SURVEYING, INC. 
1303 South 21st Street 
Temple, Texas 16504 

254- 118-2212 Kiiieen 254-634- 4636 
Fax 254-114-1608 

Tx. Firm Lie . No. 10023600 



• Area 5, In Annexation Boundary (18) 

• Area 7, In Annexation Boundary (1) 

c::J Area 5 - 228.15 Acres 

c::J Area 6 - 25.54 Acres 

c::J Area 7-2.142Acres 

CJ Property Boundaries 

B FM2271 Extension 

Temple ETJ 



City of Belton 
- Founded 1850 -

October 12, 2016 

Dear Property Owner: 

You were previous! y notified of the City of Belton's intent to annex all or a portion of your property located 
within Study Area __ . Texas' Local Government Code provides that before the City annexes property that is 
appraised for ad valorem tax purposes as land for agricultural, wildlife management, or timber use, the City 
shall offer to make a "development agreement" with the property owner in lieu of annexation. The 
development agreement provides that the property will retain its extraterritorial status for a specified time 
period or until any type of subdivision plat or related development document is filed with the City for the 
property, whichever occurs first, while allowing the City to enforce all regulations and planning authority that 
do not interfere with the use of the land for agriculture, wildlife management, or timber. During the time the 
property remains outside the city limits, it is not subject to City property taxes, but also will not receive tax
supported services from the City such as police, fire, and street maintenance service. The development 
agreement must provide terms for future annexation of the property, including specifying the uses and 
development of the land before and after annexation. If an owner of property eligible for a development 
agreement declines such an agreement, then the property may be annexed as originally proposed. 

We have enclosed a proposed Development Agreement for your consideration. You have two options regarding 
the Development Agreement: 

(a) All owners may accept it as printed, and sign it with the notary acknowledgments provided; or, 
(b) Any owner may sign in the box on the next page declining the offer of a development agreement. 

If you choose Option (a), above, do not enter a date in the blank above the first owner's signature on Page 6, as 
the agreement must have final approval by the City Council before it can become effective. All property 
owners, including spouses, must sign the agreement and have it notarized. A copy of the executed agreement 
will be provided to you upon final approval. 

The Development Agreement must be returned to the Planning Department in City Hall at 333 Water Street, 
Belton, Texas, indicating your choice of one of the two options, on or before Friday, October 28, 2016. If you 
would like to utilize our notary services, please schedule a meeting at City Hall to sign the development 
agreement in front of a notary and we will notarize the document. If you have questions, please e-mail Erin 
Smith, Director of Planning at esmith@beltontexas.gov or call her at (254) 933-5816. We must know your 
intentions by October 28 because any necessary boundary changes will have to be determined well in advance 
of the City Council's consideration of the annexation ordinance on November 22. If we do not receive a 
response of any kind by November 22, we will assume that you do not wish to enter into a Development 
Agreement and your property may be included in the proposed annexation, subject to the decision of the City 
Council. 

Sincerely, 

Sam A. Listi 
City Manager 

333 Water Street* P.O. Box 120 *Belton, Texas 76513 *Phone (254) 933-5800 *Fax (254) 933-5822 



I , Owner, do hereby decline the City's offer of a 
Development Agreement, and understand that the Property may be annexed as proposed by the City. 

Printed name: ______________ _ Date: _______ _ 

Please return either this page or the Development Agreement to City Hall, Attention: Planning 
Department, at 333 Water Street, Belton, TX 76513. 

333 Water Street* P.O. Box 120 *Belton, Texas 76513 *Phone (254) 933-5800 *Fax (254) 933-5822 



STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BELL § 

CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 43 TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Sections 43.035 and 212.172 of the Texas Local 
Government Code by and between the City of Belton, Texas (the "City") and the undersigned 
property owner(s) (the "Owner"). The term "Owner" includes all owners of the Property. 

WHEREAS, the Owner owns a parcel of real property (the "Property") in Bell County, 
Texas, which is more particularly and separately described as follows: 

Geographic ID# Property ID # 
0553520101 47288 
0554250001 47290 
0554250101 47291 
0553520103 420163 
0553520300 167436 
0553520301 420158 

and which is appraised for ad valorem tax purposes as land for agricultural or wildlife 
management use under Subchapter C or D, Chapter 23, Tax Code, or as timber land under 
Subchapter E of that chapter of the Tax Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner desires to have the Property remain in the City' s extraterritorial 
jurisdiction, in consideration for which the Owner agrees to enter into this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, this Agreement is entered into pursuant to Sections 43.035 and 212.172 of 
the Texas Local Government Code, in order to address the desires of the Owner and the 
procedures of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner and the City acknowledge that this Agreement is binding upon 
the City and the Owner and their respective successors and assigns for the term (defined below) 
of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council authorized and approved this agreement at a regularly
scheduled council meeting subject to the Open Meetings Act in compliance with the laws of the 
State of Texas and the ordinances and Charter of the City on November 22, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, this Development Agreement is to be recorded in the real property records 
of Bell County, Texas; and 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 

Page 1of8 



Section 1. Agreement by the City. The City guarantees the continuation of the extraterritorial 
status of the Owner' s Property, its immunity from annexation by the City, and its immunity from 
City property taxes, for the term of this Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions contained 
herein. Except as provided in this Agreement, the City agrees not to annex the Property, agrees 
not to involuntarily institute proceedings to annex the Property, and further agrees not to include 
the Property in a statutory annexation plan for the Term of this Agreement. However, if the 
Property is annexed pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, then the City shall provide services 
to the Property pursuant to Chapter 4 3 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

Section 2. Agreement by the Owner. (a) The Owner covenants and agrees that at all times 
during the Term hereof the Property shall be appraised for ad valorem tax purposes as land for ad 
valorem tax purposes as land for agricultural or wildlife management use under Subchapter C or 
D, Chapter 23 , Tax Code, or as timberland under Subchapter E of that chapter. In addition, the 
Property shall not be used for any use other than agriculture, wildlife management, and/or timber 
land management consistent with Chapter 23 of the Texas Tax Code, except for any existing 
single-family residential use of the property, without the prior written consent of the City. 

(b) The Owner has completed and executed an Affidavit of Tax Appraisal Status and Current 
Uses, which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit "A," and included herein as part of this 
Agreement as if set out in full, and the Owner acknowledges that the City is entitled to rely on 
such Affidavit as being correct and complete in all respects. 

(c) The Owner covenants and agrees that the Owner will not file any type of subdivision plat or 
related development document for the Property with Bell County, the City, or any other 
government agency having jurisdiction of the Property, until the Property has been annexed into, 
and zoned by, the City. Further, the Owner shall not take such action to develop or subdivide the 
Property that would require a plat to be filed with the City or the County under State law. 

( d) Except as provided herein, the Owner covenants and agrees not to construct, or allow to be 
constructed, any buildings, other than one single family residence (new or a replacement for an 
existing single family residence), an addition to a single family residence, or one or more 
accessory buildings reasonably needed to support the Agricultural use of the Property, provided 
the Owner obtains a permit from the City to construct such improvements. Improvements are 
subject to City-required setbacks and spacing in the Agricultural Zoning District to facilitate 
future platting, and to conform to the appropriate lot sizes. The Owner must obtain a permit from 
the City prior to starting construction on any improvements. The Owner also covenants and 
agrees that the City' s "A" or "Agricultural" zoning district requirements apply to the Property, 
and that the Property shall be used only for uses allowed in an A- Agricultural zoning district that 
exist on that Property at the time of the execution of this Agreement, unless otherwise provided 
in this Agreement. 

(e) The Owner, and all of the Owner's heirs, successors and assigns shall be deemed to have 
filed a petition for voluntary annexation of the Property effective upon a date to be established by 
the City Council, such date to be on or after the expiration of the Term hereof. Prior to the end of 
the Term, the City may commence the voluntary annexation of the Property, provided that the 

Page 2of8 



annexation shall not be finalized until after the expiration of the Term. In connection with 
annexation pursuant to this section, the Owner hereby waives any vested development rights 
Owner may have under Section 43.002(a)(2) and Chapter 245 of the Texas Local Government 
Code, or that would otherwise exist by virtue of any plat, or any construction Owner may initiate 
during the time between the expiration of this Agreement and the institution of annexation 
proceedings by the City. 

(f) The Owner acknowledges that each and every owner of the Property must sign this 
Agreement in order for the Agreement to take full effect, and the Owner who signs this 
Agreement covenants and agrees, jointly and severably, to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend 
the City against any and all legal claims, by any person claiming an ownership interest in the 
Property who has not signed the Agreement, arising in any way from the City's reliance on this 
Agreement. 

(g) This section acknowledges the provision of §232.0015(e), Exception to Plat Requirements, 
which will not require a plat if property is sold, given, or otherwise transferred to an individual 
who is related to the owner within the 3rd degree of consanguinity or affinity, resulting in a parcel 
of twenty (20) acres or more in area. 

Section 3. Deemed Voluntary Annexation Upon Disqualification or Breach. 

(a) Notwithstanding any contrary provision herein, the City may annex the Property in whole or 
in part if: (i) the Property ceases to be appraised for agricultural, wildlife management or timber 
use as provided herein; (ii) the Property is used for any use other than a Permitted Use; (iii) any 
plat or related development document is filed in violation of this Agreement; or (iv) the Owner is 
otherwise in default hereunder or in breach hereof. The Owner acknowledges that a violation of 
this Agreement will constitute a petition for voluntary annexation by the Owner, and the 
Property will be subject to annexation at the discretion of the City Council. The Owner agrees 
that such annexation shall be voluntary and the Owner hereby consents to such annexation as 
though an irrevocable petition for such annexation had been tendered by the Owner. 

(b) If annexation proceedings begin pursuant to this Section, the Owner acknowledges that this 
Agreement serves as an exception to Local Government Code Section 43.052, requiring a 
municipality to use certain statutory procedures under an annexation plan. Furthermore, the 
Owner hereby waives any and all vested rights and claims that they may have under Section 
43.002(a)(2) and Chapter 245 of the Texas Local Government Code, or that would otherwise 
exist by virtue of any actions Owner has taken in violation of Section 2 herein. 

Section 4. Owner Agreement that City May Enforce Its Development and Planning 
Regulations on Property. Pursuant to Sections 43.035(b)(l)(B) of the Texas Local Government 
Code, the City is authorized to enforce all of the City's regulations and planning authority that do 
not materially interfere with the use of the Property for agriculture, wildlife management, or 
timber, in the same manner the regulations are enforced within the City's boundaries. The Owner 
agrees that all regulations and planning authority of the City that do not interfere with the 
Permitted Uses may be enforced with respect to the Property in the same manner the regulations 

Page 3of8 



are enforced within the City' s boundaries, including but not limited to development regulations, 
zoning regulations, building permit requirements, and other City regulations as they currently 
exist or may be enacted in the future. The Owner consents to the jurisdiction of the Municipal 
Court of the City of Belton for the purpose of prosecuting criminal violations of City regulations 
on the Property. The City specifically reserves its authority pursuant to Chapter 251 of the Texas 
Local Government Code to exercise eminent domain over property that is subject to a Chapter 4 3 
and/or Chapter 212 development agreement. 

Section 5. Term. (a) The term of this Agreement (the "Term") shall be five (5) years from the 
date that the City Manager' s signature to this Agreement is acknowledged by a notary public. 

Section 6. Future Zoning of Property. Property annexed pursuant to this Agreement will 
initially be zoned "A- Agricultural" pursuant to the City' s Code of Ordinances, pending 
determination of the property' s permanent zoning in accordance with the provisions of 
applicable law and the City' s Code of Ordinances. 

Section 7. Permits and Vested Rights. Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 
43.035 this Agreement is not a permit for purposes of Chapter 245 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, that the Agreement shall be deemed to be a petition for voluntary annexation. 
The Owner and all Owner' s heirs, successors and assigns hereby waive any and all vested rights 
including rights and claims that they may have under common law, federal case law or Section 
43.002 of the Texas Local Government Code related to uses, anticipated uses or potential uses of 
the Property, other than the existing uses. 

Section 8. No Municipal Services. The City shall not be obligated to provide the Owner with 
any municipal services (such as police protection, fire protection, drainage and street 
construction, or maintenance), with respect to the Property for the duration of this Agreement. 

Section 9. Notice to Third Parties. Any person who sells or conveys any portion of the 
Property shall, prior to such sale or conveyance, give written notice of this Agreement to the 
prospective purchaser or grantee, and shall give written notice of the sale or conveyance to the 
City. Furthermore, the Owner and the Owner' s heirs, successors, and assigns shall give the City 
written notice within 14 days of any change in the agricultural, wildlife management or timber 
management (as applicable) exemption status of the Property. A copy of either notice required 
by this section shall be forwarded to the City at the following address: 

City of Belton, Texas 
Attn: City Manager 
P.O. Box 120 
Belton, TX 76513 

Section 10. Agreement Runs with the Land. This Agreement shall run with the Property and 
be recorded in the real property records of Bell County, Texas. 

Section 11. Severance Clause. The provisions of this Agreement are severable. If a court or 
government agency of competent jurisdiction finds that any provision of this Agreement is 

Page 4 of8 



unenforceable, the unenforceable provision shall be replaced, to the extent possible, with a legal, 
enforceable, and valid provision that is as similar in tenor to the unenforceable provision as is 
legally possible, and the Agreement as so-modified shall be enforced to the greatest extent 
permitted by law, except when such construction would constitute a substantial deviation from 
the general intent and purpose of such parties as reflected in this Agreement. 

Section 12. No Waiver. This Agreement may be enforced by any Owner or the City by any 
proceeding at law or in equity. Failure to do so shall not be deemed a waiver to enforce the 
provisions of this Agreement thereafter. 

Section 13. Enforcement. This Agreement may be enforced by any Owner or the City by any 
proceeding at law or in equity. The remedies herein provided shall not be deemed to be 
exclusive, but shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to all other remedies in its favor 
existing in law, in equity or in bankruptcy. No subsequent change in the law regarding 
annexation shall affect the enforceability of this Agreement or the City' s ability to annex the 
Property pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Failure to do so shall not be deemed a waiver 
to enforce the provisions of this Agreement thereafter. 

Section 14. Applicable law and Venue. This Agreement was executed in Bell County, Texas, 
and is governed by the laws of the State of Texas. The venue for any legal proceeding to enforce 
or interpret the provisions of this Agreement shall be in Bell County, Texas. 

Section 15. Multiple copies. This Agreement may be separately executed m individual 
counterparts and, upon execution, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 16. Survival of Certain Rights of the City Upon Termination. This Agreement shall 
survive its termination to the extent necessary for the implementation of the provisions of 
Sections 2, 3, and 4 herein. 

Section 17. Construction. This Agreement shall be construed fairly and simply, and not strictly 
for or against any party. Headings used· throughout this Agreement are for convenience and 
reference only, and the words contained therein shall in no way be held to explain, restrict, 
modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation or construction of the meaning of the provisions of 
this Agreement. 

Section 18. Further Assurances. Each party shall, from time to time, upon the written request 
of any other party, execute and deliver such further instruments and documents as may be 
reasonably necessary to perform its obligations hereunder or to give full effect to this 
Agreement. 

Section 19. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with its exhibits, constitutes the entire 
agreement of the parties concerning the subject matter hereof. There are no oral representations, 
warranties, agreements, or promises pertaining to such matters not incorporated in writing in this 
Agreement. This Agreement may be amended only as mutually agreed upon in writing and duly 
executed by authorized representatives of the parties. 

Page 5of8 



Entered into this _ _ day of _______ , 20 __ . 

Property Owners 

Signature 
Printed Name: - ------------

Signature 
Printed Name: -------------

Signature 
Printed Name: - - - - ---------

Signature 
Printed Name: ____________ _ 

City of Belton, Texas 

Sam A. Listi 
City Manager 

ATTEST: 

Amy Casey 
City Clerk 

John Messer 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BELL § 

Approved as to form: 

City Attorney 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ______ _ 
20 _ _ , by Sam A. Listi, City Manager, City of Belton, Texas. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

Page 6 of8 



THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BELL § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ______ _ 
20 __ , by , Owner. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BELL § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ______ _ 
20 __ , by , Owner. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BELL § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ______ _ 
20 __ , by , Owner. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BELL § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ______ _ 
20 __ , by , Owner. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

Page 7of8 



Exhibit "A" 

Affidavit of Tax Appraisal Status and Current Uses 

____________ appeared in person before me today and stated under oath: 

"My name is . I am competent to make this affidavit. The 
facts stated in this affidavit are within my personal knowledge and are true and correct. I am the 
owner of a parcel of real property (the "Property") in Bell County, Texas, which is more 
particularly and separately described as geographic identification number __ and property 
identification number __ , and which is appraised for ad valorem tax purposes as land for 
agricultural or wildlife management use under Subchapter C or D, Chapter 23, Tax Code, or as 
timber land under Subchapter E of that chapter of the Tax Code. 

The current improvements on my Property are as follows: (Please list all permanent property 
improvements, for example, buildings, signs, or other structures, on the Property as shown on 
your most recent statement received from the Bell County Appraisal District and improvements 
which have been added by you since January 1, 2016): 

The current uses being made of my Property are as follows: (for example: farming, grazing, 
single family residential, retail, commercial or industrial uses) 

I understand that the information provided herein will be used by the City to substantiate my 
current use of my Property, and to determine during the term of this Agreement to which this 
Affidavit is an Exhibit, whether the uses of the Property have changed, and that providing 
misleading information will invalidate my Agreement with the City. 

Executed on this ___ day of _______ , 20 __ . 

Property Owner 

Signature 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the __ day of ______ , 20 __ , by 
____________ , Owner. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

Page 8of8 



Involuntary Annexation 

SCHEDULE FOR EXEMPT ANNEXATION WITHIN CITY LIMITS 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Loe. Gov't Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 

September 13, 2016 
(1) sets Public Hearings for October 25, 2016 and Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th 
November 1, 2016; and (2) Council directs development day but before 20th day before institution 
of service plan for area to be annexed . of proceedings. 

September 23, 2016 last Last day to provide written notice to each property owner Before 30th day before first public 
workday and public entity. hearing. Loe. Gov't Code, §43.062. 

NEWSPAPER NOTICE RE: 1 ST PUBLIC 
October 13, 2016 HEARING; (If applicable, Notice to Railroad) Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 
Publish notice of 1st Public SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school days before 1st public hearing. Loe. 
Hearing (I time) district of possible impact) Gov't Code, §43.063 (c). 

(NOTICE on WEB to remain through process) 
October 20, 2016 

NEWSPAPER NOTICE RE: 2ND PUBLIC 
Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 

Publish notice of 2nd Public 
HEARING 

days before 2nd public hearing. Loe. 
Hearing (I time) Gov't Code,§ 43.063 (c). 
October 24, 2016 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
Site hearing required if20 adult residents 

Ten days after the date the 1st 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 

of tracts protest within 10 days after 1st 
Public Hearing notice is 

newspaper notice) 
newspaper notice. Loe. Gov't Code, § 

published 43.063 (b) 

October 25, 2016 
lST PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 

Regular Meeting 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the I st reading of days before reading of ordinance. Loe. 
ordinance.) Gov't Code,§§ 43.065 & 43.063(a). 

November 1, 2016 2ND PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 

Special Meeting PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
days before reading of ordinance. Loe. 
Gov't Code, §§ 43.065 & 43.063 (a). 

Institution Date 
Date of institution of proceedings. Not 

November 22, 2016 FffiST READING OF ORDINANCE 
Jess than 20 days from the 2nd public 

Regular Meeting 
hearing nor more than 40 days from the 
1st pub lie hearing. 

December 13, 2016 
SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE 

Not more than 90 days after I st reading 
Regular Meeting of Ordinance§ 43.064 

Within 30 days from receipt PROVIDE DOCUMENTS AND MAPS TO COUNTY Loe. Gov't Code §41.0015 (a) 
of Preclearance CLERK 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 1 of 3   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
        Date:  October 25, 2016 
        Case No.: Z-16-16 
        Request: AG to LI 
        Applicant: Will Morris – Charter 

Real Estate  
 
Agenda Item #9 
     
Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural to Light Industrial 
Zoning District for a UPS parking lot on a 5.00 acre tract of land, located east of South 
Interstate 35 and south of Grove Road.  
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Case Summary 
 
The applicant has submitted this request for a zone change to allow for a UPS parking lot 
addition. To the north are UPS and Frito-Lay zoned Light Industrial; to the east are Armstrong 
WSC pump station and undeveloped land; to the south is Cedar Crest Hospital; and to the 
west are Interstate Highway 35 roadway, Sunbelt RV, and Bell County Expo Center. 
 
Current Zoning     Proposed Zoning  
    
Agricultural      Light Industrial  
 
Design Standards Type Area:  2   Recommended Type Area: 2 
 
This property is in Type Area 2 in the Design Standards. If approved, a Light Industrial District 
use would be required to comply with all the Design Standards for Type Area 2. 
 
Land Use Table/Allowable Uses 
 
The Light Industrial Zoning District allows the following land uses, and would accommodate 
this request: 
 

• Apparel and other products assembled from finished textiles 
• Contractor’s yard 
• Electronic products manufacturing 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 2 of 3   
 

• Facilities for the manufacturing, fabrication, processing or assembly of products 
provided that such facilities are completely enclosed and provided that no effects from 
noise, smoke, glare, vibration, fumes or other environmental factors are measurable at 
the property line. 

• Farm implement manufacturing 
• Industrial and manufacturing plants including the processing or assembling of parts for 

production or finished equipment where the process of manufacturing or treatment of 
materials is such that no dust, odor, gas, smoke or noise is emitted and not more than 
twenty percent (20%) of the lot or tract is used for the open storage of products, 
materials, or equipment 

• Newspaper printing 
• Plastic products manufacture, but not including the processing of raw materials 
• Sporting and athletic equipment manufacture 

 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
This property is located amidst other industrial uses, such as the existing Frito-Lay and UPS 
properties. The applicant is proposing this zone change to allow for a UPS parking lot 
addition. The Future Land Use Plan identifies this area as High Density/Mixed Use and it is 
staff’s judgment a light industrial use is compatible with nearby uses.  
 
UPS recently purchased 5 acres directly south of the existing UPS property. Staff went by the 
UPS site and noticed several trees had been removed and a large asphalt parking lot was 
constructed without obtaining the required permits. Staff contacted the contractor and 
requested they meet with staff immediately to discuss the matter. Staff met with the 
contractor and stated that a detailed site plan, drainage study, and parking lot specifications 
are needed for the required permit. The contractor has provided those items to City staff for 
review. Staff also requested a tree survey; however, a tree survey was not completed prior to 
tree removal. The contractor stated that the trees removed were cedar trees below the 
heritage tree size requirement.  
 
The site plan identifies a total of 151 parking spaces and access lanes that have been 
constructed on a portion of this 5 acre piece of property. There are 141 employee parking 
spaces, 7 customer parking spaces, and 3 handicap parking spaces. The eastern portion of 
this 5 acre property is undeveloped and the existing trees are remaining in this area. A tree 
survey is requested at this time for this undeveloped portion of the property to determine if 
new landscaping is required in the parking lot. According to the Design Standards landscape 
requirements, a large tree is required in a median at the end of each parking bay, so a total of 
16 large trees are required. If the tree survey of the undeveloped eastern portion of the 
property identifies existing trees that will provide credits for the 16 required trees, then no 
additional landscaping will be required. When the undeveloped portion of this property is 
proposed for development, a detailed landscape plan will be required to satisfy the landscape 
requirements for this parking lot and the new development proposed. If the tree credits will 
not satisfy the landscape requirements, a landscape plan will be required at this time to 
satisfy the landscape requirements for the parking lot addition.  



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 3 of 3   
 

This property has not been platted, so a subdivision plat is required for the developed portion 
of this property.         
 
After careful review of the City’s Design Standards and the applicability of this use among 
surrounding properties, this proposed zone change appears to be reasonable in this location.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of zone change from Agricultural to Light Industrial District with 
development regulated under the Design Standards for Type Area 2 standards as follows: 
 

1. The allowable uses of the property shall conform to the Light Industrial Zoning District 
in all respects. 
 

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 2 Design 
Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
including: 
 

a. Site Development Standards discussed above 
b. Building Design Standards 
c. Landscape Design Standards, to include a tree survey for the undeveloped 

portion of the property. A landscape plan may be required if there are not 
enough tree credits to satisfy the landscape requirements for the parking lot 
addition. When the undeveloped portion of this property is proposed for 
development, a detailed landscape plan will be required to satisfy the landscape 
requirements for this parking lot and the new development proposed.  
 

3. Sign Standards shall conform to Ordinance 2008-11. 
 

4. A subdivision plat on the developed portion of this property is required.  
 

Attachments: 
Zoning application 
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Map with zoning notice boundary (200’) 
Zoning notice to owners 
Property owners list 
Site Plan 
Survey 
Excerpt from P&ZC Minutes 
Ordinance 





S IH
35

SE
RV

ICE
RD

CA
PIT

OL
 W

AY

S I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E R

D
S I

NT
ER

ST
AT

E 3
5

ON
 R

AM
P

GROVE RD
§̈¦35

0 140 28070
Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-16\Z-16-16 Location.mxd    -    Date: 10/5/2016

S 
W

AL
L 

ST

E L O O P 1 2 1

S I
H 

35
 SE

RV
ICE

 RD

S
IH

35
SE

RV
IC

E
RD

S
IN

TE
RS

TA
TE

35 DECKER RD

CRO SS RDS P
EA

RL
 ST

CO
NN

EL
L S

T

EX
IT 

29
0

ACCESS RD

S
IN

TE
R S

TA
TE

3 5

C O LET T E C T

PA
T D

R

ON
 R

AM
P

GROVE RD CA
P I

TO
L

W
A Y

DECKER

ELM GROVE

§̈¦35

UV121

LEGEND
Z_16_16

´

Zoning Location
Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-16 Location Z-16-16 Location

ADDRESS/LOCATION:
Grove Rd

WESTWOOD 
ASSOCIATES LLC

PROPERTY OWNER:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
A0006BC M F CONNELL89-2
ACRES 5.000

Agriculture 
to Light Industrial

ZONING CHANGE:



S W
AL

L S
T

E LOOP 121

S I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5
S IH

35
SE

RV
ICE

RD

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E R

D

DECKER RDKAY LN

CROSSRD

ACCESS RD

ON
RA

MP

EX
IT 

290

ACCESSRD

PA
T D

R

BELLA ROSE DR

ON
 R

AM
P

MESQUITE RD S I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5
GROVE RD

CA
PIT

OL
 W

AY

O2 w/SUPO2 w/SUPPD-SUPPD-SUP
PrivatePrivate

ClubClub

PD-ExpoPD-Expo

PD-ExpoPD-Expo
PD-SF-3PD-SF-3

PD-C-1PD-C-1

PD-CHPD-CH

§̈¦35

UV121

0 325 650162.5 Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Zoning Location

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-16\Z-16-16 Zoning.mxd    -    Date: 10/5/2016

Legend
CityLimits
Z_16_16

Current_Zoning
Agricultural
Commercial Highway
Commercial-1
Commercial-2
Light Industrial
Planned Development
Retail
Specific Use Permit

´

Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-16 Zoning Z-16-16 Zoning

ADDRESS/LOCATION:
Grove Rd

WESTWOOD 
ASSOCIATES LLC

PROPERTY OWNER:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
A0006BC M F CONNELL89-2
ACRES 5.000

Agriculture 
to Light Industrial

ZONING CHANGE:



CA
PIT

OL
 W

AY

GROVE RD

0 70 14035
Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-16\Z-16-16 Aerial.mxd    -    Date: 10/5/2016

LEGEND
Z_16_16

´

Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-16 Aerial Z-16-16 Aerial

ADDRESS/LOCATION:
Grove Rd

WESTWOOD 
ASSOCIATES LLC

PROPERTY OWNER:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
A0006BC M F CONNELL89-2
ACRES 5.000

Agriculture 
to Light Industrial

ZONING CHANGE:



S I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

S IH
35

SE
RV

ICE
RD

CA
PIT

OL
 W

AY

S I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E R

D

ON
 R

AM
P

GROVE RD

29
61

9

8531
21858

3 239

4486314 66 685

§̈¦35

0 140 28070 Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-16\Z-16-16.mxd    -    Date: 10/5/2016

200' Property Owner
Notification Area

ZONING CHANGE:
Agriculture 
to Light Industrial

A0006BC M F CONNELL89-2
ACRES 5.000

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
WESTWOOD 
ASSOCIATES LLC

Grove Rd
ADDRESS/LOCATION:

Legend
Z_16_16
200' Property Owner
Notification Area
Tax Appraisal Parcels
CityLimits

Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-16 Z-16-16

´



NOTICE OF APPLICATION 
FOR AN 

AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
OF THE 

CITY OF BELTON 
 
THE CITY OF BELTON HAS RECEIVED A REQUEST FROM:  WILL MORRIS IV  , 
TO CHANGE THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY:        5.0 ACRES, 204 GROVE ROAD  , 
FROM A(N)  AGRICULTURAL  __________ZONING DISTRICT, 
TO A(N)              LIGHT INDUSTRIAL    ZONING DISTRICT. 
    

THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS WILL HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING 
PURSUANT TO THIS REQUEST AT 5:30 P.M., Tuesday, October 18, 2016 IN THE WRIGHT ROOM AT THE T.B. 
HARRIS CENTER, 401 N. ALEXANDER, BELTON, TEXAS. 

 
IF APPROVED BY THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION, THIS ITEM WILL BE PLACED ON THE AGENDA FOR 

A PUBLIC HEARING BY THE CITY COUNCIL.  THAT MEETING WILL BE AT 5:30 P.M., Tuesday, October 25, 2016, 
AT THE T. B. HARRIS COMMUNITY CENTER, 401 ALEXANDER STREET, BELTON, TEXAS. 
 

AS AN INTERESTED PROPERTY OWNER, THE CITY OF BELTON INVITES YOU TO MAKE YOUR VIEWS KNOWN 
BY ATTENDING THESE HEARINGS.  YOU MAY SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENTS ABOUT THIS ZONING CHANGE BY 
COMPLETING THIS FORM AND RETURNING IT TO THE ADDRESS BELOW. 
 

IF YOU REQUIRE INTERPRETER SERVICES FOR THE DEAF OR HEARING IMPAIRED, PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY 
CLERK AT CITY HALL AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THESE MEETINGS. 
  
                                                   circle one 

AS AN INTERESTED PROPERTY OWNER, I (PROTEST) (APPROVE) THE REQUESTED ZONING AMENDMENT PRESENTED IN 
THE APPLICATION ABOVE FOR THE REASONS EXPRESSED BELOW: 
 
1.   
 
2.   
 
3.   
 (FURTHER COMMENTS MAY BE EXPRESSED ON A SEPARATE SHEET OF PAPER) 
 
DATE:       SIGNATURE:    
 
                                                         PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
                                                         CITY OF BELTON 
                                                         P. O. BOX 120 
                                                         BELTON, TEXAS  76513  
                                                                                                                                                                              254-933-5812 



448631 

ARMSTRONG WATER SUPPLY CORP 

PO BOX 155 

HOLLAND, TX 76534-0155 
 

 
8531 

BELL COUNTY JOINT VENTURE 

1010 5TH AVE 

NEW YORK, NY 10028-0130 
 

 
29619 

DKOTA INVESTMENTS INC 

5600 W LOVERS LN STE 116 

DALLAS, TX 75209-4360 
 

21858 

ROVELLI, GAILEN CLARK & GARY B CLARK 

204 TAYLORS DR 

TEMPLE, TX 76502-3529 
 

 
466685 

WESTWOOD ASSOCIATES LLC 

3000 SO 31ST ST STE 500 

TEMPLE, TX 76502 
 

 
3239 

WESTWOOD ASSOCIATES LLC ETAL 

3000 S 31ST ST STE 500 

TEMPLE, TX 76502-1822 
 

 
SUPERINTENDENT 
DR. SUSAN KINCANNON  
BELTON I.S.D.  
P O BOX 269 
BELTON TEXAS 76513 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 







1 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, October 18, 2016 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair John Holmes, Mat Naegele, Brett Baggerly, 
Eloise Lundgren, Rae Schmuck and Frank Minosky. The following staff members were present: 
Director of Planning, Erin Smith and Planning Clerk, Laura Livingston. Members Joel Berryman, Ben 
Pamplin and Jason Morgan were absent. 
 
4. Z-16-16   Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural to Light 

Industrial Zoning District for a UPS parking lot on a 5.00 acre tract of land, located east of 
South Interstate 35 and south of Grove Road. 
 
Ms. Smith presented the staff report.  
 
Chair Holmes opened the public hearing, and with no one requesting to speak, he closed the public 
hearing.  

Mr. Naegele asked if the location to the south is still proposed to become an RV park? Ms. Smith 
said the applicant stated they do not plan to move forward with a RV park.  
 
Mr. Minosky asked about tree mitigation and what will be done about the trees that have already 
been removed? Ms. Smith spoke with the contractor who stated the trees removed did not meet the 
heritage tree size requirement; therefore, replacement is not required. She said it’s difficult to know 
since the trees have been removed, which is why she is requiring a tree survey of the undeveloped 
portion so there is record of the existing trees in that area.  
 
Mr. Baggerly asked if there is recourse the City can invoke in a case such as this. Ms. Smith said 
yes, the City can issue penalties if the proper permits are not pulled.  
 
Chair Holmes asked if there are any drainage issues? Ms. Smith stated a drainage study is being 
developed for City staff review.    
 
Mr. Minosky said it appears the City is playing catch-up with the property, to which Ms. Smith 
said it is occurring a bit after-the-fact since no permit was requested, but the City is still requiring 
building permit fees for work they have completed. The City is not proposing fees for the trees that 
have been removed, Ms. Smith said. Mr. Minosky asked why the City is not requiring a building 
permit, to which Ms. Smith said the City is requiring plans for staff review, then building permits 
will be issued.  
 
Ms. Schmuck made the motion to approve Z-16-16. Mr. Morgan seconded the motion, which was 
approved unanimously with 6 ayes, 0 nays.  



ORDINANCE NO. 2016-46 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON BY 
CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM AGRICULTURAL TO LIGHT 
INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICT ON A 5.00 ACRE TRACT, WITH DEVELOPMENT TO 
BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 2 DESIGN STANDARDS. 
 

WHEREAS, Westwood Associates LLC, owner of the following described property 
has presented a petition duly signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission and filed 
said petition with the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of said petition 
and hearing on said petition has been given as required by the City Zoning Ordinance and 
by law, and a hearing on said petition before the City Planning & Zoning Commission of the 
City of Belton was set for the 18th day of October 2016, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and 
adoption, said district being described as follows: 

 
204 Grove Road, Belton, Texas (location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 

 
WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 

said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 18th day of October, 
at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was given as 
required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from a Agricultural Zoning District to Light 
Industrial Zoning District, in accordance with Section 27 – Light Industrial Zoning District, 
and the Design Standards in Ordinance No. 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belton is hereby amended, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
1. The allowable uses of the property shall conform to the Light Industrial Zoning 

District in all respects. 
 

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 2 Design 
Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
including: 
 

a. Site Development Standards discussed above 
b. Building Design Standards 
c. Landscape Design Standards, to include a tree survey for the undeveloped 

portion of the property. A landscape plan may be required if there are not 



enough tree credits to satisfy the landscape requirements for the parking lot 
addition. When the undeveloped portion of this property is proposed for 
development, a detailed landscape plan will be required to satisfy the 
landscape requirements for this parking lot and the new development 
proposed.  
 

3. Sign Standards shall conform to Ordinance 2008-11. 
 

4. A subdivision plat on the developed portion of this property is required.  
 
This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Belton and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 25th day of 
October, 2016, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 
 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
25th day of October, 2016. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



SIH35SERVICERD

CAPITOL WAY

SINTERSTATE35

S IH 35 SERVICE RD
S INTERSTATE 35 ON RAMP

GR
OV

E R
D

§̈ ¦35

0
14

0
28

0
70

Fe
et

Fo
r i

nfo
rm

ati
on

al 
pu

rp
os

es
 on

ly.
 B

ou
nd

ar
ies

 ar
e a

pp
ro

xim
ate

 an
d n

ot
 le

ga
lly

 bi
nd

ing
.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-16\Z-16-16 Location.mxd   -    Date: 10/5/2016

S WALL ST

E
LO

O
P

1 2
1

S IH 35 SERVICE RD

SIH35SERVICERD
SINTERSTATE35

DE
CK

ER
 R

D

C R O SS RD

S PEARL ST

CONNELL ST

EXIT 290

AC
CE

SS
 R

D

SINTERSTATE35

CO
LE

T T
E

C T

PAT DR

ON RAMP

GR
OV

E R
D

CAPITOLWAY

DE
CK

ER

EL
M 

GR
OV

E

§̈ ¦35

UV12
1

LE
GE

ND
Z_

16
_1

6
´

Zo
nin

g L
oc

ati
on

Zo
ni

ng
 C

as
e #

  
Zo

ni
ng

 C
as

e #
   

Z-
16

-1
6 

Lo
ca

tio
n

 Z
-1

6-
16

 L
oc

at
io

n

AD
DR

ES
S/L

OC
AT

ION
:

Gr
ov

e R
d

WE
ST

WO
OD

 
AS

SO
CI

AT
ES

 LL
C

PR
OP

ER
TY

 OW
NE

R:

LEG
AL

 DE
SC

RIP
TIO

N:
A0

00
6B

C 
M 

F C
ON

NE
LL

89
-2

AC
RE

S 5
.00

0

Ag
ric

ult
ure

 
to 

Lig
ht 

Ind
us

tria
l

ZO
NIN

G C
HA

NG
E:

EXHIBIT "A"



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 1 of 3   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
        Date:  October 25, 2016 
        Case No.: Z-16-15 
        Request: MF to NS 
        Applicant: Bethany Rosebrock 
 
Agenda Item #10 
     
Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change request from Multiple Family to 
Neighborhood Services Zoning District at 508 North Wall Street, located on the west side of 
North Wall Street, between East 5th and East 6th Avenues.  
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Case Summary 
 
The applicant has submitted this request for a zone change to allow for a Neighborhood 
Service business or office use. To the north are Valvoline and Sheer Bliss; to the east are 
Montgomery Chiropractic and single family homes; to the west are State Farm Insurance and 
Community Counseling Center; and to the south are the 1874 Church, Bell Fine Arts 
Association, and single family homes.  
 
Current Zoning    Proposed Zoning  
    
Multiple Family    Neighborhood Service  
 
Design Standards Type Area:  7  Recommended Type Area: 7 
 
This property is in Type Area 7 in the Design Standards. If approved, a Neighborhood 
Service District use would be required to comply with all the Design Standards for Type Area 
7. 
 
Land Use Table/Allowable Uses 
 
The Neighborhood Service Zoning District allows the following land uses, and would 
accommodate this request: 
 

• Antique Shop 
• Bakery or confection shop, retail 
• Barber or beauty shop 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 2 of 3   
 

• Church 
• Child care center or day care center  
• Food or convenience stores (no gasoline sales) 
• Health studio, gym or exercise class area  
• Personal service shop 
• Service or retail, incidental to the main use 
• Veterinarian office, no hospital (No outside kennels or pens) 

 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
This property is located amidst a variety of office, neighborhood service, retail, and single 
family uses. The applicant is proposing this zone change to allow for a proposed business or 
office use in conjunction with the Future Land Use Plan which identifies this area as High 
Density/Mixed Use.  
 
The applicant is proposing to utilize the existing building as a future Neighborhood Service 
use. Currently, there is not adequate on-site parking for a Neighborhood Service use. 
According to the Bell County Tax Appraisal District, this structure is 1,778 square feet in size. 
Section 34, Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements, of the Zoning Ordinance, states 
an office use shall provide one parking space for each 300 square feet of gross floor area 
and a retail or personal service use shall provide one parking space for each 200 square feet 
of gross floor area. An office use will require a total of 6 on-site parking spaces and a retail or 
personal service use will require a total of 9 on-site parking spaces. The parking surface shall 
be concrete, asphalt, or brick.  
 
This property is located in the Central Belton Historic District. If changes are proposed to the 
exterior of the structure, the Historic Preservation Commission will review to determine if the 
changes maintain the integrity of this historic building.    
 
After careful review of the City’s Design Standards and the applicability of this use among 
surrounding properties, this requested zone change appears to be reasonable in this location.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of zone change from Multiple Family to Neighborhood Service District 
with development regulated under the Design Standards for Type Area 7 standards as 
follows: 
 

1. The allowable uses of the property shall conform to the Neighborhood Service Zoning 
District in all respects. 
 

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 7 Design 
Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
including: 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 3 of 3   
 

a. Site Development Standards discussed above 
b. Building Design Standards 
c. Landscape Design Standards 

 
3. Sign Standards shall conform to Ordinance 2008-11. 

 
4. On-site parking is required prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.  

 
Attachments: 
Zoning application 
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Map with zoning notice boundary (200’) 
Zoning notice to owners 
Property owners list 
P&ZC Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 





E 6TH AVE

E 3RD AVE

N E
AS

T S
T

WA
RR

EN
 ST

N B
LA

IR 
ST

N B
EA

L S
T

N B
LA

IR 
ST

N
EA

ST
ST

N 
PE

AR
L S

T

W 7TH AVE

N P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

WACO RD

W 2ND AVE

E 4TH AVE

E 9TH AVE

W 6TH AVE

E 9TH AVE

N W
AL

L S
T

N M
AIN

 ST

E 2ND AVE

E 5TH AVE

E 7TH AVE

W 3RD AVE

E 8TH AVE

E 4TH AVE

N P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

E 8TH AVE

N W
AL

L S
T

N B
EA

L S
T

E 3RD AVE

W 5TH AVE

0 140 28070
Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-15\Z-16-15 Location.mxd    -    Date: 9/29/2016

S E
AS

T S
T

S M
AI

N S
T

S P
EN

EL
OP

E 
ST

CO
LL

EG
E 

ST
N M

AI
N S

T

E 3R D AV E

CO
RI

DR

E 1 3T H AV E

N W
AL

L S
T

WACO RD

VANN CIR

N E
AS

T  S
T

E 1 2T H AV E

N
B L

A I
R

ST

E C E N TR A L AV E

E 2N D AV E

E 12 T H AV E

CO
N TI

N EN
TA

L S T

S P
EA

RL
 ST

W M A R T IN L U T H E R K IN G J R AV E

N B
EA

L S
T

S
B E A L

S T

N P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

W 7 TH AV E

E 4 TH AV E

E 1S T AV E

W 8 T H A VE

E AVE C

N 
WA

LK
ER

 ST

N B
LA

IR 
ST

N
B I

R D
W

E L
L S

T

MU
EL

HO
US

E 
ST

S D
AV

IS 
ST

REUT ER DR

N
B I

RD
W

EL
L

ST

E 6 T H AV E
E 5 TH AV E

W 2 N D AV E

E 11T H AV E

E 1 S T AV E

E 7 TH AV E

E 1 4 T H A VE

E
9T H

AVE

W 8T H AV E
W 8 TH A VE

N P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

WA
RR

EN
 S

T

N E
AS

T S
T N 

BE
AL

 ST

AL
EX

AN
DE

R 
ST

AUST IN AVE

W C E N T R A L AV E

W 3 R D AV E

W 1 S T AV E

E 11 TH AV E

E 7TH AVE

N H
EA

D S
T

LE
ON

 ST

E 1 0 T H A V E

MO
OR

E A
VE

KIN
G 

ST

E 1 0 T H AVE

ELLIS AVE

W 1 S T AVE

S H IN E S T

S 
DA

VI
S 

ST

N P
EA

RL
 ST

VANN

C I R

§̈¦35

LEGEND
Z_16_15

´

Zoning Location
Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-15 Location Z-16-15 Location

ZONING CHANGE:
Multi Family to 
Neighborhood Service

ALEXANDERS ADDITION
BLOCK 006, LOT PT 2

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
ROSEBROCK, JAMES
 ETUX BETHANY

508 N Wall St
ADDRESS/LOCATION:



CO
LL

EG
E S

T

S P
EA

RL
 ST

S E
AS

T S
T

S M
AIN

 ST

S P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

W 3RD AVE

W AVE C

E 4TH AVE

E 3RD AVE

WA
RR

EN
ST

UN
IV

ER
SI

TY
DR

WACO RDN E
AS

T S
T

N B
LA

IR 
ST

N W
AL

L S
T

S B
UR

NE
T S

T

E 2ND AVE

E 6TH AVE

IH 35 SERVICE RD

W MARTIN LUTHER KING JR AVE

N B
EA

L S
T

LE
ON

 ST

N P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

W 7TH AVE

E 4TH AVE

N P
EA

RL
 ST

E 1ST AVE

W 2ND AVE

N 
WA

LK
ER

 ST

N B
LA

IR 
ST

HIL
LT

OP
 ST

NB
IR

DW
EL

L ST

N B
LA

IR 
ST

EXIT 293A

N 
BU

RN
ET

 ST

E 12TH AVE

N
BI

RD
WE

LL
ST

CO
NT

INE
NTAL

STE 5TH AVE

W 5TH AVE

E 11TH AVE

E 1ST AVE
COMAY ST

E 7TH AVE

N M
AIN

 ST

E 9TH AVE

E 9TH AVE

FLAT ST

W 8TH AVE

CHERYL LN

W 8TH AVE

E CENTRAL AVE

N P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

E 8TH AVE

N W
AL

L S
T

WA
RR

EN
 ST

N E
AS

T S
T

N B
EA

L S
T

E 12TH AVE

N 
HE

AD
 ST

AL
EX

AN
DE

R 
ST

N 
PE

AR
L S

T

N
SM

I TH
ST

AUSTIN AVE

W CENTRAL AVE

W 10TH AVE

E 3RD AVE

W 5TH AVE

E 8TH AVE

W 11TH AVE

E 9TH AVE

E 10TH AVE

W 1ST AVE

WATER ST

E 11TH AVE

CA
PT

 DR
E 7TH AVE

E 13TH AVE

E FLAT ST

AL
EX

AN
DE

R 
ST

N 
SM

ITH
 ST

N H
EA

D 
ST

N 
BL

AI
R 

ST

N H
EA

D 
ST

KIN
G 

ST

HIL
LT

OP
 ST

LE
ON

 STN S
PA

RK
S S

T

E 10TH AVE

MO
OR

EA
VE

EXIT 293B

W AVE A

ON RAMP

IH 35 SERVICE RD

E 10TH AVE

N INTERSTATE 35

N INTERSTATE 35

ELLIS AVE

NE
IL 

ST

CO
RI

 DR

W 1ST AVE

SH
IN

E S
T

SHINE ST

S D
AV

IS
 ST

WE
LL

S S
T

VANN CIR

VANN CIR

CIRCLE DR

CIRCLE DR

CBD w/ SUPCBD w/ SUP
Private ClubPrivate Club

SUP Artisan WSSUP Artisan WS

SUP TaxidermySUP Taxidermy
StudioStudio

C-2 SUP MobileC-2 SUP Mobile
ConcessionConcession

StandStand

R w/SUPR w/SUP
AutoAuto
SalesSales

SUP-SUP-
BeautyBeauty
ShopShop

NS-SUP SmallNS-SUP Small
BusinessBusiness

SUP PersonalSUP Personal
ServiceService

O-1-SUPO-1-SUP
Bed andBed and

BreakfastBreakfast

R-SUPR-SUP
TakeoutTakeout

FoodFood
O-2 w/SUPO-2 w/SUP
Bail BondBail Bond

O-2 w/SUPO-2 w/SUP
Craft/Accessory ShopCraft/Accessory Shop

PDPD
PD-R ChurchPD-R Church

SF1-PDSF1-PD
BoardingBoarding

HouseHouse

PD-SF-1PD-SF-1
AntiqueAntique

StoreStore

PD-RPD-R
Mixed UseMixed Use

PD- SUP-PD- SUP-
ResidentialResidential

PD-SF-2PD-SF-2
TeaTea

RoomRoom

PD -PD -
2Family2Family
DuplexDuplex

PD- 2PD- 2
Family DuplexFamily Duplex

PD-2FPD-2F

PD-10PD-10

PD w/MF1PD w/MF1

PD-SF-3PD-SF-3
ManufacturedManufactured

HomesHomes

PD O-1 HomePD O-1 Home
DecorDecor
StoreStore

PD-O1 RealPD-O1 Real
EstateEstate
OfficeOffice

PD-CBD RetailPD-CBD Retail
Gun StoreGun Store

§̈¦35

0 325 650162.5 Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Zoning Location

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-15\Z-16-15 Zoning.mxd    -    Date: 9/29/2016

Legend
CityLimits
Z_16_15

Current_Zoning
Agricultural
Central Business District
Commercial-1
Commercial-2
Conservation Revitalization Overlay
Light Industrial
Multi Family
Neighborhood Service
Office-1
Office-2
Planned Development
Redevelopment District
Retail
Single Family-1
Single Family-2
Single Family-3
Specific Use Permit
Two Family

´

Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-15 Zoning Z-16-15 Zoning

ZONING CHANGE:
Multi Family to 
Neighborhood Service

ALEXANDERS ADDITION
BLOCK 006, LOT PT 2

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
ROSEBROCK, JAMES
 ETUX BETHANY

508 N Wall St
ADDRESS/LOCATION:



E 5TH AVE

N W
AL

L S
T

N W
AL

L S
T

E 6TH AVE

N P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

0 30 6015
Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-15\Z-16-15 Aerial.mxd    -    Date: 9/29/2016

LEGEND
Z_16_15

´

Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-15 Aerial Z-16-15 Aerial

ZONING CHANGE:
Multi Family to 
Neighborhood Service

ALEXANDERS ADDITION
BLOCK 006, LOT PT 2

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
ROSEBROCK, JAMES
 ETUX BETHANY

508 N Wall St
ADDRESS/LOCATION:



N 
EA

ST
 ST

E 4TH AVE

N P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

N W
AL

L S
T

N W
AL

L S
T

E 7TH AVE

E 5TH AVE

N M
AIN

 ST

N B
EA

L S
T

E 6TH AVE

NBL
AIR

STN B
EA

L S
TN P

EN
EL

OP
E S

T

5 0 14

3 83 7 1

1 0 97 0 6

1 2 75 40

7923

405017

19610

5 1 8 3

1 25 8 32

7 43 3

405016

10 0 29 2

75530

94338

94341

5015

7 3 52 3

58 6 31

2 26 36

63537

15793

0 90 18045 Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-15\Z-16-15.mxd    -    Date: 9/29/2016

200' Property Owner
Notification Area

ZONING CHANGE:
Multi Family to 
Neighborhood Service

ALEXANDERS ADDITION
BLOCK 006, LOT PT 2

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
ROSEBROCK, JAMES
 ETUX BETHANY

508 N Wall St
ADDRESS/LOCATION:

Legend
Z_16_15
200' Property Owner
Notification Area
Tax Appraisal Parcels

Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-15 Z-16-15

´



NOTICE OF APPLICATION 
FOR AN 

AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
OF THE 

CITY OF BELTON 
 
THE CITY OF BELTON HAS RECEIVED A REQUEST FROM:  BETHANY ROSEBROCK  , 
TO CHANGE THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY:        508 NORTH WALL STREET , 
FROM A(N)  MULTI-FAMILY  __________ZONING DISTRICT, 
TO A(N)              NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICE  ZONING DISTRICT. 
    

THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS WILL HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING 
PURSUANT TO THIS REQUEST AT 5:30 P.M., Tuesday, October 18, 2016 IN THE WRIGHT ROOM AT THE T.B. 
HARRIS CENTER, 401 N. ALEXANDER, BELTON, TEXAS. 

 
IF APPROVED BY THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION, THIS ITEM WILL BE PLACED ON THE AGENDA FOR 

A PUBLIC HEARING BY THE CITY COUNCIL.  THAT MEETING WILL BE AT 5:30 P.M., Tuesday, October 25, 2016, 
AT THE T. B. HARRIS COMMUNITY CENTER, 401 ALEXANDER STREET, BELTON, TEXAS. 
 

AS AN INTERESTED PROPERTY OWNER, THE CITY OF BELTON INVITES YOU TO MAKE YOUR VIEWS KNOWN 
BY ATTENDING THESE HEARINGS.  YOU MAY SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENTS ABOUT THIS ZONING CHANGE BY 
COMPLETING THIS FORM AND RETURNING IT TO THE ADDRESS BELOW. 
 

IF YOU REQUIRE INTERPRETER SERVICES FOR THE DEAF OR HEARING IMPAIRED, PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY 
CLERK AT CITY HALL AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THESE MEETINGS. 
  
                                                   circle one 

AS AN INTERESTED PROPERTY OWNER, I (PROTEST) (APPROVE) THE REQUESTED ZONING AMENDMENT PRESENTED IN 
THE APPLICATION ABOVE FOR THE REASONS EXPRESSED BELOW: 
 
1.   
 
2.   
 
3.   
 (FURTHER COMMENTS MAY BE EXPRESSED ON A SEPARATE SHEET OF PAPER) 
 
DATE:       SIGNATURE:    
 
                                                         PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
                                                         CITY OF BELTON 
                                                         P. O. BOX 120 
                                                         BELTON, TEXAS  76513  
                                                                                                                                                                              254-933-5812 



5014 

LARANCE, JOHN EDWARD JR ETUX ROXANA T 

501 N PENELOPE ST 

BELTON, TX 76513 
 

 
5015 

MCGOLDRICK ENTERPRISES INC 

806 CHATHAM RD 

BELTON, TX 76513-6708 
 

 
5183 

STEPHENSON, TIM STATE FARM INC 

1344 RIDGEWOOD DR 

NORTHBROOK, IL 60062 
 

7433 

SMITH, JUANITA L 

509 N WALL ST 

BELTON, TX 76513-2676 
 

 
7923 

POWELL, RANDY 

2907 TIMBER RIDGE DR 

TEMPLE, TX 76502-8810 
 

 
15793 

525 NORTH MAIN STREET CROSSING LTD 

3839 BEE CAVE RD STE 305 

AUSTIN, TX 78746 
 

19610 

KELLY, BETHEL W 

504 N WALL ST 

BELTON, TX 76513-2677 
 

 
22636 

MOBLEY, GORDON E & SHIRLEY M 

503 N WALL ST 

BELTON, TX 76513-2676 
 

 
38371 

FUENTES, ISABEL M & PHILLIP 

445 N PENELOPE ST 

BELTON, TX 76513-6007 
 

58631 

ROSEBROCK, JAMES ETUX BETHANY 

508 N WALL ST 

BELTON, TX 76513-2677 
 

 
63537 

LACANNE, BRENT 

PO BOX 56 

SALADO, TX 76571-0056 
 

 
73523 

3513 L C 

3114 RIVER PLACE DR 

BELTON, TX 76513-1014 
 

75530 

MONTGOMERY L&P FAMILY TRUST 

401 E 6TH AVE 

BELTON, TX 76513-2667 
 

 
94338 

POOLE, NORMAN F 

413 GUTHRIE DR 

BELTON, TX 76513-1219 
 

 
94341 

BOWLES, DYLAN ETUX JESSE 

1237 COUNTY ROAD 197 

JONESBORO, TX 76538 
 

100292 

GONZALEZ, JOSE ETUX MARIA DEJESUS 

439 N PENELOPE ST 

BELTON, TX 76513-6007 
 

 
109706 

SHERTZER, DEBORAH FAITH ETAL 

445 N WALL ST 

BELTON, TX 76513 
 

 
125832 

DUNLAP, LESLEIGH 

12179 LANDFILL RD 

HOLLAND, TX 76534 
 

127540 

GODOY, JOSE LUIS ETUX MARIA M 

507 N PENELOPE ST 

BELTON, TX 76513-2675 
 

 
405016 

BELL FINE ARTS ASSOCIATION 

PO BOX 624 

BELTON, TX 76513-0624 
 

 
405017 

1874 CHURCH RESTORATION COMMITTEE 

430 N WALL ST 

BELTON, TX 76513-6009 
 

 
SUPERINTENDENT 
DR. SUSAN KINCANNON  
BELTON I.S.D.  
P O BOX 269 
BELTON TEXAS 76513 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 





1 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, October 18, 2016 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair John Holmes, Mat Naegele, Brett Baggerly, 
Eloise Lundgren, Rae Schmuck and Frank Minosky. The following staff members were present: 
Director of Planning, Erin Smith and Planning Clerk, Laura Livingston. Members Joel Berryman, Ben 
Pamplin and Jason Morgan were absent. 
 

3. Z-16-15    Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change request from Multiple Family 
to Neighborhood Services Zoning District at 508 North Wall Street, located on the west side 
of North Wall Street, between East 5th and East 6th Avenues. 
 
Ms. Smith presented the staff report. 
 
Chair Holmes opened the public hearing, and with no one requesting to speak, he closed the public 
hearing.  
 
Ms. Schmuck asked the proposed use in terms of what’s included in Neighborhood Services. Ms. 
Smith said this zoning includes businesses that are compatible with the neighborhood and do not 
generate a large amount of traffic or noise. Ms. Smith said some of the uses are listed in the staff 
report, such as child care, beauty shop and antique shop, for example.  
 
Mr. Naegele asked the owner’s intent for the property. Ms. Smith said they are uncertain of the 
specific use at this time, but that it likely will be for office use.  
 
Chair Holmes asked about fencing. Ms. Smith said she didn’t see any issues. Mr. Baggerly asked if 
this is a “Sears catalog house.” The applicant Ms. Bethany Rosebrock, 618 N. Wall St., said she 
had heard it is a “Sears house,” though she’s not certain.     
 
Mr. Minosky made the motion to approve a Z-16-15. Mr. Naegele seconded the motion, which was 
approved unanimously with 6 ayes, 0 nays.  



ORDINANCE NO. 2016-47 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON BY 
CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM MULTIPLE FAMILY TO 
NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICE ZONING DISTRICT ON A 0.215 ACRE TRACT, WITH 
DEVELOPMENT TO BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 2 DESIGN STANDARDS. 
 

WHEREAS, James and Bethany Rosebrock, owners of the following described 
property have presented a petition duly signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission 
and filed said petition with the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of 
said petition and hearing on said petition has been given as required by the City Zoning 
Ordinance and by law, and a hearing on said petition before the City Planning & Zoning 
Commission of the City of Belton was set for the 18th day of October 2016, at 5:30 p.m. for 
hearing and adoption, said district being described as follows: 

 
508 N. Wall, Belton, Texas (location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 

 
WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 

said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 18th day of October, 
at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was given as 
required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from a Multi Family Zoning District to 
Neighborhood Service Zoning District, in accordance with Section 20 – Neighborhood 
Service Zoning District, and the Design Standards in Ordinance No. 2014-17, Section 7.1 
of the Zoning Ordinance.  The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belton is hereby amended, 
subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The allowable uses of the property shall conform to the Neighborhood Service 

Zoning District in all respects. 
 

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 7 Design 
Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
including: 
 

a. Site Development Standards discussed above 
b. Building Design Standards 
c. Landscape Design Standards 

 



3. Sign Standards shall conform to Ordinance 2008-11. 
 

4. On-site parking is required prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.  
 
This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Belton and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 25th day of 
October, 2016, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 
 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
25th day of October, 2016. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



E 6
TH

AV
E

E 3
RD

AV
E

N EAST ST

WARREN ST

N BLAIR ST

N BEAL ST

N BLAIR ST

NEASTST

N PEARL ST

W
7T

H
AV

E

N PENELOPE ST

WAC
O RD

W
2N

D
AV

E

E 4
TH

AV
E

E 9
TH

AV
E

W
6T

H
AV

E

E 9
TH

AV
E

N WALL ST

N MAIN ST

E 2
ND

AV
E

E 5
TH

AV
E

E 7
TH

AV
E

W
3R

D
AV

E

E 8
TH

AV
E

E 4
TH

AV
E

N PENELOPE ST

E 8
TH

AV
E

N WALL ST
N BEAL ST

E 3
RD

AV
E

W
5T

H
AV

E

0
14

0
28

0
70

Fe
et

Fo
r i

nfo
rm

ati
on

al 
pu

rp
os

es
 on

ly.
 B

ou
nd

ar
ies

 ar
e a

pp
ro

xim
ate

 an
d n

ot
 le

ga
lly

 bi
nd

ing
.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-15\Z-16-15 Location.mxd   -    Date: 9/29/2016

S EAST ST

S MAIN ST

S PENELOPE ST

COLLEGE ST N MAIN ST

E
3R

D
AV

E

CORIDR

E
13

T H
AV

E

N WALL ST

WAC
O RD

VA
NN

 C
IR

N EAST ST

E
12

T H
AV

E

NBLAIRST

E
C E

N T
R A

L
AV

E

E
2N

D
A V

E

E
12

T H
AV

E

CONTINENTALST

S PEARL ST

W
M

AR
T I

N
LU

TH
ER

KI
NG

J R
AV

E

N BEAL ST

S B E A L S T

N PENELOPE ST

W
7T

H
A V

E

E
4T

H
AV

E

E
1S

T
AV

E

W
8T

H
AV

E

E A
VE

 C

N WALKER ST

N BLAIR ST

NBIRDWELLST

MUELHOUSE ST

S DAVIS ST

RE
UT

ER
 DR

NBIRDWELLST

E
6T

H
AV

E
E

5 T
H

AV
E

W
2N

D
AV

E

E
11

T H
A V

E

E
1S

T
AV

E

E
7T

H
AV

E

E
1 4

TH
AV

E

E 9T H AV E

W
8T

H
A V

E
W

8T
H

AV
E N PENELOPE ST

WARREN ST

N EAST ST

N BEAL ST

ALEXANDER ST

AU
ST

IN
 AV

E

W
C E

N T
RA

L
A V

E

W
3 R

D
AV

E

W
1 S

T
AV

E

E
11

TH
AV

E

E 7TH AV E

N HEAD ST

LEON ST

E
10

TH
AV

E

MOORE AVE

KING ST

E
1 0

TH

AV E

EL
LIS

 AV
E

W
1S

TA
VE

S H I N E ST

S DAVIS ST

N PEARL ST

VA
NN

C I R

§̈ ¦35

LE
GE

ND
Z_

16
_1

5
´

Zo
nin

g L
oc

ati
on

Zo
ni

ng
 C

as
e #

  
Zo

ni
ng

 C
as

e #
   

Z-
16

-1
5 

Lo
ca

tio
n

 Z
-1

6-
15

 L
oc

at
io

n

ZO
NIN

G C
HA

NG
E:

Mu
lti 

Fa
mi

ly 
to 

Ne
igh

bo
rho

od
 Se

rvi
ce

AL
EX

AN
DE

RS
 AD

DI
TIO

N
BL

OC
K 0

06
, L

OT
 PT

 2

LEG
AL

 DE
SC

RIP
TIO

N:

PR
OP

ER
TY

 OW
NE

R:
RO

SE
BR

OC
K,

 JA
ME

S
 ET

UX
 BE

TH
AN

Y

50
8 N

 W
all

 St
AD

DR
ES

S/L
OC

AT
ION

:

EXHIBIT "A"



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 1 of 3   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
        
       Date:  October 25, 2016  
       Case No.: P-16-29 
       Request: Preliminary/Final Plat 
       Applicant: Eckermann Engineering, Inc.  
 
Agenda Item #11 
 
Consider a preliminary/final plat for Nolan Creek Industrial Park, an 84.958 acre tract of land 
beginning 855 feet south of FM 93, and located east of Interstate 35, west of the Temple 
Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant, and north of Nolan Creek.   
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Case Summary 
 
This is a 1-lot subdivision proposed for a concrete batch plant. 
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
This is a 1-lot subdivision plat for a concrete batch plant, proposed as Nolan Creek Industrial 
Park. This property is zoned Heavy Industrial and a concrete batch plant is an allowable use 
in this zoning district. There is a 50 foot wide private access easement extending south from 
FM 93 for access to this property. This access easement was created when the City platted 
the Central Belton Industrial Park, Section I, a portion of the former Rockwool property. There 
was an existing access easement to this property on its far west side, along Nolan Creek, 
before the Central Belton Industrial Park, Section I plat was created. The Central Belton 
Industrial Park, Section I plat moved the access easement to this central location to provide 
access from FM 93 to the tract in this request, as well as to the two new lots created with the 
plat: one (east) proposed for expansion of the wastewater treatment plant and the other 
(west) proposed for future wastewater plant expansion needs (see attached plat).  
 
The applicant is proposing to construct a 40 foot wide concrete driveway with 30 foot radii 
extending from FM 93 to this property (850 feet). The applicant is proposing to extend an 8 
inch waterline 1,177 linear feet and install four fire hydrants from FM 93 to this property. In 
order to extend the waterline and install fire hydrants, a 15 foot City of Belton waterline 
easement is needed to facilitate these improvements. The applicant is proposing to create a 
15 foot City of Belton waterline easement by separate instrument along the western side of 
the existing access easement on City of Belton property. The applicant is also proposing to 
install an overhead electric power line and three street lights adjacent to the City of Belton 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 2 of 3   
 

easement. The street lights will be spaced every 300 feet, with a street light at the 
intersection of FM 93 and this proposed driveway. In order to install the required electrical 
service, a 10 foot Public Utility Easement is needed to facilitate the overhead electric power 
line. Finally, a slope easement is needed as well on the east side of the private access 
easement.   
 
The applicant recognizes the need to compensate the City for use of public property (utility 
and slope easements) to service the concrete batch plant, and has submitted a letter 
proposing the following improvements to satisfy the use of public property and compensate 
the City: 
 

A. Install +/-850 linear feet of 40-foot wide concrete pavement along the existing 50-foot 
access easement. 

B. Install a 55-foot x 35-foot concrete driveway stub to the Belton Wastewater Treatment 
Plant. 

C. Install a new 40-foot wide TXDOT concrete driveway with 30-foot radii onto FM 93. 
D. Maintain the 40-foot concrete pavement section until the City develops their adjacent 

tracts. After such, a shared maintenance responsibility agreement will be made. 
E. Install 1,177 linear feet of 8-inch water line and four (4) fire hydrants along the 

proposed western side of the proposed access driveway and southern property line of 
the City of Belton property. 

F. Install an overhead electric power line and three (3) street light mast arms along the 
west side of the proposed access driveway.      

 
The combination of utility easements (30,900 square feet) and slope easement (6,400 square 
feet) total 37,300 square feet in area for which the City needs to be compensated for this 
development to occur, a total of 0.857 acres. Based on a Broker’s Opinion of Value for the 
overall Rockwool site in 2013, the 94 acres was valued at $910,000, $9,681 per acre. Based 
on the required use of 0.857 acres, the City needs to be compensated in an amount of at 
least $8,297. 

 
It is staff’s judgment that the cost of proposed improvements (see attached) satisfactorily 
compensates the City for the use of City property for the proposed 15 foot City of Belton 
waterline easement, the 10 foot Public Utility Easement, and the slope easement, since the 
associated improvements will benefit the existing City/TBWWTP properties, and provide 
improved access to the TBWWTP. We do recommend creation of a maintenance agreement 
that addresses the owner’s obligation to maintain this driveway indefinitely. Neale Potts is 
preparing this document. 
 
The concrete batch plant will initially be constructed as a temporary facility. All improvements 
stated above will be required prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for 
this temporary facility, except for the 850’ of 40’ wide concrete pavement, which will be built 
using concrete made at the plant soon after the facility is operational. Staff is currently 
reviewing construction plans for the temporary concrete batch plant. Once the temporary 
concrete batch plant is constructed, the applicant will begin design of the permanent concrete 
facility for staff review. A required TCEQ public hearing was conducted on October 6, 2016 at 



City Council Agenda Item 
October 25, 2016 

Page 3 of 3   
 

the Harris Community Center and the applicant stated there were no objections to this project 
at the hearing. We are awaiting TCEQ’s approval of the proposed development at this time.  
 
The southern portion of this 84.958 acre property is located within the 100-year floodplain. 
The applicant has stated that no development will occur within the floodplain. There will be no 
tree removal for the construction of the temporary or permanent concrete batch plant.   
 
We have reviewed the plat and find it acceptable, subject to conditions contained in the letter 
to the applicant’s engineer dated September 26, 2016. 

Recommendation 

Recommend approval of a preliminary/final plat for Nolan Creek Industrial Park, an 84.958 
acre tract of land beginning 855 feet south of FM 93, and located east of Interstate 35, west 
of the Temple Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant, and north of Nolan Creek, subject to the 
following: 
 

1. Conditions contained in the letter to the applicant’s engineer dated September 26, 
2016; and 

2. Creation of a maintenance agreement that addresses the owner’s obligation to 
maintain the 850’ driveway serving the concrete batch plant.  

 
Attachments 
Final Plat Application 
Final Plat 
Location Map 
Letter from Applicant 
Central Belton Industrial Park, Section 1 Plat 
P&ZC Minutes Excerpt 

 
 
 





0 375 750187.5
Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\P Cases\P-16-29\P-16-29 Location.mxd    -    Date: 10/5/2016

S P
EA

RL
 STW AV E I

S M
AI

N S
T

CO
LL

EG
E 

ST

W 3 R D A VE

S W
AL

L S
T

CO
RI

 D
R

WAC O R D

E

6 T H AV E

E 2N D A V E

W 2 N D AV E

N B
EA

L S
T

S
IH

35
S ERVICE R D

N M
AI

N S
T

S P
EA

RL
 ST

TR
EM

ON
T S

T

E A V E M

W AV E C

CA
PI

TO
L

W
AY

S H
EA

D 
ST

N B
LA

IR 
ST

W AV E J

N W
AL

L S
T

JO
RD

AN
 ST

HOLLAND
R D

FR
EN

CH
 ST

W A V E B

UN
IV

ER
SIT

Y D
R HANDER LN

W AV E E
TAY L O R S V A L L E Y R D

HE
RR

ING
TO

N S
T

W
EL

LS
 S

T

E FLAT ST

E A
VE

 A

F O R E ST D R

MAGNOLIA ST

KI
N G

S T

MO
OR

E A
VE

EXIT 294A

W 1 S T A VE

L IV E O A K D R

N 
PE

AR
L S

T

S P
EA

RL
 ST

GENERAL
BRUCE

ELM
GROVE

INTERSTATE 35

WI
TT

ER

CRYER

TAYLORS
VALLEYFM 93

CHARPING
CACTI

LUKERBUTLER

TAYLORSVALLEY
FM 436

DECKERELMGROVE

UV121

£¤190

§̈¦35

LEGEND
P_16_29
CityLimits

´

Plat Location
P-16-29 Nolan Creek Industr ial  ParkP-16-29 Nolan Creek Industr ial  Park

Final Plat 
Nolan Creek Industrial Park
84.598 acres

BARNETT, SANDRA 
& JAN DENSMAN

PROPERTY OWNER:

PROPOSED PLAT:



0 230 460115 Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Proposed Nolan Creek Industrial Park

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\P Cases\P-16-29\P-16-29.mxd    -    Date: 10/5/2016

´
Legend

P_16_29

Final Plat 
Nolan Creek Industrial Park
84.598 acres

BARNETT, SANDRA 
& JAN DENSMAN

PROPERTY OWNER:

PROPOSED PLAT:

 P-16-29  Nolan Creek Industr ial  Park P-16-29  Nolan Creek Industr ial  Park





 
CONCRETE 

Post Office Box 830: Leander, Texas 78646 
Main Office: 512-759-1438 Fax: 512-759-2160  

 
 October 14, 2016 
 
       
Erin Smith  
City of Belton - Planning Director 
333 Water Street 
Belton, TX 76513 
 
Re: Easement and Grading Consideration Summary 

Tex-Mix Belton Concrete Batch Plant Development 
 Belton, Texas 
 
Dear Mrs. Smith: 
 
As discussed in multiple meetings with City Staff, Tex-Mix Concrete acknowledges that upgrades to the 
existing access driveway, the addition of a 15-foot waterline easement, and the additional of a 10-foot 
electrical easement across City of Belton property are required to develop the proposed concrete batch 
plant.  Tex-Mix also recognizes the need to provide consideration to the City for the use of said 
property/easements.   
 
As consideration to the City, Tex-Mix proposes to: 
 

 Install +/-850 linear feet of 40-foot wide concrete pavement along the existing 50-foot access 
easement. 

 Install a 55-foot x 35-foot concrete driveway stub to the Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant.   
 Install a new 40-foot wide TXDOT concrete driveway with 30-foot radii onto FM 93. 
 Maintain the 40-foot concrete pavement section until the City develops their adjacent tracts. After 

such, a shared maintenance responsibility agreement will be made. 
 Install 1,177 linear feet of 8-inch water line and four (4) fire hydrants along the proposed western 

side of the proposed access driveway and southern property line of the City of Belton property. 
 Install an overhead electric power line and three (3) street light mast arms along the western side 

of the proposed access driveway. 
 
The above mentioned improvements will not only benefit the proposed concrete batch plant, but will also 
enhance the value and development potential of the City of Belton properties located along FM 93 by 
enhancing access, electrical connectivity, and completing two sides of the water/fire loop around the 
subject tracts.  In summary, we believe that the value of the proposed improvements exceeds and/or offsets 
any consideration that should owed to the City of Belton for the dedication of said easements.  If you 
should have any questions regarding the Tex-Mix Belton development, please feel free to contact us at 512-
968-5820. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
TEX-MIX CONCRETE 
 
 
 
 
Logan Owens 

 



Chaney-Cox Construction, Inc

Est No: Solicitation  No: 

Project:
Tex-Mix Belton Estimated Cost for Scope in "Easement and Grading Consideration

Summary"  Letter Bid Date: 
Location: Belton, TX Bid Time: 
Est Type:
SFT:
Duration      
(months): 1.2

Spec Section Description Quantity Unit $ / Unit Labor or Subcontractor
Labor & 

Materials
EARTHWORK
BUILD/WIDEN DRIVE ROAD TO DESIGN 1 LS 175,000.00$     ESTIMATE 175,000.00$          
INSTALL 12" FLEX BASE W/ABOVE -$                       

EROSION CONTROLS
STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 1 EA 1,500.00$         ESTIMATE 1,500.00$              
SILT FENCE 1850 LFT 3.00$                ESTIMATE 5,550.00$              
SWPPP 1 LS 1,900.00$         ESTIMATE 1,900.00$              
LANDSCAPING
REVEGETATION W/HYDROSEED & TEMP IRRIGATION 9167 SYD 0.63$                ESTIMATE 5,775.00$              

SITE CONCRETE

CONCRETE PAVING w/Helix, no rebar, 850 LF x 40' wide drive 1 LS 168,600$          168,600$               
     - concrete material w/Helix, 8" thick, 34,000 sft 840 YD 140.00$            TEX-MIX
     - labor to place & finish 34000 SF 1.50$                WOLFF
CONCRETE PAVING w/Helix, no rebar, 55 LF x 35' wide  stub to treatment plant 1 LS 10,430$            10,430$                 
     - concrete material w/Helix, 8" thick, 2100 sft 52 YD 140.00$            TEX-MIX
     - labor to place & finish 2100 SF 1.50$                WOLFF
CONCRETE PAVING w/#4 @ 18" oc, TXDOT Driveway w/30' radii onto FM 93 1 LS 14,756$            14,756$                 
     - concrete material, 8" thick, 2535 sft 63 YD 140.00$            TEX-MIX
     - rebar, chairs, sand material 1 LS 1,500.00$         ESTIMATE
     - labor to install rebar, place, & finish 2535 SF 1.75$                WOLFF

SITE UTILITIES
8" WATER PIPE 1177 LF 33.00$              COMMERCIAL CONSOLIDATED 38,841.00$            
FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLIES 4 EA 3,870.00$         COMMERCIAL CONSOLIDATED 15,480.00$            
BENDS, FITTINGS, TAP, VALVES METER ASSEMBLIES 1 LS 28,000.00$       COMMERCIAL CONSOLIDATED 28,000.00$            
CASTING ADJUSTMENTS 3 EA 550.00$            COMMERCIAL CONSOLIDATED 1,650.00$              
LAYOUT / MOBILIZATION 1 LS 11,500.00$       COMMERCIAL CONSOLIDATED 11,500.00$            
ELECTRICAL & COMMUNICATIONS
ONCOR FEE (OHE W/3 STREET LIGHT MAST ARMS ALONG W. OF DRIVE) 1 LS 20,000.00$       ESTIMATE 20,000.00$            

Subtotal 498,982.25$          

Direct Job Costs Carry over from D.J.C. breakout sheet 17,663.38$            

Subtotal 516,645.63$          
C/O & S/C Liability 2,212.18$              
Builders Risk Insurance    132.73$                 
Perf / Pay Bonds -$                       
OCP Insurance
Additional Insurance Requirements
Umbrella 2,750.00$              
Pollution Ins -$                       

Subtotal 521,740.55$          
6 Fee % 31,304.43$            

Contingency % -$                       
TOTAL 553,044.98$          

Base Bid Page 1



Chaney-Cox Construction, Inc

Est No: 0 Solicitation  No: 0
Project: Tex-Mix Belton Estimated Cost for Scope in "Easement and Grading Consideration Summary" LetterBid Date: 1/0/1900
Location: Belton, TX Bid Time: 12:00 AM
Est Type: 0
SFT: 0
Duration      
(months): 1.2000
Duration       
(weeks): 5.16

Duration    (cal 
days):

36.12

Time of Completion 36.12 Cal. Days 5.16 Weeks 1.19$                   Months

Spec. Item Qnty Unit Cost Labor Material
Project Manager                            0 wks.  @ 1,346.15$   -$                    
Project Superintendent                  5.16 wks.  @ 1,346.15$   6,946.15$            
Office Manager 1.2 wks.  @ 1,000.00$   1,200.00$            
Field Office Expense - Rental 0 mos.  @ 500.00$      none -$                      
Drinking Water/Ice 1.2 mos  @ 50.00$        60.00$                  
Office Supplies 1.2 mos.  @ 80.00$        96.00$                  
Power set-up to Field Office 0 LS  @ 2,500.00$   none -$                      
Electric bill for trailer & construction 0 mos.  @ 275.00$      -$                      

1 Fuel Job Expense Superintendent / Eq. 1.2 mos.  @ 450.00$      540.00$                
1 Cell Phones 1.2 mos.  @ 85.00$        102.00$                

Project Signs 1 ea.  @ 400.00$      400.00$                
2 Temporary Toilets/Field Office Tanks 1.2 mos.  @ 100.00$      240.00$                

First Aid Station sf.  @ Allow 250.00$                
As-Built Drawings & Specs 1 sets  @ 50.00$        50.00$                  
Drawings 3 sets  @ 50.00$        150.00$                
Survey 25 points 150.00$      3,750.00$             
Equipment Repair/Parts 0 LS  @ 1,560.00$   -$                      

1 Truck Allowance 1.2 mos.  @ 300.00$      360.00$                
1 Auto Insurance 1.2 mos @ 75.00$        90.00$                  
1 Hospitalization 1.2 mos.  @ 1,500.00$   1,800.00$             

-$                      
Subtotal 8,146.15$            7,888.00$             
Labor Cross Over 8,146.15$             
Insurance & Taxes Supervision 0.2 1,629.23$             

Subtotal 17,663.38$           
Corrections

Total Direct Job Costs 17,663.38$           

Direct Job Cost Page 1



Tex-Mix Belton Submittal #1_20161007 (3) (166% of Scale); Tex Mix Belton 100%; Projects 10 v1.0; 10/14/2016 10:12 AM

Kyle
Typewritten Text
BULLET ITEM #1:  850 LF OF 40' WIDE CONCRETE DRIVEWAYWITH AN 8" THICK SECTION REINFORCED W/HELIX - 34,000 SQFT

Kyle
Rectangle



Tex-Mix Belton Submittal #1_20161007 (3) (166% of Scale); Tex Mix Belton 100%; Projects 10 v1.0; 10/14/2016 10:17 AM

Kyle
Typewritten Text
BULLET ITEM #2:  CONCRETE DRIVEWAY STUB OVER TO BELTONWASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT - SHOW RED IS APPROX. 2,100 SQFTOF AN 8" THICK SECTION REINFORCED W/HELIX

Kyle
Rectangle



Tex-Mix Belton Submittal #1_20161007 (3) (199% of Scale); Tex Mix Belton 100%; Projects 10 v1.0; 10/14/2016 10:07 AM

Kyle
Typewritten Text
BULLET ITEM #3:  TXDOT DRIVEWAY, SHOWN RED = 2,532 SQFT8" THICK CONCRETE SECTION ESTIMATED W/#4 @18" OC

Kyle
Rectangle



Tex-Mix Belton Submittal #1_20161007 (8) (55% of Scale); Tex Mix Belton 100%; Projects 10 v1.0; 10/14/2016 10:24 AM

Kyle
Typewritten Text
BULLET ITEM #5: 8" WATER LINE & (4) FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLIESALONG THE WESTERN SIDE OF THE ACCESS DRIVE & SOUTHERN PROPERTY LINE



Tex-Mix Belton Submittal #1_20161007 (9) (42% of Scale); Tex Mix Belton 100%; Projects 10 v1.0; 10/14/2016 11:38 AM

Kyle
Typewritten Text
SHOWN RED IS 1850 LF OF SILT FENCE



Tex-Mix Belton Submittal #1_20161007 (9) (61% of Scale); Tex Mix Belton 100%; Projects 10 v1.0; 10/14/2016 11:52 AM

Kyle
Typewritten Text
SHOWN IN RED ARE THE ESTIMATED LIMITS TO REVEG.WHICH INCLUDES HYDROSEED AND TEMP IRRIGATION81,500 SFT SHOWN





           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

       
 

 
 
September 26, 2016 
 
Applicant: Eckermann Engineering, Inc. / Sandra Barnett 
Date Submitted: 09-09-16 
Project: Nolan Creek Industrial Park – Final Plat  
Location: 84.598 Acres, 2098 East 6th Avenue, Belton, Texas 76513 

 
***Please comment back in red under the comments submitted on this sheet.*** 

 
Planning: 

1. Please submit the off-site 15’ City of Belton Utility Easement and Public Utility 
Easement for staff review. Please provide staff with the square footage of the easements 
and an exhibit. 

2. Please submit a street lighting plan that shows street lights placed 300 feet apart along the 
driveway. Recommend a street light be installed at the corner of this driveway and FM 93 
and along the driveway on the west side, for a total of 3 street lights.  

3. Please submit this plat to all utility providers, including Bell County Health Department 
and Clearwater UCD and provide comments to staff.  

4. Are there any existing deed restrictions associated with this property?  
5. A tree survey is required in conjunction with the plat. Will the tree survey be submitted 

with the construction plans? 
 

Public Works/KPA: 
1.   Identify proposed water line, hydrants, and easements on utility plan. Show any required 

and revised easements on the plat.   
2.   Please add the following notes to the construction plans when submitted.  

a.   Owner shall coordinate a preconstruction meeting with the City Engineer prior to 
construction.  

b.   The Owner or Owner’s representative shall give the City Engineer a minimum of 
48-hours notice prior to any excavation or construction beginning. To notify the 
City of the start date for construction activity, call (254) 933-5823.  

c.   Any infrastructure or materials placed in the right-of-way are subject to third party 
testing as required and coordinated by the City Engineer or their designee. All 
material testing costs and any subsequent retests shall be paid by the Owner of the 
property at a rate of the actual costs plus 10%, per Ordinance 2015-44.   

 
Building Official: 
 Development proposed within the floodplain will require a LOMR prior to the issuance 

of a building permit. 
 
 

City of Belton 

 

 

  Planning Department 



           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

Fire Department: 
 No comments.  
  
Police Department: 

No comments on plat but may have some on construction plans regarding safety of 
turning left onto FM 93 from this property.  

   
GIS: 
 No comments.   
 
TxDOT: 
 No comments.  
  
Note: Acceptance by the City of Belton of a plat, zoning change, conceptual drawing, construction 
drawing, or other development submittal complying with City of Belton minimum standards for 
drainage does not provide approval beyond what the City may authorize.  Approval is limited, and 
this approval does not limit any obligations you may have under applicable state statutes, such as 
the Texas Water Code, or federal statutes.  You should consult with your own professionals as you 
continue to pursue this development project. 



1 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, October 18, 2016 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair John Holmes, Mat Naegele, Brett Baggerly, 
Eloise Lundgren, Rae Schmuck and Frank Minosky. The following staff members were present: 
Director of Planning, Erin Smith and Planning Clerk, Laura Livingston. Members Joel Berryman, Ben 
Pamplin and Jason Morgan were absent. 
 
5. P-16-29    Consider a preliminary/final plat for Nolan Creek Industrial Park, an 84.958 acre 

tract of land beginning 855 feet south of FM 93, and located east of Interstate 35, west of the 
Temple Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant, and north of Nolan Creek. 

Ms. Smith presented the staff report.  

Chair Holmes asked is this business would supply concrete for Interstate 35. Mr. Sam Walker, 
representing Eckermann Engineering, 8 Park Place, Lampasas, said there has been a buy-out of a 
local concrete company, and others are looking to take over some of the smaller projects in this 
area. Chair Holmes clarified his question and asked if the concrete trucks would be heading to I-35 
from this site. Mr. Walker said yes, though they will be heading in many different directions. Mr. 
Walker said they plan to enhance the driveway for safety purposes, and have submitted plans to 
TxDOT for permitting, and lighting will be added to the intersection. He described the elevation at 
the entrance and said that drivers will be able to clearly see the concrete trucks.  

Chair Holmes asked how long the temporary status will remain? Mr. Walker said it is still being 
discussed, but TexMix will likely take two years to complete the plans for the permanent concrete 
batch plant. Mr. Baggerly asked about dust mitigation. Mr. Walker said multiple ideas have been 
discussed with no solution quite yet. A strong all-weather surface is needed to support the concrete 
trucks and they plan to pave the entry on FM 93 immediately. They are still looking into dust 
mitigation. Mr. Walker said City staff have been great to work with. Chair Holmes asked about the 
environmental oversight by TCEQ (Texas Commission on Environmental Quality). Mr. Walker 
said TCEQ monitors air quality of concrete plants, so when they are batching and mixing they are 
not allowed to release particulates into the air. Additionally, they must file for approval of an air 
quality permit through the Environmental Protection Agency and TCEQ.  

Ms. Lundgren asked what would happen if the concrete batch plant is not approved? Mr. Walker 
said the plat would still be recorded, but the concrete batch plant would not be constructed.  

Chair Holmes asked how it may affect Nolan Creek? Mr. Walker said there is not a TCEQ permit 
that governs this, but an environmental group in Austin is working on those plans. Typically, a 
concrete plant will collect water in a retention facility with space for overflow in a large storm 
event and much of the water is reused. He said there is strict testing as required by the state.  



2 
 

Chair Holmes recalled the “Rockwall days” when the wind would carry the particles from the 
insulation manufacturer. Mr. Walker said the location of the development would be downhill in a 
cornfield and there is another 300 feet of trees from the concrete batch plant to Nolan Creek.  

Mr. Naegele made the motion to approve P-16-29. Ms. Lundgren the motion subject to conditions 
outlined by the Director of Planning, which was approved unanimously with 6 ayes, 0 nays.  


	Agenda - 102516
	City Manager's Memo
	#3A - CAFR Award
	#3B - Transparency Star Award
	#4A - Minutes - 101116 Workshop
	#4A - Minutes - 101116
	#5 - Staff Report - RUOK? Interlocal
	Agreement

	#6 - Staff Report - Jeff Hamilton Park
	#6 - Attachments

	#7 - Staff Report - Issue Debt
	#7 - Attachments

	#8 - Staff Report - Annexation
	#8 - Municipal Services Plan Overview
	#8 - Area 1
	#8 - Area 2
	#8 - Area 3
	#8 - Area 4
	#8 - Area 5
	#8 - Area 6
	#8 - Area 7
	#8 - Sample Development Agreement
	#8 - Annexation Schedule

	#9 - Staff Report - Zoning UPS Parking Lot
	#9 - Attachments

	#10 - Staff Report - Zoning 508 N. Wall
	#10 - Attachments

	#11 - Staff Report - Nolan Creek Industrial Park
	#11 - Attachments




